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BUSINESS REVIEW

2016 is a new start for Best Food Holding Company Limited (the “Company”),
together with it's subsidiaries (the “Group”). The board (the “Board”) of
directors of the Company (the “Directors”) and the management conducted a
systematic review and fine-tuned Company’s future development strategies.
Based on the steady operation of the existing handbag business, the
Company will take the multi-brand chain food and beverage investment and
investment management as its core development direction in the future, and
will keep the operation of manufacturing and sales of handbags in the near
future.

In addition, 2016 is a year with the preliminary achievement made by the
Company under the guidance of the new strategies. the Company took fast-
paced actions and finished the assembling of new management team, the
acquisition of the majority share of “F1&4” and the minority interest
investment in “PEAE8” and “i& R/]NE” , after which the basic framework and
foundation of the investment and management platform of the Company has
been thus established. By virtue of upfront investment practice, the Company
has established favorable reputations and significant influences in the food

and beverage (“F&B”) industry and F&B investment arena.

Chairman'’s Statements (continued)
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Chairman’s Statements (continued)

EFEHE (F)

The Group recorded profit of
HK$17.23 milion for the year
ended 31 December 2016,

increased by 72.05% as

compared to HK$10.01 million

last year.

RNEBEWFEZE20165F12 A 31
HIEFE E1,72388 T 8%
FE1,001 88T IN72.05% °

PROSPECTS AND STRATEGIC PLANNING

During the past few years, we are pleased to see that consumption has
become the biggest driver of growth of China’s economy, among which,
thanks to its volume over 3,000 billion and steady increase of more than 10%,
the food and beverage industry is playing a decisive role in supporting overall
economic growth of China.

Meanwhile, China’s food and beverage industry has undergone tremendous
and profound changes in market demand and supply, which implies the
inflection point for most of outstanding Chinese chain F&B brands is around
the corner, and chain catering brands with the ability to provide convenience,
safety, health and fashion sense will probably stand out in the near future.
However, for historical reasons, most of Chinese chain F&B brands are still
small and fragmented. Some excellent fast food and casual dining enterprises
are faced with tremendous insufficiencies of capital and resource integration
capabilities in their course of seeking breakthrough. At this moment,
sustainable investments from organizations with capital operation, investment

06 BEST FOOD HOLDING COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2016
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management and resource integration capabilities will play a crucial part in
rapid growth of Chinese chain F&B brands. Based on the above judgments
and with the accumulative investment expertise in consumer sectors in the
past 10 years, Hony Capital decided to invest the Company. The Company
will achieve the continuous value-based growth by such two-wheel drive as
investments and post-investment management. On one hand, with excellent
entrepreneur and management team, the Company will build a multi-category
brand portfolio through acquisition and minority share investment to the
catering industry. On the other hand, the Company will build an elite
professional management team in order to provide value-added services in
the key areas of value creation process and resources integration of F&B
operations to the investee.

Based on the above adjustments, Hony Capital has invested HK$1.5 billion
through the subscription of convertible bonds issued by the company as a
pre-investment, and will take the Company as the strategic platform for
investments to the catering industry.

The past 2016 has saw the Company take its first foray into leapfrog
development for future. We firmly believe that with management’s relentless
and vigorous efforts together with supports from all shareholders, the
Company will achieve its goal of opening more than ten thousands of brand
stores, and will stand out in Hong Kong capital market by becoming a unique
food and beverage investment and management group in the near future.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend our sincere gratitude to our
shareholders, customers and business partners for their persistent support
throughout the year. In addition, | would also like to take this opportunity to
thank all colleagues and staff for their persistent contribution to the Group.

On behalf of the Board
Zhao John Huan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

COMMENTARY

Overall Review

For the year ended 31 December 2016, as the food and beverage investment
business management segment is still under construction, only the sales of
two months is consolidated, while the sales of manufacturing and sales of
handbags segment further decreased,
HK$560 million, decreased by 15.05% as compared to last year; and a profit
for the year of about HK$17.23 million, increased by 72.05% as compared to
last year.

the Group recorded revenue of

For the year ended 31 December 2016, for the food and beverage investment
business management sector, the total sales of invested subsidiaries and
associates amount to HK$510 million, increased by 25%. The sales attributed
to the Company amounts to HK$63 million as we invested since November
2016 and only the sales of two months is consolidated.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the manufacturing and sales of
handbags sector recorded revenue of HK$496 million, representing a
decrease of 24.7%, as compared to HK$659 million to last year.

The Food and Beverage Investment Business
Management Sector

Strategic planning

During the past few years, we are pleased to see that consumption has
become the biggest driver of growth of China’s economy. After 2010,
consumption as a percentage of GDP has been continually increasing. In
2016, consumption accounted for more than 55% of GDP, contributing more
than 70% of the GDP growth rate. The national food and beverage revenue
reached RMB 3.58 trillion in 2016, with year-over-year growth more than
10%, according to the National Bureau of Statistics of China. Thanks to its
huge volume and steady increase, the food and beverage industry is playing
a decisive role in supporting overall economic growth in China.

Meanwhile, China’s food and beverage industry has undergone tremendous
and profound changes in market demand and supply.

In view of demand, we observed that the change in lifestyle and increase in
eating out in China were fueled by growth in urbanization. As post-80 and
post-90 generations gradually become the mainstream consumers,
consumption upgrading and tremendous shifts in consumer mix were
unfolded rapidly. The changes in demand side herald that chain catering
brands with the ability to provide convenience, safety, health and fashion
sense will probably stand out in the near future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEEN® RS (&)

In view of market supply, different aspects in the value chain of the F&B
industry in China evolve quickly through scale and segmentation. The supply
chain in the upstream of the catering industry is gradually improving. There
are increasing emerging brands with revolutionary innovations in product
types, business models and marketing that operate restaurant chains, and
online food distribution channels now receive popularity. However, for
historical reasons, most of Chinese chain F&B brands are still small and
fragmented. Some excellent fast food and casual dining enterprises are faced
with tremendous insufficiencies of capital and resource integration capabilities
in their course of seeking breakthrough. At this moment, sustainable
investments from organizations with capital operation, investment
management and resource integration capabilities will play a crucial part in
rapid growth of Chinese chain F&B brands.

Based on the above judgments and the accumulative investment expertise in
consumer sectors in the past 10 years, Hony Capital decided to invest in the
Company, upon which a platform will be built as the core objective. Hony
Capital has invested HK$1,500 million through the subscription of convertible
bonds issued by the Company and will achieve its goal of opening more than
ten thousands of brand stores, building a leading multi-branding restaurant
chain investment and management company in China with worldwide
influence, through long term and continuous investments.

Enterprise value realization method
The Company will achieve the continuous value-based growth by this two-
wheel drive, through investments and post-investment management.

From investment perspective, with its extensive connections and ample
pipelines established in the industry, the Company will carry out systematic
investment to F&B brands and catering services, as well as strategic
corporation with professional service providers in both upstream and
downstream business of the value chain. At the same time, by leveraging
Hony Capital’'s years of practical experience and systematic investment
decision making process, the management team of the Company is
competent to create an industrial database, thus developing an agile
investment decision making process and facilitating efficient investment
execution. By virtue of investment practice, the Company has established
favorable reputations and significant influences in the food and beverage
industry and food and beverage investment industry.

From post-investment management perspective, the Company will build an
elite professional management team. On one hand, through innovative
thoughts, the Company has established an entrepreneur club where seminars
and business visits will be regularly organized. By interactions and sharing,
resources of portfolio companies will be fully utilized. On the other hand,
focusing on key areas of value creation process and value-added services
capacities in resources integration, the Company aims at building its
capabilities in value-added services in marketing, supply chain management,
internet based online platform, off-line sales network development and team
building.

10 BEST FOOD HOLDING COMPANY LIMITED ~ Annual Report 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

In sum, the Company will achieve value creation through both external growth
and organic growth. On one hand, the Company will carry on business as a
holding company or hold interests in investee companies to achieve external
growth. On the other hand, organic growth will be achieved through scale up
and new store openings of invested brands.

In terms of external growth, with outstanding entrepreneur and management
team, the Company will acquire majority shares of large scale chain stores
which have sufficiently large scale and stable profitability. At the same time,
the Company will hold minority interests in high growth and emerging brands,
the increase in profitability and valuation of which will be picked up by the
listed company. Joint-stock brands can incorporate into listed companies or
operate separate listing later through share swap to enlarge revenue and
profits for listed companies and form a larger community of interests. In the
aspect of business model selection of chain restaurant brands, the Company
will focus on fast-food, casual dining and chain restaurant reflecting new life
style with the potential of easy standardization and quick duplication.
Meanwhile, the Company will also actively seek relevant investment
opportunities along the value chain of catering industry.

In terms of organic growth, with its expertise in collaboration in marketing,
supply chain management, internet based online platform, off-line sales
network development and team building, the Company has the ability to
accelerate the speed, as well as boost the chance of success, in new stores
openings. In addition, through upgrading enterprise resources planning
system and internet system, operation efficiency of portfolio companies will
be enhanced, thus facilitating increase in same store sales growth.

Business development

The establishment of management platform

Base on the above strategy, Hony Capital acquired the controlling stake in
the Company through Sonic Tycoon Limited in August 2016, and the
Company changed the English name of the Company from “Lee & Man
Handbags Holding Limited” to “Best Food Holding Company Limited” and the
Chinese name of the Company from “IB X FREBAR AT to “BRIERE
[ 2] in December 2016.

From August 2016 to December 2016, the Company took fast-paced actions
and finished the assembling of new management team, the acquisition of the
majority equity interest of Beijing HHG Restaurant Management Co., Ltd* (1t
TRAERABEIEERAT) (‘HHG”), and the minority interest investment in
Guangzhou Yuijian Xiaomian Restaurant Management Co., Ltd* (EM:& &/
HEHEEBR AT (“Xiaomian”) and Qidian Tongzhou Restaurant
Management (Beijing) Co., Ltd* (51 2h[EA-E R B IR (1L ) B BR A 7)) (‘Tongzhou™),
after which the basic framework and foundation of the investment and
management platform of the Company has been thus established.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEEN® RS (&)

HHG Investment

From August 2016 to March 2017, Delightful Year Holdings Limited (“Delightful
Year”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company incorporated in Hong
Kong, held a majority equity interest of HHG.

Restaurant network: HHG is principally engaged in Chinese fast food
restaurants chain business under the “Hehegu” brand in the PRC. After years
of effort of the management team under the leadership of the founder, Zhao
Shen, “Hehegu” has become the leading Chinese fast food brand in Beijing.
With more than 90 directly owned stores and 14 franchised stores in Beijing,
Tianjin and Hebei province (compared with 81 directly owned stores and 16
franchised stores in 2015), HHG has a well-established fast food business
operation concept and potential for development. With the supporting from
the Company, HHG plans to expand its store network drastically in 2017,
continue to enhance its market position and strengthen its business in Beijing
and Northern China, and carry out overseas expansion under the supporting
of Hony Capital and the Company.

Sales growth: HHG continuously enhances operation service standards and
efficiency. Matching with brand marketing and integration of online and offline
marketing channels, including Wechat, Alipay and other payment ways, it
joins forces with online leading take-out websites and launches varieties of
sales activities. In addition, by means of optimizing menus, launching new
products, adjusting dish structures, reviewing pricing strategy, and improving
dining environment, HHG is devoted to promoting the comprehensive
experience for customers. For the year ended 31 December 2016, despite a
weak market, HHG recorded revenue of RMB342 million, increased by 6% as
compared to last year. In 2016, seat turnover rate of HHG achieved 7, with
average spending per customer of RMB33.

Same-store sales growth: In 2016, HHG achieved a same store sales growth
rate of 3.3% and maintained a high level of same-store growth rate. In 2017,
HHG will upgrade and optimize brand image again. Based on reinforcing
advantages for breakfast hours, it aims at improving efficiency during rush
hours for lunch and dinner so as to enhance business performance. Through
establishing the customer relationship management platform, HHG advances
precision marketing, and further strengthens customer relationships.

Supply chain management: Adhering to strict quality standards for the
procurement of raw materials and equipped with a central kitchen for a unified
processing and production. In 2017, HHG will build a new central kitchen in
Baodi, Tianjing to further improve the efficiency of processing and production,
and guarantee food security.

Attached is the statement profit or loss of HHG for the year end of December
31, 2016. The net profit of January to October in 2016 is not audited while
that of November and December, which included in the scope of
consolidation, has been audited by Pricewaterhousecoopers Beijing office.

BEST FOOD HOLDING COMPANY LIMITED  Annual Report 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEEFWE DN (&)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS OF HHG MeErEE R
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE2016F12H31HIFFE
2016/01- 2016/11-
2016/10 2016/12 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FER
Sales WA 339,406 63,377
Cost of inventory FEKAK (150,403) (21,206)
Staff and rental expense ATLRHEEER (116,789) (23,276)
Selling and marketing costs HERSHER (35,474) (8,888)
Administrative expenses THEHR (26,402) (5,286)
Other income E g A 2,234 910
Operating profit 45 & 5 | 12,572 5,631
Finance costs B % & A (596) (36)
Profit before income tax R A A O A 11,976 5,595
Income tax expenses 8Bz i (3,612) (1,895)
Profit for the years/periods FRN/ BHREF 8,364 3,700

*  The difference of the accumulation of profit of January to October in 2016 and that  * 20161 A E10A BAE M K11 A E12 A AR

of November and December with the profit of the whole year is caused by EH R HEEFANGNABEEAEXNE
exchange rate fluctuation. ERo
Xiaomian Investment BE )M

On December 31, 2016, the Company completed the capital increase of 201612 A31H » " AR H B & /&
Guangzhou Yujian Xiaomian Restaurant Management Co., Ltd* (EMBR/)N W E - NEETHEEBR /) ELE  HA
HEEIE AR A F) (“Xiaomian”). Xiaomian owns the “Xiaomian” brand and 2014 & R E MBI ST A EE /NE A T T
it is a flagship noodle chain established in Guangzhou in 2014 with Chongaing  $H:@ 44 b2 - Z 2Bl A A BB 5 E S BHX
noodles as its selling product. The founding team of the “Xiaomian” brand K2R E  WEPRXNRETEBHEAE -
graduated from The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology and

started its entrepreneurship in the Chinese fast food industry.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, Xiaomian operates 10 stores in &, 220161231 B It FE - B R /A &
Guangzhou. In 2016, Xiaomian achieved seat turnover rate of 7, with average /N &8 105 P9 /5 « i@ &, /N 52016 4 & B &
spending per customer of RMB30. 7 BEEAHHEBEOTARE -

ey
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEEN® RS (&)

TongZhou Investment

On November 30, 2016, the Company completed the capital increase and
share transfer of Qidian Tongzhou Restaurant Management (Beijing) Co., Ltd*
(FHRAZREBEILR)BERAT) (“Tongzhou”). Tongzhou owns the “West
Master” brand and it is a flagship Chinese fast food chain established in
Beijing in 2014 with Chinese bun as its selling product. The founding team of
the “West Master” brand came from the world’s leading Internet companies,
namely Baidu and Tencent. The team has strong expertise in online
marketing.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, Tongzhou operates 15 stores in
Beijing. In 2016, Tongzhou achieved a same store sales growth rate of 28%,
with average spending per customer of RMB33. The average sales per
square meter of West Master in 2016 is more than RMB4,000, significantly
higher than that of similar brands.

Yu Yang Mei Chu Investment

On March 4, 2017, the Company entered into a capital increase agreement
with the existing shareholders of Shenzhen Yu Yang Mei Chu Internet
Technologies LLC* (FYIBFEFMEEEHLARAF) (“Yu Yang Mei Chu”).
Yu Yang Mei Chu owns the “Sexy Salad” brand, which is a fast growing
brand of salad category in the Chinese catering industry and became one of
the salad representative brands in the South China area within two years
since the brand was established. The founder of the “Sexy Salad” brand
graduated from Sun Yat-sen University, and the core founding team members
are entrepreneurs who came from leading consumer goods companies such
as Procter & Gamble and Okamoto.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, Yu Yang Mei Chu operates 4 stores
in Guangzhou and Shenzhen. In 2016, Yu Yang Mei Chu achieved a same
store sales growth rate of 19 %, with average spending per customer of
RMB85. Among total sales, the portion of takeaway amounts to more than
50%, the high consumer loyalty offers Yu Yang Mei Chu more flexibility for its
store styles and location options.

In 2016, the Company started its first step towards great-leap-forward
development. We firmly believe that with the efforts of the management and
the supports from all shareholders, the Company will be the unique multi-
brand catering group in Hong Kong capital market in the near future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Yuepin Investment

On March 31, 2017, the Company entered into a capital increase agreement
with the existing shareholders of Shenzhen Yuepin Restaurant Management
Limited (FYIHREREIEGRAR) (“Yuepin”), the core products of which
are Vietnamese dishes . Yuepin, currently operates two chain brands — “Yue
Xiao Pin” and “Mei Nai Xiao Guan”, was established in March, 2013 by the
founder, Guo Bin, who has been engaged in the Western food industry for
more than ten years. “Yue Xiao Pin” focuses on pho (a Viethamese noodle
soup), snacks, drinks and other light fast food, while “Mei Nai Xiao Guan”,
providing Vietnamese cuisines such as seafood with Vietnamese
characteristics, snacks, pho, special cookings, salad, etc. for dinners, attracts
lots of urban white collars with its selling point of “French environment +
Vietnamese cuisines”. Before collaboration with the Company, Yuepin has
already set up the independent central kitchens and stable catering supply
chains, laying a solid foundation for standardized and large-scale production.
At the same time, Yuepin actively lays out in the core business district,
researches on the tastes and habits of consumers based on big data, and
then selects and improves dishes.

For the year ended December 31, 2016, Yuepin had 7 stores in Shenzhen,
and recorded a significant increase of sales compared to that of the last year.
In the future, Yuepin will continue to enhance its market position in Shenzhen
and extend to Guangzhou, Shanghai and other first-tier cities with its potential
to become the champion of Vietnamese dishes restaurants.

Manufacturing and Sales of Handbags

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the manufacturing and sales of
handbags sector recorded revenue of HK$496 million, representing a
decrease of 24.7%, as compared to HK$659 million last year. The recorded
revenue decreased significantly mainly due to the manufacturers from other
South-East Asia countries such as Philippines and Vietnam exporting the
products with more competitive prices, which imposed serious pressure on
sales order price. In order to increase the competitiveness in the market, the
Company began to build a new plant in Myanmar in the end of 2015, and is
almost ready for use. The operation of the new plant will reduce the overall
production cost of the manufacturing and sales of handbag section, thus
enhancing the ability to accept orders.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEEN® RS (&)

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2016 was 57.05%
(81.12.2015: 54.09%). The total shareholders’ equity of the Group as at 31
December 2016 was HK$300 million (31.12.2015: HK$284 million). As at 31
December 2016, the Group had current assets of HK$304 million (31.12.2015:
HK$483 million) and current liabilities of HK$185 million (31.12.2015: HK$75
million). The current ratio was 1.64 as at 31 December 2016 as compared to
6.46 as at 31 December 2015.

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated cash
flow and credit facilities provided by its principal bankers in Hong Kong. As at
31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the Group had no outstanding
bank borrowings. As at 31 December 2016, the Group maintained bank
balances and cash of HK$123 million (31.12.2015: HK$309 million). The
Group’s net cash-to-equity ratio (cash and cash equivalents net of total
borrowings over shareholders’ equity) was —0.39 as at 31 December 2016
(31.12.2015: 0.17).

The Group possesses sufficient cash and available banking facilities to meet
its commitments and working capital requirements.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had capital expenditure contracted for
but not provided in the consolidated financial statements in respect of the
property, plant and equipment improvement in amount of HK$8.79 million.

HUMAN RESOURCES

At 31 December 2016, the Group had a workforce of about 4,000 people (Food
and beverage investment business management: 1,500 people,
Manufacturing and sales of handbags: 2,500 people). The Group maintains a
good relationship with its employees, and provides them with proper training
and competitive compensation and incentives. The staffs are remunerated
based on their work performance, professional experience and prevailing
market situation. Remuneration packages comprise salary and bonuses
based on individual merits.
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company believes
that sound and reasonable corporate governance practices are essential for
the growth of the Group and for safeguarding and maximizing shareholders’
interests. On 1 April 2012, the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(*Former CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”) was amended and renamed as Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (“New CG Code”). The Company has adopted
the code provisions set out in the New CG Code. The Board is committed to
complying with the code provisions as stated in the New CG code to the
extent that the directors of the Company (“Directors”) consider it is applicable
and practical to the Company.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has complied with the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2016 except
where stated and explained below.

— Mr. Zhao John Huan is the chairman and the chief executive officer of
the Company. He oversees and manages the Group’s business as the
chairman with the assistance of the Group’s senior management team.
Other functions normally undertaken by a chief executive officer of the
company are delegated to members of the Group’s senior management
team. This structure deviates from the code provision of Code that
requires the roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer to be
separate and not performed by the same individual. The Directors has
considered this matter carefully and decided not to adopt the provision.
The Directors believe that the current management structure has been
effective in facilitating the operation and development of the Group and
its business for a considerable period of time and that the necessary
checks and balances consistent with sound corporate governance
practices are in place. Accordingly, the Directors do not envisage the
Group should change its current management structure. However, the
Directors will review the management structure from time to time to
ensure it continues to meet these objectives.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRE (HE)

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules as a code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions
in 2011. All the members of the Board have confirmed, following specific
enquiry by the Company that they have complied with the required standard
as set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2016.
The Model Code also applies to other specified senior management of the
Group.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition and role

The Board comprises:

Executive director

Mr. Zhao John Huan (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Xiaolong
Mr. Wang Yuanzheng

Independent non-executive director

Mr. Leung Kwai Kei
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei
Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence

As at 31 December 2016, the Board comprises three executive directors (one
of whom is the Chairman) and three independent non-executive directors.
The three independent non-executive directors represent more than one-third
of the Board. In addition, three of the independent non-executive directors
possess appropriate business, professional accounting qualifications and
legal expertise.

The principal focus of the Board is on the overall strategic development of the

Group. The Board also monitors the financial performance and the internal
controls of the Group’s business operations.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

The independent non-executive directors also serve the important function of
ensuring and monitoring the basis for an effective corporate governance
framework. The Board considers that each independent non-executive
director is independent in character and judgment and that they all meet the
specific independence criteria as required by the Listing Rules. The Company
has received from each independent non-executive director an annual
confirmation or confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The independent non-executive directors are explicitly identified
in all of the Company’s corporate communications.

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, all Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meeting at
least once every three years and any director appointed by the Board or
elected by the shareholders of the Company to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board shall hold office until the next following general meeting,
as the case may be, of the Company after his/her appointment and be
subject to re-election at such meeting.

The Chairman is primarily responsible for drawing up and approving the
agenda for each board meeting in consultation with all directors. Notice of at
least 14 days have been given to all directors for all regular board meetings
and the directors can include matters for discussion in the agenda if
necessary. Agenda and accompanying board papers in respect of regular
board meetings are sent out in full to all directors within reasonable time
before the meeting. Draft minutes of all board meetings are circulated to
directors for comment within a reasonable time prior to confirmation.

Minutes of board meetings and meetings of board committees are kept by
duly appointed secretaries of the respective meetings and all directors have
access to board papers and related materials, and are provided with
adequate information in a timely manner, which enable the Board to make an
informed decision on matters placed before it.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TtEERRE (B

During the year under review, eight full board meetings were held and the
individual attendance of each director is set out below:

REBEFER CARN\R24EFE &
FHREBAFINET

Number of board
meetings attendance
Name of director BEEnR HEEEEER LK
Mr. Zhao John Huan (Chairman) BB A (EE) 4/8
(appointed on 9 August, 2016) (FR2016F8 A9 R k1)
Mr. Wang Xiaolong (appointed on 9 August, 2016) T/ER A (R20165E8 A9H HT) 4/8
Mr. Wang Yuanzheng (appointed on 9 August, 2016) TRAE %A (A2016F8 A9 H £) 4/8
Ms. Wai Siu Kee (resigned on 9 August, 2016) Flma 4 (R2016F8 A9 R ET) 4/8
Mr. Kung Fang David (resigned on 9 August, 2016) BEgh S A (R20164F8 A9 A BH{T) 4/8
Ms. Lee Man Ching (resigned on 9 August, 2016) T+ (5201648 A9 HE ) 4/8
Mr. So Wing Keung (resigned on 9 August, 2016) B oK oR St 4 (R 2016F 8 A9 H & fE) 3/8
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei TR 4 5 4 8/8
Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence BX A 7/8
Mr. Xian Shunxiang (appointed on 9 August, 2016 and £ IIB# % 4 (FA20164F8 A9H £ 4/8
resigned on 4 January, 2017) M2017F1 A48 & F)

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal and tailored
induction on his appointment, so as to ensure that he has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Group and that he is fully
aware of his responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements. There are also arrangements in place for
providing continuing briefing and professional development to Directors at the
Company’s expenses whenever necessary.

The Company provides regular updates and presentations on changes and

developments relating to the Group’s business and the legislative and
regulatory environments to the Directors at Board meetings or through emails.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

The Directors are committed to complying with Code Provision A.6.5 of the
New CG Code which came into effect on 1 April 2012 on Directors’ training.
All Directors have participated in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills and provided a record of
training they received for the year ended 31 December 2016 to the Company.
The type of training received is summarized below:

S EEARE (R)

FEERBETH0I2F4R 1A RBER ZF T
¥EATABEHRESHIZTAIKXEASLS
1 BE2016F12A3IHIFE 28BEF
HELEERRENBESAARTECFE
BEER VERAAQAIREESAESE
AR BRI ¢

Attending external

Reading regulatory seminars/
updates programmes
MEEERTE SENRBBER
Name of director EEHR BHER Mg EH
Executive directors BITES
Mr. Zhao John Huan (Chairman) HeEEE(EE) v v
(appointed on 9 August, 2016) (FA20164F8 9B 1)
Mr. Wang Xiaolong T/EESRAE v v
(appointed on 9 August, 2016) (FA201648 A9H £1T)
Mr. Wang Yuanzheng TR A v v
(appointed on 9 August, 2016) (FA2016F 8 A9H £1F)
Ms. Wai Siu Kee wmimit v v
(resigned on 9 August, 2016) (FR20164F8 A9 H & L)
Mr. Kung Fang David AL v v
(resigned on 9 August, 2016) (FA20164E8 A9 H B {T)
Ms. Lee Man Ching FNEL T v v
(resigned on 9 August, 2016) (FA2016F 8 A9 H B E)
Mr. So Wing Keung Bk 08 5 A4 v v
(resigned on 9 August, 2016) (FR20164F8 A9 H & {T)
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei TR 4 52 4 v v
Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence BX R4 v v
Mr. Xian Shunxiang B 5 A v v
(appointed on 9 August, 2016 and (20168 A9H LI

resigned on 4 January, 2017)

R2017%1 A4HBT)
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TtEERRE (B

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 2011 and its current members
include:

Mr. Leung Kwai Kei (Chairman)
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei
Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence

The Board considers that each Audit Committee member has broad
commercial experience and there is a suitable mix of expertise in accounting,
business and legal on the Audit Committee. The composition and members
of the Audit Committee complies with the requirements under Rule 3.21 of
the Listing Rules. The new written terms of reference which describe the
authority and duties of the Audit Committee were adopted in March 2012 to
conform to the provisions of the New CG Code, a copy of which is posted on
the Company’s website.

The Audit Committee meets regularly to review the Group’s financial reporting
and other information to shareholders, the system of internal controls, risk
management and the effectiveness and objectiveness of the audit process.
The Audit Committee also provides an important link between the Board and
the Company’s auditors in matters coming within the scope of its terms of
reference and keeps under review the independence and objectivity of the
auditors.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed internal
controls and financial reporting matters including a review of the accounts for
the year ended 31 December 2016.

During the year under review, two Audit Committee meetings were held and
the individual attendance of each member is set out below:
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Number of attendance

Name of director EEHE B R #
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei B 4 5 4 2/2
Mr. So Wing Keung (resigned since 9 August, 2016) ERoKog ST 4 (FA2016F8 A9 R B (T) 2/2
Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence BXEAE 2/2
Mr. Xian Shunxiang (appointed on 9 August, 2016 and L IIBFE %& 4 (A 2016 E8 A9 F1E N/A
resigned on 4 January, 2017) 201761 A4 BB ) A iE A
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Remuneration Committee was established in 2011 and its current
members include:

Mr. Leung Kwai Kei (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Xiaolong
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei

All members of the Remuneration Committee are independent non-executive
directors. The Remuneration Committee advises the Board on the Group’s
overall policy and structure for the remuneration of directors and senior
management. The Remuneration Committee ensures that no director or any
of his associate is involved in deciding his own remuneration. The new terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee were adopted in March 2012 to
conform to the provisions of the New CG Code, a copy of which is posted on
the Company’s website.

In determining the emolument payable to directors, the Remuneration
Committee takes into consideration factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and the desirability
of performance-based remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee has met during the year to determine the policy
for the remuneration of directors and assess performance of executive
directors and certain senior management. During the year under review, one
Remuneration Committee meetings were held and the individual attendance
of each member is set out below:
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Number of attendance

Name of director EENS R #
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei TR 4 58 4 11
Mr. So Wing Keung (resigned since 9 August, 2016) &R ok 38 7t 4 (72016 F8 A9 H B T) 171
Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence B EAE 1/
Mr. Wang Xialong (appointed on 9 August, 2016) FEES A (R20165F8 A9H L) N/A
A~ iE A

Mr. Xian Shunxiang (appointed on 9 August, 2016 HNERE 4 (B 20168 A9R LI N/A
and resigned on 4 January, 2017) R2017F1 4 8 & 1T) TiE A

BREEZERABRLE —B-RFFH

23



Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRE (HE)

Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the fee payable to the Company’s
external auditor in respect of audit and non-audit services provided to the
Company and its subsidiaries is set out below:

¥ BB % BN

REE2016F12831BIEFE > AR A &
EMBRARERENFT RIEEFTIRGE R A
NANEZESMENNERHI T -

HK$’000
FHExT
Audit services EET BRI 2,492
Non-audit services IEEET RS 616
3,108
NOMINATION COMMITTEE REZES
The Nomination Committee was established in March 2012 and its current 2R ZE B @ R2012F3 A - G E B ¢
members include:
Mr. Zhao John Huan (Chairman) BT E(EE)
Mr. Leung Kwai Kei RERESE
Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence B hAE

The majority members are independent non-executive directors. The
Nomination Committee has the duty of reviewing annually the board structure
and composition.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee were adopted in March
2012 to confirm to the provision of the New CG Code, a copy of which is
posted on the Company’s website.

In recommending candidates for appointment to the Board, the Nomination
Committee will consider candidates objectively with due regards to the
diversity. Diversity of the Board will be considered from a number of
perspectives, including but not limited to age, gender, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, as well as other attributes and
strengths that relate to the Company’s business model and specific needs
from time to time. The recommendations of the Nomination Committee will
report formally to the Board for decision.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

S EEARE (R)

The Nomination Committee has met during the year to approve and adoptits IRZEZE @O RNAFEHRCUBBEMNAEE
terms of reference. During the year under review, one Nomination Committee  FE Bt #E&iE - REEEE XN £ BH —KIEX
meetings were held and the individual attendance of each member is setout ZE8 @ &% &L @RI E & H FE 15 0 & 5
below: I
Number of attendance
Name of director BEEpng R E
Ms. Wai Siu Kee (resigned since 9 August, 2016) HLBE L (R2016F8 A9H B E) 1/1
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei (resigned since 9 August, 2016) BSR4 45 4 (201648 B9 H BH(E) 11
Mr. So Wing Keung (resigned since 9 August, 2016) FRok g st 4 (201648 A9 H B fT) 0/1
Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence BEEE 01
Mr. Zhao John Huan (appointed on 9 August, 2016) LB A (R2016F8 A9H EF) N/A
i@ A
Mr. Xian Shunxiang (appointed on 9 August, 2016 and BB % 4 (R 2016 F8 A9 H IR N/A
resigned on 4 January, 2017) 201791 B4 A B {T) i A
BOARD DIVERSITY BExEs it
During the year, the Company continued to monitor the board composition R R AR #BEREESHK N Z TIL

with regard to its diversity policy which requires board appointments to be
made based on merit and candidates to be considered against an objective
In order to maintain an appropriate mix and
balance of talent, skills, experience and background on the Board, the

criteria, including diversity.

Nomination Committee developed measurable objectives to implement this
policy and monitored progress towards achieving these objectives during the
year ended 31 December 2016.

The current board composition was also evaluated by reference to, among
other things, the age, gender, cultural and educational background and
professional experience of each director, against the Company’s business
model and specific needs.

The directors of the Company believes diversity is important to enhance the
Board’s effectiveness by encouraging a diversity of perspectives and to
maintain high standards of corporate governance. The directors of the
Company will continue to monitor and develop new objectives for
implementing and achieving improved diversity on the Board as and when it
considers appropriate with regard to the specific needs of the Company and
the market from time to time.

B ZREXEKZEZSCZATUBAEST A
RE| WAZ T ERBEHEERES AE
HZE2016F12A31BILLFE  RRLESE

BHBENSRE HE - ERNEZ2HEAR
TE BFRIVAGEEERENEE EMRBE I
ERENEBHBEIRNERE -

ARARNH2EBEBRESNFER MR B
R HEESURBEELRE I E BEAR
AMEBEARARTRIXRTEETSH
MK o

KAREETRE ZULBEREANEBH TR
BETER SRAZSSTUERESR
KEGCEERZHUEE - AR A ESHESE
HEAQRRMMHBTEHONAEE R EER
AEEEERERRIVHBEEZ BUHTR
ERETENZ LML
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TtEERRE (B

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for the system of internal controls of the
Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. The Board is committed to
implementing an effective and sound internal controls system to safeguard
the interest of shareholders and the Group’s assets. The Board has delegated
to executive management the implementation of the system of internal
controls and reviewing of all relevant financial, operational, compliance
controls and risk management function within an established framework.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, had conducted annual review of
the effectiveness of the internal controls system of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2016. Members of the management team are required
to confirm the effectiveness of the system of the internal controls of their
responsible areas during the year. The Board believes that, in the absence of
any evidence to the contrary, the system of internal controls maintained by
the Group throughout the year ended 31 December 2016, provides
reasonable assurance against material financial misstatements or loss,
including the safeguarding of assets, the maintenance of proper accounting
records, the reliability of financial information, compliance with appropriate
legislation and regulation, and the identification and containment of business
risks. The Board confirmed the effectiveness of the internal controls system
and no significant areas of concern have been identified, and considered the
system effective and adequate.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. So Wai Yin has been engaged by the Company as its company secretary.
The company secretary confirmed that he undertook no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training and relevant updates during the year ended 31
December 2016.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The directors are responsible for the preparation of accounts for each
financial period which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. In preparing the
accounts for the year ended 31 December 2016, the directors have selected
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently; adopted
appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Hong Kong
Accounting Standards; made adjustments and estimates that are prudent
and reasonable; and have prepared the accounts on the going concern basis.
The directors are also responsible for keeping proper accounting records
which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Group.

BEST FOOD HOLDING COMPANY LIMITED  Annual Report 2016
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Company has only one class of shares. All shares have the same voting
rights and are entitled to the dividend declared. The rights of the shareholders
of the Company (“Shareholders”) are set out in Company’s articles of
association.

Shareholders of the Company can: () convene an extraordinary general
meeting; (ii) forward enquiries to the board of directors; (i) forward proposals
at shareholders’ meetings and (iv) nominate Directors for election. Details of
relevant procedures are available on the Company’s website.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION

The Board is committed to providing clear and full information about the
Group’s performance to shareholders through the publication of interim
results and annual results in a timely manner. In addition to dispatching
circulars, notices and financial reports to shareholders, additional information
is also available to shareholders on the website of the Company.

The annual general meeting provides a useful platform for shareholders to
raise comments and exchange views with the Board. Shareholders are
encouraged to attend annual general meetings for which the Company gives
at least 21 days’ notice. The Chairman and Directors and external auditors
are available to answer questions on the Company’s businesses at the
meeting.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the annual general meeting on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual directors. In
addition, poll voting procedure is included in the circular to shareholders
dispatched together with the annual report.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional documents
for the year ended 31 December 2016.

S EEARE (R)
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEEEHN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. ZHAO John Huan, aged 54, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Group, is the chairman and the chief executive officer of Hony Capital
Limited (“Hony Capital”), a private equity firm in the People’s Republic of
China. Mr. Zhao also serves as Executive Vice President of Hony Capital’s
sponsor firm, Legend Holdings Corporation (HKSE: 3396), the parent
company of Lenovo Group Limited (HKSE: 0992). Mr. Zhao also serves on
the boards of Lenovo Group Limited, China Glass Holdings Limited (HKSE:
3300), Zoomlion Heavy Industry Science and Technology Co., Ltd. (SZSE:
000157, HKSE: 1157), Shanghai Chengtou Holding Co., Ltd. (SSE: 600649)
and Shanghai Jin Jiang International Hotels Development Co., Ltd. (SSE:
600754 (A Shares) and 900934 (B Shares)). Mr. Zhao was also a non-
executive director of Chinasoft International Ltd (HKSE: 0354) between July
2011 and April 2015, an executive director of CSPC Pharmaceutical Group
Limited (HKSE: 1093) between December 2008 and May 2015, a non-
executive director of New China Life Insurance Company Ltd (HKSE: 1336)
between November 2012 to March 2015, a non-executive director of Wumart
Stores, Inc. (HKSE: 1025 before withdrawal of its listing in January 2016)
between November 2009 to June 2014, a director of Fiat Industrial S.p.A., a
company listed on MTA ltalian Stock Exchange between January 2011 to
September 2013, a non-executive Director of New China Life Insurance
Company Ltd. (HKSE: 1336) between November 2012 to March 2015, a
director of Jiangsu Phoenix Publishing & Media Corporation Limited (SSE:
601928) between June 2009 to June 2012 and a non-executive director of
Hospital Corporation China Limited (HKSE: 3869) since March 2016. Mr.
Zhao holds an MBA degree from the Kellogg School of Management at
Northwestern University and dual Master’s degrees in Electronic Engineering
and Physics from Northern lllinois University.

Mr. WANG Xiaolong, aged 41, an Executive Director of the Group, is
currently the managing director of Hony Capital. Mr. XL Wang joined Hony
Capital in 2004 and has been consistently focusing on investment in the
consumer and retail sector since then, with a particular emphasis on
subsectors such as retail, food and beverage, chain restaurant, apparel, etc..
Mr. XL Wang holds directorships in Anhui Commercial Capital Co., Ltd. (NEEQ:
835433), Sichuan Lessin Department Store Co., Ltd. (NEEQ: 833860) and
Guangdong Coagent Electronics S&T Co., Ltd. (NEEQ: 833323). Mr. XL
Wang holds a Tsinghua-MIT Joint MBA degree from Tsinghua University and
a bachelor’s degree in engineering from Shanghai Jiao Tong University.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management (continued)

Mr. WANG Yuanzheng, aged 35, an Executive Director of the Group, joined
Hony Capital in 2011 and is currently vice president of Hony Capital. Mr. YZ
Wang has been focusing on investment in the consumer and retail sector
since then. Prior to joining Hony Capital, Mr. YZ Wang worked as an
associate director in the investment banking department at UBS Securities.
Mr. YZ Wang holds a Master’s degree in Financial Mathematics from
Kaiserlautern University and a bachelor’'s degree in Pure and Applied
Mathematics from Tsinghua University.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Leung Kwai Kei, aged 54, an Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Group, has over 25 years of work experience in the food and beverage
industry and retail industry in Hong Kong and China. Before joining the
Company, Mr. Leung worked in McDonald’s Restaurants (HK) Limited and
McDonald’s China Company Limited from 1988 to 2012, and used to play
managerial roles in various departments. In 2012, Mr. Leung joined Walmart
China Company Limited as the senior vice president of business development
department responsible for its business development. Since 2014, Mr. Leung
has been working in Regus Property (Shanghai) Company Limited as the
country manager. Mr. Leung holds a Master of Management degree from
Macquarie University and a Bachelor of Economics degree from the University
of Sydney. He is a qualified certified practising accountant in ASPCA of
Australia.

Mr. HENG Victor Ja Wei, aged 39, an Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Group. He is a partner of Morison Heng, Certified Public Accountants.
He holds a master of science degree of the Imperial College of Science,
Technology and Medicine, the University of London. He is a member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Heng serves as an
independent non- executive director in China Fire Safety Enterprise Group
Limited (Stock Code: 0445), Matrix Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1005) and
Lee & Man Chemical Company Limited (Stock Code: 0746). He also serves
as the company secretary and authorized representative of China Life
Insurance Company Limited (Stock Code: 2628).

Mr. TSANG Hin Man Terence, aged 54, an Independent Non- Executive
Director of the Group. He was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1993
and he is currently the sole proprietor of Tsang & Co., H.M. Mr. Tsang
obtained a bachelor’s degree in science from the University College London,
the University of London. He also holds a bachelor’s degree in law from the
University of Westminster, United Kingdom. Mr. Tsang serves as an
independent non-executive director in Differ Group Holding Company Limited
(Stock Code: 8056), China Investment and Finance Group Limited (Stock
Code:1226) and as an non-executive director in Winto Group (Holdings)
Limited (Stock Code: 8238).
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management (continued)

EENEREEEH N ()

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. JING Shen, aged 37, Chief Financial Officer of the Group, joined the
Company in November 2016. From April 2014 to October 2016, Mr. Jing
held the position of chief executive officer at Beijing Niologie Commercial and
Trading Co., Ltd. In 2008, Mr. Jing joined Hony Capital In 2008 and was
eventually promoted to vice president. Mr. Jing obtained a Master’s degree in
Business Administration from China Europe International Business School in
February 2008 and a bachelor’'s degree from Beijing Foreign Studies
University in July 2002.

Mr. XIAN Shunxiang, aged 51, Chief Operating Officer of the Group, was
the vice president of Cosmo Lady (China) Holdings Company Limited (HKSE:
2298) and responsible for their retail operations. From May 2008 to October
2011, Mr. Xian held the position of chief operating officer at Real Kung Fu
Catering Management Co., Ltd.. In 1990, Mr. Xian joined McDonald’s
(Shenzhen) Limited as one of the trainee managers and was eventually
promoted to operations director. Mr. Xian graduated from China Europe
International Business School, Shanghai, upon finishing the China Europe
Leadership Development of Senior Level Programme in January 2010. He
obtained a college degree in Chinese from Shenzhen Institute of Education,
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province in July 1988.

Mr. So Wai Yin, aged 42, Company Secretary of the Group, has over 18
year experience in financial reporting, management accounting, auditing, tax
planning and regulatory compliance, treasury, corporate finance and
Company Secretarial practice of listed companies. Prior to joining Hony
Capital in September 2008, Mr. So worked as the Qualified Accountant and
Company Secretary at Golden Resorts Group Limited (now known as
Kingston Securities Limited, HKSE: 1031) where he was overseeing overall
financial control and reporting functions, treasury, corporate finance, and
regulatory compliance matters. Before joining Kingston, Mr. So worked in
Deloitte where he engaged in audit assignments for various public/private
companies and leading several Initial Public Offer (IPO) projects. Mr. So is a
Certified Public Accountant of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountant and a Fellow Member of Association of Chartered Certified
Accountant.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management (continued)

Mr. Zhao Shen, aged 67, Chairman of HHG. In 1968, Zhao Shen had been
to the Great Northern Wilderness, stationed troops and reclaimed and
safeguarded the border regions for more than ten years; in 1982 entered the
Beijing Second Steel Rolling Mil. In February 1988, Zhao Shen took up the
post of elevator factory director in Shougang Group. On July 1st. 1996, Zhao
Shen took up the post of general manager of Beijing Yoshinoya Fast Food
Co., Ltd.. In 2004, Zhao Shen founded Beijing HeHeGu Catering Service
Management Co., Ltd., determined to inherit traditional Chinese food culture,
and explore the model of double-kitchen, to achieve the standardization of
“Chinese People Fast Food”. He has successively won the titles of “Shougang
Labor Model”, “Top Ten Factory Director of Beijing”, “Labor Medal of National
May 17, “Beijing Excellent Socialism Constructor of Chinese Characteristics”,
“Beijing Outstanding Communist”, “Chinese Catering Industry Outstanding
Entrepreneur”, “Chinese restaurant industry annual top ten figures” and other
honors. Nowadays, Zhao Shen is the vice president of China Cuisine
Association, the Chairman of the Professional Committee of Chinese Cuisine
Fast Food, and the Chairman of HeHeGu Catering Service Management Co.,
Ltd..

Mr. Zhao Jingjing, aged 35, Chief Manager of HHG. Zhao Jingjing joined
HeHeGu company in 2007, and started at the bottom. He has been working
in Marketing, Operation , R&D Department successively, and accumulated
Plentiful experience of marketing, operation management, product design
and development, informationization construction, establishing new model
etc.. In October 2015, Zhao Jingjing was appointed Chief Manager. He has
been rated as “Excellent Friends of Workers”, “The Best Emerging Enterpriser
of Chinese Food Industry”. He is also committee, CPPCC member.
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Directors’ Report
EEERE

The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company
on 21 November 2016 and approved by the Register of Company in Cayman
Islands on 6 December 2016, the name of the Company was changed from
Lee & Man Handbags Holding Limited ¥ X F4&£E AR /A7) to Best Food
Holding Company Limited & g1k AR A ).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company act as an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

on page 50.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend and propose that
the profit for the year be retained.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme as set out below, the Company has not
entered into any equity-linked agreement during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, the Company’s reserve available for distribution to
shareholders represented the retained profits of HK$7,829,000 (2015:
HK$876,000).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 160 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Zhao John Huan (Chairman)  (appointed on 9 August 2016)
Mr. Wang Xiaolong (appointed on 9 August 2016)
Mr. Wong Yuanzheng (appointed on 9 August 2016)
Ms. Wai Siu Kee (resigned on 9 August 2016)
Mr. Kung Fang, David (resigned on 9 August 2016)
Ms. Lee Man Ching (resigned on 9 August 2016)

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei

Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence

Mr. Xian Shunxiang (appointed on 9 August 2016 and
resigned on 4 January 2017)

(appointed on 4 January 2017)

(resigned on 9 August 2016)

Mr. Leung Kwai Kei
Mr. So Wing Keung

The term of office of each of the independent non-executive directors is the
period up to his retirement as required by the Company’s Articles of
Association.
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EETEHE (&)

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors offering for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
terminable within one year without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES

At 31 December 2016, the interests of the directors and the chief executive of
the Company in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of part XV of the Securities
and Future Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were as follows:

EEZBRBEN

BEXRERERRAFAS LEREENES
BARBRIZAAR —FRAL LM HAN
EEMENIIMEENREES A

EERBMTRARZME R
=)

MR2016F12R31H  ARBI2EEREKTT
BMAERARARISEHBE EZB(EXREBE
PIESEZFRBAEBRITES RBEKR
BI]) EXVER) 2 Bty - B R EREEF
HARERARBRIBEEFH K HE &H) 55352
BEGFEzE MR KREEBES
RHGFERAR (R FESFLEMBRAA L
THRBD) K E10FTE L EITAESFEITE
ARG EBEETFA(ZRESFADAESITAE
KA Rz E=ET

Percentage of

Number of the issued

issued ordinary share capital of

Name of director Capacity shares held the Company
e BT L NI £y

EEnR 55 ZRERHEE BRAB DL
Mr. Zhao John Huan Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1) 1,701,520,440 206.24%

LB MNEEEE 2 #Ewm (1)
Note:
1. Sonic Tycoon Limited is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of Fortune Eight Alps

Limited, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Hony Capital Fund VIl (Cayman),
L.P., an exempted limited partnership managed by Hony Capital Fund VIIIl GP
(Cayman), L.P. (as sole general partner), which is managed by its sole general
partner, Hony Capital Fund VIIl GP (Cayman) Limited, which is wholly owned by
Hony Group Management Limited, which is owned as to 80% by Hony Managing
Partners Limited, which is wholly owned by Exponential Fortune Group Limited,
which is owned as to 49% by Mr. Zhao John Huan.
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Partners Limited # A Hony Group Management
Limited 80% #& = ° Hony Managing Partners Limited
i Exponential Fortune Group Limited & & # & -
i 8 < B % 4 ¥ A Exponential Fortune Group
Limited 49% 4 &= °



ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

The directors of the Company were entitled to participate in a share option
scheme adopted by Lee & Man Chemical Company Limited (the “LM Share
Option Scheme”), details of which are set out in Lee & Man Chemical
Company Limited’s annual report for the year ended 31 December 2016. No
share option was granted under the LM Share Option Scheme since its
inception.

In addition, on 18 May 2011, the Company has also adopted a share option
scheme (the “Handbag Share Option Scheme”) in which the Company’s
directors and employees are entitled to participate, details of which are set
out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements. No share option was
granted under the Handbag Share Option Scheme since its inception.

Save as above, during the year neither the Company, its holding company
nor any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2016, shareholders (other than directors and chief executive
of the Company) who had interests and short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which have been disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company
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Percentage of

Number of the issued

issued ordinary share capital of

Name of shareholder Capacity shares held the Company

e T (R NN

BRREH g4 ZEREA =l

Exponential Fortune Group Limited Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1) 1,701,520,440 206.24%
Exponential Fortune Group Limited RZEEE 2w (1)
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Percentage of

Number of the issued
issued ordinary share capital of
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held the Company
FEE#T HELRBERT
BRREHE g4 ZEREA BREABDL
Hony Managing Partners Limited Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1) 1,701,520,440 206.24%
Hony Managing Partners Limited R EE (1)
Hony Group Management Limited Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1) 1,701,520,440 206.24%
Hony Group Management Limited NEEEE 2w (1)
Hong Capital Fund VIIl GP (Cayman) Limited  Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1) 1,701,520,440 206.24%
Hong Capital Fund VIl GP (Cayman) Limited RS EEE 2z (M 5E1)
Hony Capital Fund VIII GP (Cayman), L.P. Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1) 1,701,520,440 206.24%
Hony Capital Fund VIIl GP (Cayman), L.P. REZEEE B (MED)
Hony Capital Fund VIl (Cayman), L.P. Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1) 1,701,520,440 206.24%
Hony Capital Fund VIl (Cayman), L.P. MREEE Z #Ez (1)
Fortune Eight Alps Limited Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1) 1,701,520,440 206.24%
Fortune Eight Alps Limited REEEE (1)
Sonic Tycoon Limited Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1) 1,701,520,440 206.24%
EZARRA REEEE 2w (M)
Boardtime International Limited Interest in controlled corporation 79,134,000 9.59%
Boardtime International Limited NEZEEE 2R
City China International Limited Security interest in shares 79,134,000 9.59%
PP BB B R A A 5t #5940 5
Eminence Enterprise Limited Interest in controlled corporation 79,134,000 9.59%

BIUEEBRAA

MEEEEZ
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Notes:

1. Sonic Tycoon Limited is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of Fortune Eight Alps
Limited, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Hony Capital Fund VIII (Cayman),
L.P., an exempted limited partnership managed by Hony Capital Fund VIII GP
(Cayman), L.P. (as sole general partner), which is managed by its sole general
partner, Hony Capital Fund VIIl GP (Cayman) Limited, which is wholly owned by
Hony Group Management Limited, which is owned as to 80% by Hony Managing
Partners Limited, which is wholly owned by Exponential Fortune Group Limited,
which is owned as to 49% by Mr. Zhao John Huan.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended December 31, 2016, following transaction between
the connected person(s) (as defined in the Listing Rules) and the Company
has been entered into for which relevant disclosure had been made by the
Company by way of announcement in compliance with the disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

On September 18, 2016, the Company and Sonic Tycoon Limited (the
“Investor”), a direct substantial shareholder of the Company, entered into an
investment agreement, pursuant to which the Company agreed to issue and
the Investor agreed to subscribe for the convertible bonds in the aggregate
principal amount up to HK$1,500,000,000 for a total consideration equal to
the principal amount of such convertible bonds. The proceeds from issuing
the convertible bonds are intended to be used for the Company’s future
acquisitions in the mass market focused consumables sector including,
without limitation, the food and beverage industry, to diversify the Group’s
business and broaden its income stream.
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In the opinion of the independent non-executive directors, these transactions
entered into by the Group were:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(ii) either (a) on normal commercial terms; or (b) where there was no
available comparison, on terms that were fair and reasonable so far as
the shareholders of the Company were concerned;

(i) either (a) in accordance with the terms of the agreements; or (b) where
there were no such agreements, on terms no less favourable than
those available to or from independent third parties; and

(iv)  within the relevant cap amounts as agreed by the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other transactions which need to be
disclosed as connected transactions in accordance with the requirements of
the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than as disclosed under the heading “Connected Transactions”, no
contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding company or any
of its fellow subsidiaries and subsidiaries was a party and in which a director
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly and indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A review and outlook of the business of the Company and a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year and the material factors
underlying its results and financial position are provided in the Chairman’s
Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis respectively from pages
4 to 7 and pages 8 to 16 of this Annual Report.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers comprised approximately 54% of the Group’s total sales and the
sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer were approximately 21% of
the Group’s total sales.

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers were less than 30% of total purchases.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders which, to the
knowledge of the directors, owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital had any interest in the share capital of any of the five largest
customers of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles of
Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-
executive directors are independent.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
directors and eligible employees. Details of the scheme are set out in note 33
to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float throughout the year ended 31 December 2016.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and
senior management arising out of corporate activities. The permitted
indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required by
the provisions of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong).
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AUDITOR =2 Em

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche A EHEADLKCHEE e B =MF 5 @ ETEITT
Tohmatsu who will retire as the auditor of the Company with effect from the  F4% - H ¥R E AR S EE - BIREFBAE K

conclusion of the AGM. SERBER -

On behalf of the Board REXEEZ=Z

Mr. Zhao John Huan TE

CHAIRMAN HLEEE

Hong Kong, 28 March 2017 BB 20173 A28H
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR

Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF BEST FOOD HOLDING COMPANY LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS LEE & MAN HANDBAGS HOLDING LIMITED)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Best Food Holding
Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) set out on pages 50 to 159, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of & -
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit

Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
B % BT R & ()

BEENSEE

MRBAFEFEDREBEAZEMITHEEH
REHAREEMBRRNEARASE
EWNER  BLEFTHEDENZHAEMITENE

of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our &AM BHELRHEZ REHETEIER

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters

RREETEHE

AZHEMTTEHELEREREBNER -

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

FRHMTETETRNAEERARETEH

Impairment assessment on trademark and goodwill in relation to the acquisition of subsidiaries

W BB B A R oz P AR B B RO RLE RT

We identified the impairment assessment on trademark and
goodwill in relation to the acquisition of subsidiaries as
disclosed in note 42 as a key audit matter due to the
significance of the amounts concerned to the consolidated
financial statements, and the complexity and the judgement
exercised by the Group’s management in the impairment
assessment on trademark and goodwiill.

RZHAMITE #AM T2 ERERENB AR 2 EER
FEMREFGEREARESFE DHRARGA UK
HREP P hkEAeHE ESEEEERETEEREA
BORUE R4 I BT 5 B B9 48 S 1 K I B AT B -

Our procedures in relation to the impairment assessment on

trademark and goodwill in relation to the acquisition of

subsidiaries included:
AZEMTERBRKBEMNBARRELEEREFENRES
B

° Understanding the impairment assessment of trademark
and goodwill in relation to the acquisition of subsidiaries
performed by the Group, including the valuation model
adopted and key assumptions used;

s THREBESEEMETWEARKBZEELEE
WERL  BEMAFEAZHERE RFEZ/RK

° Assessing the reasonableness of the impairment
assessment performed by the Group, including the value
in use, and the terminal growth rate and discount rate
used;

e HHESEMETRENGZAREYE BREEAE
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
B % B A ()

Key audit matters

RREETSEHE

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

FERHMTETETRNAEERARETSH

Impairment assessment on trademark and goodwill in relation to the acquisition of subsidiaries

W B8 B B 2 B oz 7 AR B B RO R ELRT 1

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements,
the acquisition of the HHG Group (as defined in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements) has been accounted for
using the purchase method under which the trademark was
purchased as part of the acquisition and the goodwill arose on
acquisition of the HHG Group. In determining whether goodwiill
and trademark are impaired at each reporting date requires an
estimation of the value in use of the CGU in the food and
beverage investment business management segment
belonging to the HHG Group. The value in use is determined
based on the cash flow forecast for the CGU discounted to its
present value and requires the use of key assumptions
including the future cash flows, terminal growth rate and
discount rate, taking into account the key assumptions used
by the independent professional valuer appointed by the
Group for the valuation performed on the acquisition date, the
financial budgets approved by the management, past
performance and management's expectations for the market
development.

MR E VB RRMFIMERE  WEANEAEE (EXR
RIGE M B MR EI) B FERRBIEAR B - AE
DEASWEN —HOBE MKBNaASEAELR
B-RNErFSREAHNFELBERSHRIRER
FEMGBERNMEAEBE CERREEBERE D MHR
CEABUZERBE CREENEREREELSE
UHFREERBEz2ReRERAEE UFTEEREE
BE BEARRERE  ZRERERFRE - 59 E
BRESEMZABYEXHEMBENKERBETHE
FFAZEERRX BEEMACZCHEREE BEXRBR
EREHMSER A -

Based on the assessment made by the Group, the
management of the Group considers that no impairment was
identified on the trademark and goodwill as at 31 December
2016.

RZRESEELD 2N EXEBEEEERR  R20165F
12 431 B I £ 5t i 12 KR 7 2 # A EADRE -

BEST FOOD HOLDING COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2016

Assessing the reasonableness of future cash flows
expected to arise from the CGU based on the historical
results of the HHG Group, the approved financial budgets,
and the available industry and market data; and
RRNEASEZBERES KHEVHRBBENA KA
MSTHEEMSEE  FHEAEEReEASENE
EZARRBEEREZEEM K

Assessing whether the disclosures of the impairment
assessment in the consolidated financial statements are
sufficient and appropriate.
AERETERGEEVBREACEEESERRERE
-

=2' o

==]



Key audit matters

RREETSEHE

Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
B % BT R & ()

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

FERHMTETEIRNAEERRETSH

Valuation of investments in associates

REE QA RRENMBE

We identified the valuation of investments in associates as
disclosed in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements
as a key audit matter due to the significance of the amounts
concerned to the consolidated financial statements, and the
complexity and the judgement exercised by the Group's
management in valuation of the investments in associates.
RIZEEITE BRI E M B HRER W19 RBREEE D
AIRENGERBREFFE  DHNERGS M B R
KESRERSH REEEEEEBEEETHE AR
B LB R P78 B B9 %8 S 1 Ko I B P 2R -

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements,
in determining whether the interests in associates are impaired
at each reporting date requires an estimation of the
recoverable amount of the associates. The recoverable
amounts of the associates were determined based on the
values in use calculations with the key assumptions including
the future cash flows expected to arise from the associates,
terminal growth rates and discount rates, taking into account
the key assumptions used by the independent professional
valuer appointed by the Group for the valuations performed on
the corresponding acquisition dates, the financial budgets
approved by the associates' directors, past performance and
associates' directors' expectations for the market
development.

WMANARE MR 4T B BE - NE WS B B E R B
ERR RS HBRER H%WM“TZTW@
TR -BEARZAMO BN RERBEGHE WK
BEERRKRETE aﬁﬁ%%@%é@??iZ*Xﬁ
PRE BRAEBRERFREX -BEhEE BEEEMZE
EBLEXRGEMSANEREKE R BETHEMRZE
ERF BMERAEEHECHBIEE  BAERR KK
ERREFHMBHRE AN -

Based on the assessment made by the Group, no impairment
loss on the associates was recognised as at 31 December
2016

EREEBEATEL N - R2016F12 A 31 B I £ 5t B
%@ﬂﬁmﬂ@%%“

Our procedures in relation to assessing the valuation of
investments in associates included:

AZBMITERNGEBEQRRREGENREFERE

o Understanding the impairment assessment of the
investments performed by the Group, including the
valuation models adopted and key assumptions used;

. THREMESBEMET ZREMER G BFEAERM
ZEER R FERE

° Assessing the reasonableness of the impairment
assessment performed by the Group, including the values
in use, and the terminal growth rates and discount rates
used; and

o A ESBAETRENGEZEEE
B FASRKERERFTRE R

BREERE

o Assessing the reasonableness of future cash flows
expected to arise from the associates based on the
historical results of the associates, the financial budgets
prepared by the associates’ directors and the available
industry and market data.

e REMEQTRIZATRE BEATEFTHREZHMEK
TEH LA R AT ERAG 17 35 I 1 35 808 - T TR BA A% B Bk
NAEEZARBEEREZAE -
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
B % B A ()

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accepts liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

B REERE (&)

BRBERETREUBBRRERE
2B

ARBMITNER DHEAMBRRER
EE T FEANKFRERMERNERE
REGLERE A ERE - L HE S A & B
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AZEMITHENRTBIERNRE  ER B
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BETAREEMAR NERBEMTHTH
ARENAET  HEMEMALTE RS FE
BEf-aEREBERSKFINRE BTRERE
BREBEFENETHNES EX—EX
R FER AR HE - BRI AR
MAFRIERSE  MREERHAEMEZX
ERERAEYEGEVBRRERE KA
ARIAFT R B AR E - BIIE B RO 85 AR R At
ARAREER -
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
B % B A ()

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
B % BT R & ()

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor's H E A B I ZBMBENESBEEESE AL

report is Ip Chiu Yin. LR o

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu EH e BERAH BT
Certified Public Accountants HZ AN

Hong Kong BB

28 March 2017 201743 A28 H
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

REREREMERRER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z=2016F12H31H ILF[E

2015
Notes HK$’'000
B 5 T T
Revenue A 586 658,797
Cost of sales IR0 N (465,284)
Gross profit £ 7 193,513
Other income HAb YA 4,000
Other gains and losses Hab s R Esia 7 (569)
Distribution and selling expenses 738 R IHE KA (68,019)
General and administrative expenses —METHRAX (121,686)
Share of loss of associates eI B = A R E1E 19 —
Finance costs & KA 8 (1,724)
Profit before taxation B %% A1 g 15,523
Income tax expense FTS 8= i 9 (5,510
Profit for the year F A=A 10 10,013
Profit for the year attributable to: F A e N BB R
Owners of the Company ViN/NETE F =N 10,013
Non-controlling interest FE 12 AR HE R =
10,013
Other comprehensive income (expense) Hizmzs ()
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: T & E#f P B E 8w 2B A -
Remeasurement of defined benefit assets BMEECREN=EE 280
Item that may be reclassified subsequentlyto B Z At @ B D E B2 2
profit or loss: EH :
Exchange differences arising on translation BB BN TS T = 4 A BB
of foreign operations HZE® (1,976)
Other comprehensive expense for the year FREME2ES H (1,696)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRAEMMBHEBEE 8,317
Total comprehensive income for the year FRNEEBNELRERBER
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE7 R =N 8,317
Non-controlling interests FE 12 AR =
8,317
Earnings per share (HK cents) — basic BRAF GBI — ER 12 1.21
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR R

At 31 December 2016 72016412 831H

2016 2015
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B 7 FHET FAT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE MK 15 61,863
Prepaid lease payments FEEERIE 16 33,856
Investment properties AW * 17 29,816
Interests in associates REEE QA 2 = 19 —
Goodwill (RS 20 —
Intangible assets mILEE 21 x
Derivative financial instrument fTESmTE 24 <
Other receivable from a former subsidiary BT B A 7] < H fib FE YL 3R 38 —
Other asset Hip &= 395
Deferred tax assets RIETIH & = 30 2,921
Deposits paid for the acquisition of BEVE BEEARKEZ
property, plant and equipment EfET & 2,354
Rental and utility deposits HEBRKEEZF] & =
Defined benefit assets AEMNREE 36 4,697
Prepayment for equity investments TET AR IR & K —
135,902
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 18 73,508
Prepaid lease payments A ERIA 16 864
Trade and other receivables FEUE 5 I H fh 518 23 99,202
Amount due from an associate JiE U Bt = R B 3R IB 28 -
Tax recoverable G qER R 907
Other financial assets Hih &g & E 24 -
Bank balances and cash IRITHER MRS 25 308,576
483,057
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and other payables BN E 5 Kk E A5k 26 69,954
Amount due to a related party FEA A& 5 518 31 1,371
Amount due to a related company JE 5T B 3 A Bl 5RIA 27 162
Derivative financial instruments TETRTA 24 1,284
Tax payable JFE S B TE 2,058
74,814
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 408,243
ERERARAT —B-AFFH
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

& B R OR & ()

At 31 December 2016 12016412 831H

2016 2015
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B = THET FAT
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BREERRBES
CURRENT LIABILITIES 544,145
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities FIETIEE & 30 —
Deferred government grants iR FE BT 4 B 29 -
Loan from a related party R B 31 260,000
260,000
NET ASSETS EERE 284,145
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EARRRE
Share capital % 7 32 82,500
Reserves & 201,645
Equity attributable to owners of the Company N2 Al A A JE(E fE 25 284,145
Non-controlling interests FEIERR R = =
Total equity 1B 284,145

The consolidated financial statements on pages 50 to 159 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2017 and are
signed on its behalf by:

Zhao John Huan
HLE
Chairman

]
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FOEEFEIOEFMHZHEAUBRERERN
2017F3ABAREZS BB RIEERNE I
MTIIEEREREE:

Wang Xiaolong
FEE
Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REEREBR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z=2016F 123310 L F[E

Non- Asset Non-
Share distributable revaluation Translation Special Accumulated controlling
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interest Total
ALK BEER FER
TS & #E  ENRE KIRE  RiEF Ch i £ Ch

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEL TET THEL TEL THEL TEL TET THEL

(Note iii) (Note i) (Note ii)

(P i) UED) (B &)
At 1 January 2015 R2015%F1A1R 82,500 864 6,641 4121 (38,562) 228,514 284,078 — 284,078
Profit for the year F N Al = = - - - 10,013 10,013 - 10,013
Remeasurement of defined benefit BENEE LR TN

assets BE = - - - - 280 280 - 280
Exchange differences of foreign RgeEBNEBM

operations arising on translation EENELES = - - (1,976) - - (1,976) - (1,976)
Total comprehensive (expense) income 4 (A 2 T8 (X ) W25

for the year fakl - — - (1,976) — 10,293 8,317 - 8,317
Dividends recognised as distributions B #3245 & 2 I &

(note 11) (Bt aE11) - - - - - (8,250) (8,250) - (8,250)
Transfer to non-distributable reserve 8 AR AI 9 IR 5 - 154 - - - (154) - - -
At 31 December 2015 R2015%F 12 A31H 82,500 1,018 6,641 2,145 (38,562) 230,403 284,145 — 284,145
Profit for the year 4 {35 Fil = = = = = 15,868 15,368 1,359 17,227
Remeasurement of defined benefit BENEEZRAENR

assets BE = - - - - 403 403 - 403
Exchange differences arising on R E G ERT

translation of foreign operations EENERZE - — - (7,487) — - (7,487) 1,271) (8,758)
Total comprehensive (expense) income & A2 H (3 1) Yz

for the year ek - - - (7,487) - 16,271 8,784 88 8,872
Deemed contribution from the BIEERERDT

immediate holding company A — - - — 7,020 — 7,020 - 7,020
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 42) W Ea KB A A

(FtE42) = = = - - - - 55,142 55,142
Transfer to non-distributable reserve A R 9 ik & - 124 — — — (124) = = —
At 31 December 2016 R2016%E 12 A31H 82,500 1,142 6,641 (5,342) (31,542 246,550 299,949 55,230 355,179
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)
REERBER(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F 12831 B ILFE

Notes:

(i)

(i)

The asset revaluation reserve represents the increase in revaluation arising from
the owner-occupied properties becoming to investment properties prior to 1
January 2008.

The special reserve of the Group represents:

(@) the difference between the nominal value of the share capital issued by
Lee & Man Development Limited (‘LM Development”) and the nominal
amount of the share capital of subsidiaries acquired by it pursuant to a
group organisation in 1993;

(b) the difference between the nominal value of the share capital of a
subsidiary, LM Development, acquired pursuant to a group reorganisation
in June 2011 and the nominal value of the share capital issued by the
Company;

() the expenses borne by shareholders for the listing of the Company; and

(d) a deemed contribution from the immediate holding company arising from
a put option which the Company has the right to issue convertible bonds
to the immediate holding company, the details of which are disclosed in
note 24(j) to the consolidated financial statements.

According to the relevant laws in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”),
wholly foreign-owned enterprises in the PRC are required to transfer at least 10%
of their net profits after taxation, as determined under the PRC accounting
regulations, to a non distributable reserve fund until the reserve balance reaches
50% of their registered capital. The transfer to this reserve must be made before
the distribution of a dividend to equity owners. The non-distributable reserve fund
can be used to offset the previous years’ losses, if any. The non-distributable
reserve fund is non-distributable other than upon liquidation.

BEST FOOD HOLDING COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2016

GEX

(il

(iii)

EEEHEEBE2IEN2008F1 18R - B8
REEMESE R EMEML NN EGGH
ﬁo

REE 2RI

@ BEXERARAA(EXER])DET
B 7 T M B2 AR 5 &= B N 1993 4 B A P
WEZZHMBARZKRAEEZ =
'

o) BEEBR2011FE6ABEHETKEZ—
MHBARENER R AEEER
ARIEEITRAMEZ Z5

© BMARBLETHEBERAEZEZAX: K

0 ZAAGBEERNEEZERARETAR
RESFzRBEARELEBRIEEEZER
RENEE  FEHBERERS WIS REK M
5 24() ©

REFEARAMBE(THFEDEBER £
FENNECEAERRD10%Z FRHRIEA
MERFEEHEREE)ETA D RFEE
e BEERBEREIEZIMEARZ250% - &
FEALEEBEARD KBRS TRRESR AR -
THDKFEES I BERHEBEFEEIR
(E) -BRIBFRI TADIKFEEZTNRFTD
K °



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
MERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z=2016F 123310 L F[E

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETH
Profit before taxation B % A & 15,623
Adjustments for: FHEE -
Amortisation of deferred government grants iR IE AT #4 B 4H -
Amortisation of intangible assets A EEH 5
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME BMELREZTE 14,322
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & B A Al s 5
Gain on fair value changes of investment properties & & ¥ 3 A F{E & &) 2 Wz (538)
Interest expenses FESXH 1,724
Interest income FEMA (79)
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and LEYE BELEXBEZEISE
equipment (Y zs) (65)
Loss on fair value changes on derivative financial TESRMITIAANFEES 2 EiE
instruments 1,284
Release of prepaid lease payments i‘,ﬁ NEEXREZED 622
Retirement benefit gain RIRAE A 2 Wz (52)
Reversal of write-down of inventories 17 & R B 3] (3,524)
Share of loss of an associate FEAG B & A RS 18 —
Operating cash flows before movements HEECEPA 2 RKEEB RS
in working capital mE 29,217
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables JET B 5 & B Ath 5RIEHE 0 Ok 2>) (13,920)
Decrease in amount due to a related company J& - B8 3 A B 5RIE R A 61)
Decrease in inventories FERD 1,071
Decrease in rental and utility deposits HEBRKEE ZEZESRD =
Decrease in trade and other receivables FEW B 5 I H fth 3R IE Rk 43,665
Cash generated from operations REEBPREEH® 59,972
Hong Kong Profits Tax (paid) refunded B EBEBFEH 210
Interest paid EENEESS (353)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) paid BB ESH
([EEMEHD (1,136)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETHFFEBSREFHE 58,693
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

SERERERE)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F 12831 B ILFE

2016 2015
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B = TET FAT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Capital injection in associates REEERBNEE 19 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash and IR B A B (F0kR FT 15
cash equivalent acquired RekBELEEY) 42 -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYE - ﬁi}% )SZ 2 & (14,711)
Purchase of prepaid lease payment BEBEMNAERT (12,230)
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant B & ¥ % - K= )32 gl
and equipment EXNEES (2,354)
Prepayment for equity investment TEAT AR IR & FRIB —
Settlement of derivative financial instruments & & 4{T4 £/ T El\ 3)
Advance to an associate BT E QA —
Purchase of intangible assets BEEFEAE —
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash and cash  HE i B A 7 (H k% B S
equivalent disposed ReRBESEED) 43 =
Government grants received B WBUAT 6 B) —
Interest received B B 79
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  BE R&ZE
plant and equipment FT 1S 3k 38 65
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING RETHAERESERE
ACTIVITIES (29,154)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
Bank borrowings raised BEERITHER 21,228
Dividends paid BEAIIRE (8,250)
Loan from a related party BT B 260,000
Repayment of amount due to non-controlling 18 38 & {~f JE 42 I& #E 25 50 I8
interests —
Repayment of bank borrowings BEIRITER (46,947)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING ®&EEZEf(3E)BRE
ACTIVITIES T 226,031
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH BeRRSEENCRD)
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 320 H &8 255,570
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT REDZRERRE
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR Z£EY 53,436
EFFECT OF CHANGES IN EXCHANGE Exggoxe
RATE (430)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RERZRERES
THE END OF THE YEAR, ZEY
represented by bank balances and cash RITAR KRS 308,576
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

M mARME

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman
Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its parent company is Sonic Tycoon
Limited, whose ultimate holding company and controlling shareholder
is Hony Capital Fund VIII (Cayman), L.P.. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the section “Corporate Information” of the annual report.

The Company changes its name from “Lee & Man Handbags Holding
Limited” to “Best Food Holding Company Limited” and adopted the
Chinese name of “BEIERAERAF]" as the secondary name to
replace “IB X F R EE AR A F)” which has been used for identification
purpose only. The change of name was approved by the shareholders
at the Extraordinary General Meeting and has become effective from 6
December 2016.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities of
its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 39.

The functional currency of the Company is United States dollars (‘USD”),
while the consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK dollars”) as the Company is listed in Hong Kong.

—RER

RARIREBERSHEHE R RNEEEIE
ERASHSFMK LA LETERA
A BERMREBBERISMERA
AR Em - HEARIAREZAE
AT MEKKFRAERZERA A
/& Hony Capital Fund VIl (Cayman) * L.P. °
RAARZAMPBERREZEDEMED
AR FE WA R E R —E#HEE -

R A% H 2 8 i [ Lee & Man Handbags
Holding Limited ] 5 2 /& [ Best Food Holding
Company Limited] * WK 43 F X A TB[ &
BERBRARIAFZZH  LEBRK
EBXFEREBFRAF] - EEHAA
B -FTREBERRIEEINARS LER
FRAtE - WE20165F12 A6 B B AR ©

AARA—MEEERAR  EXBH
BRE 2 EBEH M FES9 ©

ARAMINEEE RET(IET]) - B

RARBRER LT WEKA MR
RIAET (BT 25 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B ER R Y R (AR)

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 #;Z2016F12A31H IEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTSTO 2. ERHIIEEMEHREER

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING ([ERBEREEN]) RIEET
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) Zx
Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily NEEEREEMNET BT
effective for the current year & % B & 5T A<
The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs issued AEBRAFEERAEAUTHESS
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) A ((EFestMAg) BHzE
for the first time in the current year: B SIS ERHERT AN ¢
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of ERMEHREEL WELRLE
Interests in Joint Operations F115% (5T ) REZS & 5k
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative BRI ERFE1R HEEHE
(& 5T 4)
Amendments to HKAS 16 and Clarification of Acceptable Methods EE SR F 1655 &5 HT &= B Y
HKAS 38 of Depreciation and Amortisation EEBEETE] IRl
53858 ({£ 7T A%)
Amendments to HKAS 16 and ~ Agriculture: Bearer Plants BERASERE16R B EEHEY
HKAS 41 REEGTLER
L4158 (1EFTA)
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying the EAMERELERN KEXE: Rp
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Consolidation Exception F£105: - BEPK EHAEG
WmEERIFE125 &
BEAGETER
2858 ({EFT AN)
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs ERMGREEDL  2012F B20144F
2012-2014 Cycle (& 7T A) P B 2 & A B S
s ERFE
g
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B R R M R ()

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various
HKFRSs

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the rate used to discount
post-employment benefit obligations should be determined by
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on high
quality corporate bonds. The assessment of the depth of a market for
high qualify corporate bonds should be at the currency level (i.e. the
same currency as the benefits are to be paid). For currencies for which
there is no deep market in such high quality corporate bonds, the
market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds
denominated in that currency should be used instead.

The application of amendments to HKFRSs has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial performance and position for the current and
prior years and/or the disclosures set out in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

2.

R EREVBEREER
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2012 Z2014F B BB
BBREEAFEIEREYRZ
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B ER R Y R (AR)

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 #;Z2016F12A31H IEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

R EREVBREER
ié%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ&%ﬂ
()

© 78 5 {8 s K 4 BV ¥ 5] B B
ot 5 3R 5 2 B RAEFT A

AEFBVEEFEAATERMER R
AR BTERBRSEINRERT

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

7N
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments' BB HREER ST AT
EI5
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with EBUBHREEL BEEARKAR
Customers and the related F155% HEEE
Amendments'
HKFRS 16 Leases? B EHREAER  HE?
F165%
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of ERMGRELED BOIZIERFH
Share-based Payment F 25 (IBFTAR) SEMTE
Transactions'
Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial EEMBHELER HBEEEHG
Instruments with HKFRS 4 F45 BRI AR) HE LR FE R
Insurance Contracts' SR T AR —
Bt /e A B B 15

WEEAE4HR
REE L

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and ~ Sale or Contribution of Assets EEMEHREER KEEHEAEBE

HKAS 28 between an Investor and its FIOFEREBET HEEREZH
Associate or Joint Venture® 4 BI| 28 28 5% B & E H S sk
(5T A) EAS
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative* BB S ERIFETH HEEEHE
(& 5T 4)
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets HE @t 2BE125 AR EFIREIE
for Unrealised Losses* (=T AK) PR ER IR
BE!
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs EBE B ELR  2014F F2016F
2014-2016 Cycle® CCHEY BE 2 BB
HREEAFE
HUHE®
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 L M2018F1 A1A Sk 2 & MR 2 FE B
e £ 3R
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 2 M2019F1 A1ASk 2 & MR 2 FE 5B
e £ 3R
s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined 2 REETEHRz2ERBZFESHEE
W
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 4 R2017F1 A1k 2 & MK 2 FEH
e £ 3R
s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 or 1 2 R2017F1 A1 8 5201841 A1 8 (&

January 2018, as appropriate BREE) SRR FESEBRAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B R R M R ()

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general hedge
accounting and impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 that are relevant to the Group are:

° in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9 requires
an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit
loss model under HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model
requires an entity to account for expected credit losses and
changes in those expected credit losses at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have
occurred before credit losses are recognised.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk management
policies as at 31 December 2016, application of HKFRS 9 in the future
may have a material impact on the classification and measurement of
the Group’s financial assets. The expected credit loss model may result
in early provision of credit losses which are not yet incurred in relation
to the Group’s financial assets measured at amortised cost.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11
Construction Contracts and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.

2.
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R B ER R Y R (AR)

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 #;Z2016F12A31H IEFE
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

2.

R EREVBREER
ié%ﬂﬂ%iﬁ%ifﬁ—ﬂﬂj)&ﬂ%ﬂ
()

ERAMBRELERFISEIF
FAaRWAlm

BEREBREEREASFOZORA TS
—EAEBERAWRAUBR AR S EE
A EmERGHEE LRREEE
MMz EEmAREMESHHE -

Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue B - 2 RIS A T5FARIERU
recognition: A

o Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer e Fi1N BETE—EAEFHNAR

. Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract e F2H WMEARAMNBHNERR

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

s X3 BEXRHER

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations o BLE  BRSGBEIEBEZERANR
in the contract BB A& 75

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred
to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in
HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued clarifications to HKFRS 15 in relation to the
identification of performance obligations, principal versus agent
considerations, as well as licensing application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of HKFRS
15 in the future may result in more disclosures, however, the directors
of the Company do not anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 will
have a material impact on the timing and amounts of revenue
recognised in the respective reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B R R M R ()

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of
lease arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors and
lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of
whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer. Distinctions of
operating leases and finance leases are removed for lessee accounting,
and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement
of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease
payments, as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst
others. For the classification of cash flows, the Group currently presents
upfront prepaid lease payments as investing cash flows in relation to
leasehold lands for owned use and those classified as investment
properties while other operating lease payments are presented as
operating cash flows. Under the HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation
to lease liability will be allocated into a principal and an interest portion
which will be presented as financing and operating cash flows
respectively.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and continues
to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or a
finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

2.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016, the Group as lessee has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$221,339,000 as disclosed in note
34. A preliminary assessment indicates that these arrangements will
meet the definition of a lease under HKFRS 16, and hence the Group
will recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in
respect of all these leases unless they qualify for low value or short-
term leases upon the application of HKFRS 16. In addition, the
application of new requirements may result changes in measurement,
presentation and disclosure as indicated above. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the financial effect until
the directors complete a detailed review.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments require an entity to provide disclosures that enable
users of consolidated financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities including both changes arising
from cash flows and non-cash changes. Specially, the amendments
require the following changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
to be disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows; (iij changes
arising from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or other business;
(iii) the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair
values; and (v) other changes.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2017 with earlier application permitted. The
application of the amendments will result in additional disclosures on
the Group’s financing activities, specifically reconciliation between the
opening and closing balances in the consolidated statement of financial
position for liabilities arising from financing activities will be provided on
application.

In the opinion of the directors, the application of these amendments will
not result in any impact on the financial performance or financial
position of the Group in these consolidated financial statements, except
for the disclosure of changes arising from obtaining or losing control of
subsidiaries or other businesses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative
(Continued)

Except as described above, the directors of the Company anticipated
that the application of other new and amendments to HKFRSs in issue
but not yet effective will have no material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (“Companies Ordinance”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for investment properties and derivative
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or
liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or
disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial statements is
determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment, leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17
Leases, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but
are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or
value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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Basis of consolidation mERE
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial REEWBERREBESARAUAEBEARAA

statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

AREMBARES 2 ER MK R
RoMSEREEEARARR:

o has power over the investee; o HWREFITEEN
. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement . A £ B & BRHZEBEMESK

with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts

and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control listed above.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (i) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the
owners of the Company. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for
as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities
of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to
another category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.
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68

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination is
measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit
or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to
employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19
Employee Benefits respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the
acquisition date (see the accounting policy below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that
standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-
assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant subsidiary’s
net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as
established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of
the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units)
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, which
represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not large than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or groups of cash-generating units) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit (or groups of cash-
generating units) may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or groups of
cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit on
a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or
groups of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of
profit or loss on disposal.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an
associate is described below.

3.
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 #;Z2016F12A31H IEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in
these consolidated financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. The financial statements of associates used equity
accounting purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment in an associate
is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate. When
the Group’s share of loss of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest
in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate),
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity method
from the date on which the investee becomes an associate. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate, any excess of the cost of
the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period
in which the investment is acquired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B R R M R ()

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Interests in associates (Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether it is
necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the
Group’s investment in an associate. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of
the investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When the
Group retains an interest in the former associate and the retained
interest is a financial asset within the scope of HKAS 39, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair
value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate at the date the equity
method was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing of the relevant interest in the
associate is included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal
of the associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that
associate on the same basis as would be required if that associate had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain
or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that
associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity
method is discontinued.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B ER R Y R (AR)

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 #;Z2016F12A31H IEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Interests in associates (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate but the
Group continues to use the equity method, the Group reclassifies to
profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in
ownership interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or
loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits
and losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interest in the associate that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates
and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to
the Group and when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group’s activities, as described below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to
the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction
can be measured reliably.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B R R M R ()

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land held
under operating lease, are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis is
more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits
from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate
benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the
leased asset are consumed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B ER R Y R (AR)

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 #;Z2016F12A31H IEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leasing (Continued)

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are
operating leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including
any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of the
lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement
of financial position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis except for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B R R M R ()

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK dollars) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income
and expenses items are translated at the average exchange rates for
the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired on
an acquisitions of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities
of that foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the
related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current
assets are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 #;Z2016F12A31H IEFE

76

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
scheme”) as required under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance and state-managed retirement benefit schemes
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

For defined retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is
determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial
valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period.
Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of
the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan
assets (excluding interest), is reflected immediately in the consolidated
statement of financial position with a charge or credit recognised in
other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected
immediately in retained earnings and will not be reclassified to profit or
loss. Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period of a
plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount
rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or
asset. Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

o service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as
well as gains and losses on curtailments and settlements);

° net interest expense or income; and
° remeasurement.

The Group presents the first two components of defined benefit costs
in profit or loss in the line item of general and administrative expenses.
Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs.

The retirement benefit assets recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position represents the actual deficit or surplus in the
Group’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this
calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits
available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future
contributions to the plans.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation” as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and interest
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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R B ER R Y R (AR)

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 #;Z2016F12A31H IEFE
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax
assets for investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the carrying amount of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods or for administrative purposes (other
than properties under construction as described below) are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production or administrative
purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss.
Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
Such assets are classified to the appropriate categories of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

BEST FOOD HOLDING COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2016

FESHHE @

BIE @)

BEEFRBEENREEINRSREHR
EiTRE YHERWEERTHERN
it A U = 2 BB 3 BB 0 B EE I T ARG ©

BEEHEEERABRENEHEAESR
% R OB 2 B R R R R
BEMREE LR B E(RBE) 5
ERHE -

BEERAABEREEZE  RRTA
SERBEHR RHHYRDEENF
BaEzREEN T AMELERB A
BHo

RERBAFERAFENRENENR
EHRBRBEREEHREECHEM
FOREWENEREETREAE BN
e

EHREER AR B AR -

M- BERRE

BTz EEYMEIN REE MBI
RITHME  BERRE(BEFEE
EMEESHBRITERAZNET) TS
BRABER R ITERERRFRE
BERE) AR

RELEXTHERE 2 EEZRYE
BRARBEMNE#R ZBEBRYIRK-
RABHREXEAREERN(EER
BEE)RBEASBENEARRETER
- ZEEEXTIYARALREBS®
B-Algs B2 ENDE BELER
WHER ZFEEMRTENEERE
it B EAR R - BIE & E /IR AR E A&
B FIARTIRITE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B R R M R ()

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets other
than properties under construction less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation.

investment properties are measured initially at cost,
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values. Gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair value of investment properties are
included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

including any

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the property
is derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) FESFTBER @)
Intangible assets BIEE
Intangible assets acquired separately BRWEEREE

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are
carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful
lives is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful lives and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and recognised
separately from goodwill are initially recognised at their fair value at the
acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with finite useful lives are reported at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses, on
the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.
Alternatively, intangible assets acquired in a business combination with
indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment loss (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets below).

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not
yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if
applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of
an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The
amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted average basis. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the
sale.
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Financial instruments £RmIA
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group SRHEERSRHBENEERETEK A

entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”))
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories:
loans and receivables, financial assets at FVTPL. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
and other receivables, other receivable from a former subsidiary,
amount due from an associate and bank balances and cash) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment (see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets classified as financial assets at FVTPL are derivatives
that are not designated as hedging instruments.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with any gains or
losses arising from remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

FESHHE @

Financial instruments (Continued) SR T Au@m
Financial assets (Continued) SEEE @)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) ® & E (e ()

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest and
principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation.

For segment of manufacturing and sales of handbags, objective
evidence of impairment for receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of
delayed payments past the average credit period and observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all loans and receivables with the exception of trade
and other receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade or
other receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment losses
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, amount
due to a related party, amount due to a related company and loan from
a related party) are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently remeasured
to their fair value at the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) FESHBE @
Financial instruments (Continued) R TI A m
Derecognition HIERA

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B R R M R ()

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make
various estimates based on past experience and expectations of the
future and other information. The key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period that can significantly affect the
carrying amounts of assets recognised in the consolidated financial
statements within the next financial year are disclosed below.

Impairment assessment on trademark and goodwill
arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has completed
the acquisition of 60% equity interest in HHG Group (as defined in note
39) as disclosed in note 42 and the acquisition has been accounted for
using the purchase method. Based on a valuation performed by an
independent professional valuer engaged by the Group, the trademark
(grouped under intangible assets as set out in note 21) of
HK$101,395,000 was recognised as part of the acquisition of HHG
Group at fair value at the date of acquisition, and the goodwill of
HK$52,901,000 arose on acquisition of HHG Group. The trademark
and goodwill are allocated the cash-generating unit (“CGU”) in the food
and beverage investment business management segment.

In determining whether goodwill and trademark (being the intangible
asset with indefinite useful life) are impaired at each reporting date
requires an estimation of the value in use of the CGU in the food and
beverage investment business management segment. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the CGU, the growth rates and a suitable
discount rate applied to the forecast, taking into account the key
assumptions used by the independent professional valuer appointed by
the Group for the valuation performed on the acquisition date, the
financial budgets approved by the management, past performance and
management’s expectations for the market development, in order to
calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less
than expected, or change in facts and circumstances which results in
downward revision of future cash, a material impairment loss may arise.
As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amounts of goodwill and
intangible asset with indefinite useful life are HK$51,699,000 (2015:
HK$NIl) and HK$99,091,000 (2015: HK$NIl), respectively. Based on the
assessment made by the Group, no impairment was identified on the
goodwill and trademark as at 31 December 2016. Details of the
impairment testing on goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite
useful life are disclosed in note 22.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Valuation of investments in associates

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has completed
the acquisitions of associates and the cost of unlisted investments
amounting to HK$96,024,000 as disclosed in note 19.

In determining whether the interests in associates are impaired at each
reporting date requires an estimation of the recoverable amounts of the
associates. The recoverable amounts of the associates were
determined based on value in use calculation, with reference to the
estimated cash flows in the coming five years and cash flows beyond
five years are extrapolated by applying corresponding suitable growth
rates. In estimating the values in use of the investments, significant
judgement was exercised by the associates’ directors in the preparation
of the discounted cash flows which require the estimation of key
assumptions including the future cash flows expected to arise from the
associates, the estimation of growth rates in future cash flow forecast
and discount rates applied to the forecasts, taking into account the key
assumptions used by the independent professional valuer appointed by
the Group for the valuations performed on the corresponding
acquisition dates, the financial budgets approved by the associates’
directors, past performance and associates’ directors’ expectations for
the market development. As at 31 December 2016, the carrying
amount of the interests in associates is HK$95,800,000 (2015: Nil).

4.

B TREEZEEZREFE @
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Based on the assessment made by the Group, no impairment loss on 3L Bt & A R R2016F12 A31 H I
the associates was recognised as at 31 December 2016 (2015: 4 o B 2 N B BE SR E (] R B B 18 (2015
HKS$NIl). &£ THEIT) o

Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life

The Group’s carrying amount of intangible asset (i.e. trademark) with an
indefinite useful life as at 31 December 2016 was approximately
HK$99,091,000 (2015: HK$NIl). Included in the interests in associates,
there are also trademarks which are considered by the associates’
directors to have indefinite useful life. The Group considers the
trademarks of the Group and the associates have an indefinite useful
life because they are expected to contribute net cash inflows indefinitely
and accordingly the trademarks will not be amortised until their useful
lives are determined to be finite. A change of useful lives of the
trademarks from indefinite to finite would result in amortisation charges
of the trademarks which would reduce future results and decrease non-
current assets of the Group.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Impairment loss on trade receivables and other
receivable from a former subsidiary

The assessment of the impairment loss on trade receivables of the
Group is based on the evaluation of collectability, aging analysis of
accounts and on management’s judgment. The assessment of the
impairment loss on other receivable from a former subsidiary of the
Group is based on the evaluation of collectability and on management’s
judgment. A considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing
the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness of each customer and the former subsidiary. If the
financial conditions of the Group’s customers and the former subsidiary
were to deteriorate, resulting an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional allowances may be required. Impairment is made
based on the estimation of the future cash flows discounted at the
original effective rate to calculate the present value. As at 31 December
2016, the carrying values of trade receivables and other receivable from
the former subsidiary were approximately HK$46,408,000 (2015:
HK$58,803,000) and HK$17,854,000 (2015: HK$NIl) respectively.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxes arising from investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the directors of
the Company have reviewed the Group’s investment properties and
concluded that the Group’s investment properties are not held under a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties over time.

Therefore, in determining the Group’s deferred taxation on investment
properties, the directors have determined that the presumption that the
carrying amounts of investment properties measured using the fair
value model are recovered entirely through sale is not rebutted. The
Group has not recognised any deferred taxes on fair value of
investment properties as the Group is not subject to any material
income taxes on the disposal of the investment properties.

4.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Write-down of inventories

Management reviews the inventories listing at the end of each reporting
period, and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventory
items that are no longer suitable for use in operation. Allowance was
made by reference to the latest market value for these inventories.
Where the net realisable value is less than the cost, a material write
down may arise. As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of
inventories (net of allowances) was approximately HK$70,428,000 (2015:
HK$73,508,000).

Recognition of deferred tax

As at 31 December 2016, no deferred tax liabilities have been
recognised on the undistributed profits of the group companies in the
PRC as the Group plans to retain those profits in the respective entities
for their daily operations and future development. In case there is a
change in such plan, additional tax liabilities will arise, which will be
recognised in the profit or loss for the period in which the management
intends to declare such profits in the foreseeable future or the Group’s
future development plan is amended, whichever is earlier. Details of the
above unrecognised deferred taxation are set out in note 30.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for
financial reporting purposes. The board of directors of the Company
determines the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair
value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1
inputs are not available, the Group engages third party qualified valuers
to perform the valuation. The directors work closely with the qualified
external valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs to the model and to understand the cause of fluctuations in the
fair value of the assets and liabilities.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that are not
based on observable market data to estimate the fair value of certain
types of financial instruments. Notes 17 and 41c provide detailed
information about the valuation techniques, inputs and key assumptions
used in the determination of the fair value of various assets and
liabilities.
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

REVENUE

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as follows:

A

AREBRFARB WS

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Income from manufacturing and sales of REREBENMEEFROKA

handbags 658,797

Income from food and beverage investment KEEHRREESHEEBLHWA
business management —
658,797

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by
operating segments under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments, based on
information reported to the Company’s executive directors, being the
chief operating decision maker (the “CODM”), for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance, which
focus on types of goods or services delivered or provided.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has acquired
new business of food and beverage business detailed in note 42. The
food and beverage investment business management forms a new
operating segment during the year ended 31 December 2016 for the
segment reporting purpose to the CODM. The Group’s operating and
reportable segments under HKFRS 8 — Operating Segments are as
follows:

(i) Manufacturing and sales of handbags; and

(i) Food and beverage investment business management.

2EHER
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ENRHEAEBIREE DA E DK
ARZEEN DN DM TBERBERD
ERFHEIBRAMAARNRRAITE
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. DIEXE @
Segment revenues and results D EBUL A M ¥ &
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by LT EREBIZRE D EE 5 2 WA R
reportable segment: FEED
Year ended 31 December 2016 BIZ2016F12A31HLFE
Food and
beverage
Manufacturing investment
and sales of business
handbags management Consolidated
HER BREE
SHEF& EEER &6t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FET FE T
Segment revenue — external 2 EBUL A — SNER
Segment (loss) profit 5 30 (E518) & A
Change on fair value of: NEEEE :
— investment properties — B
— derivative financial instruments —TAEERT A
Share of loss of associates JE (L B 2 R B B 18
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries o BB A Al R &
Unallocated income Ko KA
Unallocated expenses Ao AL H X
Finance costs MBEER
Profit before taxation B %% Al & 7
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R B R R M R ()

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6.

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2015

o & B m)

o U A FEE m)
BZE2015512A31HILFE

Food and

beverage

Manufacturing investment

and sales of business
handbags management Consolidated

BE N BEREE
3H & F & BIBEL =i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FAT FAT
Segment revenue — external D EUA — I B 658,797 — 658,797
Segment profit 7 26554 A 19,497 — 19,497

Change on fair value of: NEEEE :

— investment properties —REWHE 538
— derivative financial instruments —TESmIA (1,284)
Unallocated expenses Ao BLH X (1,504)
Finance costs BB R (1,724)
Profit before taxation R % BT a7 15,523

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as the
Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.

Segment profit represents the profit earned by/loss from each segment
without allocation of change on fair value of investment properties/
derivative financial instruments, share of loss of associates, gain on
disposal of subsidiaries, unallocated income, unallocated expenses and
financial costs. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the
purpose of resources allocations and performance assessment.

&«

6% 5 5 0 B 5 I SR R B R ) S
Lt B 3R AR -

7 & M 18 & o #6 P Bk ER 6908 7,
B MESRRENE TTEeRIA
AVEEY BEBERAREBEE LE
MEAR W RoBEERA - RO
R EHBERA T RERD EREK
AFEMAEIELERRESBZIAE
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 #;Z2016F12A31H IEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. DEER @
Segment assets and liabilities PTHEEMEE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by UTAEBREBIKRBREDIE D2 EEM
reportable segment: BENN:
As at 31 December 2016 M20165F12A31H
Food and
beverage
Manufacturing investment
and sales of business
handbags management Consolidated
B3 T BHERE
HEF &K EEEK & of
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FEx FE R
Segment assets DHEE
Unallocated assets RO EE
Consolidated total assets EHREE
Segment liabilities S EBEE
Unallocated liabilities ROBEE
Consolidated total liabilities SHEERE

94 BEST FOOD HOLDING COMPANY LIMITED ~Annual Report 2016



6.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

R B R R M R ()

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. DEER @
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PTHEENMERE @
As at 31 December 2015 A2015F12H31H
Food and
beverage
Manufacturing investment
and sales of business
handbags management Consolidated
B35 BHIEE
3H & F & BIBEL & Bt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FE T FAT
Segment assets DEHEE 350,447 = 350,447
Unallocated assets ROBEE 268,512
Consolidated total assets AEHBREE 618,959
Segment liabilities DEAE 72,003 — 72,003
Unallocated liabilities AN BE 262,811
Consolidated total liabilities At aE 334,814
For the purpose of monitoring segment performance and allocating HERSHBERBARDED B2HHEIR
resources between segments. mE e
. all assets, other than investment properties, interests in e RBREEME REBEQFZED -
associates, derivative financial instrument, other financial assets, MESRMT A HMWBEEE &
other receivable from a former subsidiary and assets of the Wi B AR 2 EMERERRIEE
investment holding companies, are allocated to reportable and TRARIEEIN - FIEEEHE D
operating segments; and REREREEDE &
e allliabilities, other than derivative financial instrument and liabilities e KRIUTEZBMIARKREZERAA

of the investment holding companies, are allocated to reportable
and operating segments.

WBEEIN MERABHEIREER

@ AL N 32
EREESE -
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 #;Z2016F12A31H IEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. 2EER @
Other segment information Hib o HER
Food and
beverage
Manufacturing investment
and sales of business
handbags management Consolidated
SLE M BHMRE
HEFR BEXK &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET TET FET
2016 2016 F

Amounts included in the measure of 5+ & 5 218 253k 5 2P
segment profit or loss or segment EEBRENT£
assets:

Addition to non-current assets (note) Ik B A& 2 12 A0
(P 3%)
Depreciation of property, plantand %% - lE R % &

equipment e
Loss (gain) on disposal of property,  HEWE - HE K&
plant and equipment HiE 2 EE (M)

Release of prepaid lease payments 2 & 78 {4 78 & 218
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e B R Rk M aE (4E)

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. 7HER @
Other segment information (Continued) HittoHER @)
Food and
beverage
Manufacturing investment
and sales of business
handbags management Consolidated
SL5E 7 BERRE
HEF R BB & B
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET THET TET
2015 20155

Amounts included in the measure of 5t & 2 #F1828 8 9 2B
segment profit or loss or segment BEBENT&£H:

assets:
Addition to non-current assets (note)  IE 7k B A& 2 120
(Bt 55) 29,295 - 29,295
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BB NME&E
equipment e 14,322 — 14,322
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEWE BEX
and equipment & W (65) = (65)
Release of prepaid lease payments 7 [ 8 1~ 11 & 2k 18 622 - 622
Note: Amounts include additions to property, plant and equipment, prepaid Ma: cEBEREFTEDE  BELELXE BN
lease payments and deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and HERBELBEEVE BEEKRXEZE
equipment. HET& °
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F12H31H ILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6.

Other segment information (Continued)

No other amounts are regularly provided to the CODM but not included
in the measure of segment profit or loss or segment assets.

Geographical information

Information about the Group’s non-current assets, other than derivative
financial instrument, defined benefit assets and deferred tax assets is
presented based on the geographical location of the assets.

o & B m)

HittoHER @)

MEEGESBIOERARETFEIELER
REMIBEREFTEDHBREXDH
BEMNSHET -

& &R

AEBERTESRIA AENREE
MRERRBEENZERBEEEFIZ
BEEMREINNT

Non-current assets

FRBEE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE R FAT
The PRC F 77,871
Thailand B 29,816
Myanmar 4 ) 20,597
128,284
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B R R M R ()

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. DIEX @
The Group’s revenue from external customers by geographical location FANREFBRBAINT TR AR [E

during the year is as follows:

S DFIBAT

Revenue from external

customers
REMNBEFHBA

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FA&T
The USA ES 279,651
The PRC R 37,187
Other Asian countries H b Z5 M B R 92,983
Italy VN 59,397
Hong Kong BB 30,835
Canada mexX 43,589
The Netherlands 1Ar 78 53,311
Other European countries B A BROM B =R 35,330
The United Kingdom - 13,491
Germany = 12,982
South American countries FEEJEER 41
The Middle East and Africa SERIE) -
658,797
BRERERLAE —ZE—RFFER
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R B ER R Y R (AR)

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F12H31H ILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of manufacturing and sales of handbags
segment of the corresponding years contributing over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group are as follows:

6. DEER @

FREEEFNEHR

KERERFEEFRDBEF MRS
AEERBEFEBREBI0%ENT ¢

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’'000

TH&xT THET

Customer A 2EA 138,133
Customer B ZFB 72,496

Note: The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group.

7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

st HERBEGHASEAKETBHI10% -

7. HitlhsERER

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FE T
Net exchange gain PE 5 Ui & )5 58 116
Loss on fair value changes on derivative financial #7144 gt T A 2 A FEE S EE
instruments (1,284)
(Loss) gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  BE K& (EE)
equipment I 2% 65
Gain on fair value changes of investment BEMEZ P FEEB S
properties 538
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEK B ARz KkEE =
(565)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B R R M R ()

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

FINANCE COSTS 8. WER K
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT T T
Interest on bank borrowings RITE KT B 353
Interest on bank overdrafts RITEZF B -
Interest on loan from a related party and BT B B RE B E KA B
interest on late repayment 1,371
Interest on loan from non-controlling interests e fR = B R B —
1,724
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FiBFHEAX
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET F& T
The charge comprises: S HEE:
Current tax: BV ERFR IR :
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEMEH 4,596
PRC EIT RE RSN 1,753
6,349
Under(over)provision in prior year: BTFEREBETIRGEERER)
Hong Kong Profits Tax BAFEH (38)
PRC EIT REBEMENR —
Deferred tax (note 30): B RE 518 (M9 3£ 30) -
Current year NEE (801)
5,510
BRERERLAE —ZE—RFFER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B ER R Y R (AR)

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 #;Z2016F12A31H IEFE

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

Hong Kong

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated

assessable profit for both years.

The PRC

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise

Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC

subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards.

Myanmar

The Myanmar subsidiary is entitled to five years’ exemption from
Myanmar Corporation Income Tax since the year of incorporation (i.e.

9. FiBFHEMZuwm
&8
&5 F

a3
Income Tax and

& e 51
F1H1H#BAE25% °

iRz

BRI IR B MR B 4F 2 2 {4 5 AR
i A #216.5% Bt K5t & o

BERFRCEMGHEREEMESHE
o B fff 8 A 7 2 B & 2008

4 a BB A A B R it A 32 F E (BN2015
F)VAKREEEZEAREABDEMBH

2015). P o
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before FRBRERASAEGEBENEMET
taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other W 25 3% PR %)) B % RIS 7’rJ HERIN R -
comprehensive income as follows:
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T T T
Profit before taxation B % A A 15,523
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 16.5% R PSR T R 16.5% 1 E 2
7RE] 2,561
Tax effect of share of loss of an associate FEAEE: & QRSB 2 RS 2 =
Tax effect of expenses not deductible in EERRBUER AN L
determining taxable profit 2T 2 12
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised AERREBEBEZH G E 1,821
Tax effect of income not taxable in determining ETEERTORA S HEFRR A
taxable profit 2 T 5 2 (10)
Tax effect of temporary difference not recognised < i 22 €7 i 2= 58 4 1 75 52 22 32
Tax effect of profit not subject to tax under 50:50 1250 : 50% HE T HH 78 +& 1 i Fll 2
arrangement WIS =2 (72)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised {# B 7 A 7& #& 52 £ I8 &5 18 (88)
Effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries operating 7> £ th 7] & # [& 45 & 2 15 8 i B
in other jurisdictions UNCIRNER s - 341
Under(over)provision for tax in prior year NAEFERERED R (BE
B 1E) (38)
Others H A 951
Income tax expense for the year FAFMERAX 5,510
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B R R M R ()

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

Details of deferred taxation at the end of the reporting period and

during the year are set out in note 30.

9. FiBFHBZuwm

BERBERBERRRRFEFAZFESR

A BT 5E30 ©

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 10. FAEF
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T T
Profit for the year has been arrived at after FRaEF 2 (GrA) :
charging (crediting):
Directors’ emoluments (note 13) 2 =5 (ffEE13) 3,204
Staff salaries and other benefits, excluding those B I #H & RiEH  THEEFE=ZS
of directors 237,927
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes, BRIRBEANETEIER TEREES
excluding those of directors 1,574
Total employee benefit expenses ETEAMERY 242,705
Capitalised in inventories FEEAXRIL (3,474)
239,231
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses EERAATHNGFEEXRA(BE
(including reversal of write-down of inventories 77 & #ilfl & % @ = 3% 7T (2015 4F
of HK$nil (2015: HK$3,524,000)) 3,524,000/ 7T) ) 465,284
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME BELREZTE 14,322
Capitalised in inventories FEEAXRIL (179)
14,143
Auditors’ remuneration 1% B B &
— Audit services — FF R 1,000
— Non-audit services — EFFTRB 75
Release of prepaid lease payments FENEERBEZER 622
Amortisation of intangible asset (included in B AEEE (R —RRITBRAX
general and administrative expenses) | BR) —
Imputed interest income on other receivable due & U A1 Fff B 2 &) 2 H b & U BR X
from a former subsidiary B i & F B A =
Interest income on bank balances RITEEER A BIA (79)

BEZRABRLE —B-A FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B ER R Y R (AR)

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 #;Z2016F12A31H IEFE

11. DIVIDENDS 1. RE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET T T
Dividends recognised as distributions during FRNEERDIERZIRE :
the year:
Final dividend of HK1.0 cent per share for the year & 22014412 A 31 B I 4 E R H3
ended 31 December 2014 BB ZAR1.07 1L 8,250
The board of directors of the Company has determined not to declare RAREZERETTIRE £2016512
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: nil). AS1B IEFE 2 REIR B (20154 : £8) ©
12. EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. SRER
The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the profit FRERRF TR F A i 15,868,000
for the year of HK$15,868,000 (2015: HK$10,013,000) and 7t (20154 : 10,013,0007% 7T ) £825,000,000
825,000,000 (2015: 825,000,000) shares. A% (20154F : 825,000,0000%) {E5+ & °
Diluted earnings per share is not presented because there were no HRZMEFERECBRTEETLR
dilutive ordinary shares in issue during both years. i AW gREFRZF -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B R R M R ()

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the applicable Listing Rule and Companies Ordinance, is

13. EERTHARMS

REBEERZ EWHRRAR AR GRS FR
EERTTRAHZHMEKELT :

as follows:
Other emoluments
HiE &
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other schemes
Fees benefits contributions Total
FeR BIREF
Hwe H 1t 18 F =T &K &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET FET FET
2016 2016
Executive directors HITESE
Zhao John Huan (Chief Executive) i 4 & (77 48 %) (A
(appointed on 9 August 2016) 201648 H9H &
Z 1)
Wang Xiaolong (appointed on T/ BE (FR20164F
9 August 2016) 8AOHEZRT)
Wang Yuanzheng FIRAE (R2016 4
(appointed on 9 August 2016) SHOREZF)
Wai Siu Kee (“Ms. Wai) wmom ([l (R
(resigned on 9 August 2016) 20168 BOH B 1F)
Kung Fang, David BE 45 (PR 2016 4F
(resigned on 9 August 2016) 8 H9H B )
Lee Man Ching F 18 (R 2016 4F
(resigned on 9 August 2016) 8 B9HE1E)
Independent non-executive BYUIHITEE
directors
Heng Victor Ja Wei TR 4
Tsang Hin Man Terrence B
Xian Shunxiang (appointed on HENERE (20164
9 August 2016 and resigned SAOBEZFEIRN
on 4 January 2017) 201741 B4 B &)
Leung Kwai Kei 2 & E (R20174F
(appointed on 4 January 2017) 1B4BEZFE)
So Wing Keung &R oKk 58 (20165
(resigned on 9 August 2016) 8 H9H B {F)
BAEERERAE =—F—REFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B ER R Y R (AR)

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 #;Z2016F12A31H IEFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

13. EERTHATZM S @

EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Other emoluments
H i B &
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other schemes
Fees benefits contributions Total
ek IR ARAE A
we H i 48 5 TRl &5
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
2015 20154
Executive directors HITEF
Wai Siu Kee (Chief Executive) ‘OB (FTEAE %) — 1,170 — 1,170
Kung Fang, David e — 504 18 522
Lee Man Ching =3 — 1,080 18 1,098
Independent non-executive BB ITEFE
directors
Heng Victor Ja Wei TB 2R 4 138 — — 138
So Wing Keung #R K 58 138 = = 138
Tsang Hin Man Terrence FX 138 — — 138
414 2,754 36 3,204
The executive directors’ and independent non-executive directors’ EXRZHITESRBIFNTES
emoluments shown above were paid for their services in connection MeoRRREEBEBERRAFRA
with the management of the affairs of the Company and the Group and EESEBURBEEEARAEZEETHR
for their services as directors of the Company respectively. M= e
For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, no emoluments HZE2016F K2015F 12 A1 A ILFE -
were paid by the Group to the directors as an inducement to join or REBEWESTHEMNMSERSMARE
upon joining the Group or as a compensation for a loss of office. No BB EABETHE BMEESENZ

directors waived any emoluments during these years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B R R M R ()

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

14. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, two
(2015: one) were directors of the Company whose emoluments are
included in note 13 above. The aggregate emoluments of the five

14. EEME

EXAEERAESHFMALS MA
(2016%F : —R) RAREEFE - HFH b
EEN EXHFI18- AREZSHMAL

highest paid individuals, including directors, were as follows: (BRESZ)Z2EMELMT :
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET F& T
Salaries and other benefits e K HAMREF 4,696
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes RN AR F 5T 2 51 72
Discretionary bonus payments RRMEERE 852
5,620

Discretionary bonus was determined with reference to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

The emoluments were within the following band:

RENMBARENIRSEAEHAEERE
B EARRRA LB T 5 BB
BE -

& F TIRE

2016 2015

Number of Number of

Employees employees

EE®E EE A

Not exceeding HK$1,000,000 8 38 1,000,000% 7T =
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7% 7T & 1,500,0007% 7T 5
5

BEZRABRLE —B-A FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B ER R Y R (AR)

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F12H31H ILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥ BERRKRE

Furniture,
fixtures and Leasehold Motor  Plantand Construction
Buildings equipment improvements vehicles machinery  in progress Total
BA -
BF XERRE HEHR RE BER#ES ERIRE ch
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FTET TR FTET TR TR TR
COST BA
At 1 January 2015 #2015 1 A1H 97,051 30,394 38,185 6,661 55,861 - 228,152
Currency realignment fE 5 R = (71) (65) (@) (497) - (674)
Additions NE — 1,268 8,320 426 128 6,232 16,374
Disposals kS - @7) - (596) - = (693)
At 31 December 2015 R20156F 12 B31H 97,051 31,494 46,440 6,450 55,492 6,232 243,159
Acauisition of subsidiaries (note 42) U & i 8 2 7] (Fii 7£42) - 11,256 21,013 814 3,783 644 37,510
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 43) {1 S ki B 72 &) (Fff £ 43) - 1,777) (12,734) - — — (14,511)
Currency realignment R AR - (1,215) (2,909) (185) (997) (159) (5,465)
Additions NE - 2,896 6,875 843 571 31,793 42,978
Disposals & - (907) (4,208) (327) - - (5,442)
At 31 December 2016 R2016512 A31H 97,051 41,747 54,477 7,595 58,849 38,510 298,229
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2015 R2015F1A1H 78,136 26,331 16,762 5,542 41,032 - 167,803
Currency realignment fE 5 AR - (23) 1) ®) (94) - (136)
Provided for the year AEEEE 4,853 1,777 4,267 456 2,969 - 14,322
Eliminated on disposals & B 48 - @7) - (596) - - (693)
At 31 December 2015 R2015F 12 A31H 82,989 27,988 21,018 5,394 43,907 — 181,296
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries 1) & i B A & & 4 £
(note 43) (P £ 43) - (779) (6,827) - - = (7,606)
Currency realignment EXAE - (900) 2,214) (120) (374) - (3,608)
Provided for the year AEERE 4,853 2,719 8,333 595 2,900 = 19,400
Eliminated on disposals & 8 - (644) (1,964) (827) - - (2,839)
At 31 December 2016 2016512 A31H 87,842 28,484 18,346 5,542 46,433 - 186,647
NET BOOK VALUE REFE
At 31 December 2016 201612 A31H 9,209 13,263 36,131 2,053 12,416 38,510 111,582
At 31 December 2015 2015612 A31H 14,062 3,506 25,422 1,056 11,585 6,232 61,863
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16.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B R R M R ()

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line method at the following rates per annum:

5%—20%
5%-25%
15%-20%
15%—-25%
15%-20%

Buildings

Leasehold improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Motor vehicles

Plant and machinery

The carrying value of the Group’s property interests comprises

buildings on land under medium-term land use rights in the PRC.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise leasehold lands held
under medium-term lease located in:

15.

16.

M- BERRZE®

Lty BERREBRBZIFETIN
BEREETIFRIFTE

EF 5%-20%
FENR 5%—25%
R KB REE 15%-20%
RE 15%-25%
R B R 28 15%-20%

7K S5 B 1) 3 1 5 0 B L8 9 70 o OB
2RI E A b E IR o
ENHEERE

AEFEzANHEERRSETHEESL
AL B

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET T T
The PRC = 22,490
Myanmar 48 ) 12,230
34,720

Analysed for reporting purposes as: MERDTWAT :
Non-current asset ERBE E 33,856
Current asset mMEE E 864
34,720
BRERERLAE —ZE—RFFER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B ER R Y R (AR)

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 #;Z2016F12A31H IEFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. REW=

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
TE R FET
At fair value BATE

Completed investment properties BB TREYE
Balance at beginning of year F Y4 R 32,103
Gain on property revaluation L E= AR 538
Effect of foreign currency exchange differences  JMNEE[E X Z 2 g & (2,825)
Balance at end of year FREH 29,816

The Group’s property interests held for capital appreciation purposes
are measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at 31 December
2016 and 2015 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried
out on 30 December 2016 and 30 December 2015 respectively by Thai
Property Appraisal Lynn Philips Co., Ltd., an independent qualified
professional valuers not connected to the Group.

The fair value of the investment properties was determined based on
the market approach. The market approach uses prices and other
relevant information generated by market transactions involving
comparable investment properties.

In estimating the market value of the properties, the highest and best
use of the properties is their current use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B R R M R ()

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 17. BEWZE m)
One of the key inputs used in valuing the investment properties was the WEMEGLEBEMMERANER —BEEd
sales prices of completed properties nearby the Group’s investment AHSEEMBAEREEDENZERY
properties and the estimated price of the Group’s investment properties ENEB MASEEREVMENETE
is HK$2,249/sq. wah where wah is a common unit of length used in BAE229B TETHE  EARETH
Thailand and one unit of wah is equal to 2 meters. An increase in the MRESBM  —EABMEZRR2K - H
sales prices would result in an increase in fair value measurement of the EBENEREES BIREMEAFEE
investment properties, and vice versa. HEMEERE RZINA -
Details of the Group’s investment properties and information about the N & B R20165F12 A31 H K2015F 12
fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 ABIBZEREWEFBLREBRATER
are as follows: Bz BEEF T
Fair value Fair value
as at as at
Level 3 31.12.2016 Level 3 31.12.2015
12016 F 120155
12838182 12A31HZ
E3R AEE £33/ AEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHE T FAT FHET FHET
Industrial property plants R RBIH T
located in Thailand %= 36,414 36,414 29,816 29,816
There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year. RNEFWEYZEREIRBAREDL o
18. INVENTORIES 18. 78
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FAT
Raw materials J= A 29,337
Work in progress E&m 31,554
Finished goods 25K o 12,617

73,508

BRERERLAE =Z—~F5H% 111



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B ER R Y R (AR)

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 #;Z2016F12A31H IEFE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. RBE AR ZER
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FATT
Costs of unlisted investments K EMEE KA =
Share of post-acquisition loss and total AMEWEREEREZER Y R

comprehensive expense —

Details of the Group’s associates as at 31 December 2016 are as AE BB Z NRR2016F12 A31 H 2 &
follows: BWE :
Place of Paid up registered Proportion of equity Proportion of voting
Name of associate incorporation capital interest held by the Group rights held by the Group  Principal activity
LA NGE LA AR L it B EHAREMBE AEEHEEREDH ASERERREND FEED
2016 2015 2016 2015
FHRAAEREROLR) BRAF The PRC Renminbi — —  Chinese fast food
(BDE") (‘RMB")1,562,500 restaurants chain
HE ARE hEEHREE
(TARE])
1,562,500 7T
BMBE/ NEEREEERAR The PRC RMB99,734 - —  Chinese fast food
(BR/NE) restaurants chain
e AR#997347T i EHREE
Note 1: The Group is able to exercise significant influence over F§4>&; because Ml A"EBRHALHITIEERATE N
it has the power to appoint one out of seven directors of that company TEHRBEZAGREREE ABE -
under the equity owners’ agreement of that company. AEEBEEZEX AR TLRESHH
F-ZESE-
Note 2: The Group is able to exercise significant influence over & R/)NE M2 AEBEAMHBRIJETEEAZE
because it has the power to appoint one out of three directors of that N TERBEZARRERES AW
company under the equity owners ’agreement of that company. FASEERZAEZRAR=RES

PEA—RESE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B R R M R ()

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

On 5 November 2016, the Company entered into a capital increase
agreement with the existing equity owners of & & /J\H, pursuant to
which the Company agreed to inject contribution to 8 /Nl at an
amount of RMB25,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$27,928,000). The transaction was completed on 23 December
2016. B F,/N| is principally engaged in the business of Chinese fast
food restaurants chain business under “i& J./]\E” brand in the PRC.

On 9 November 2016, the Company entered into a capital increase
and transfer agreement with the equity owners of #4 %z, pursuant to
which the Company agreed to acquire 18% equity interest investment
in PR Ex at a cash consideration of RMB60,750,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$68,096,000). The transaction was completed on 6
December 2016. FH4 & is principally engaged in the business of

Chinese fast food restaurants chain business under “Fg4>&:” brand in
the PRC.

Summarised financial information of FE4>&z and 3B R/NE is set out

19.

REEE DT 2 R @)

R2016E11 A58 A AR HEE R /JE
BEREHEE AT LIEE W Bt
AN AR & A A R ¥ 25,000,000 7T (&
R #927,928,0007% 70) M B B/ EIEE °
ZR B N2016F12 A23H /K - B R
NEHEZRPENUBR/IE]RERS
BB R R T o

R20164F 11 A9H » AN A 7] B 7 A 8§ %
BHEBATLIBERGS Bt A2 A
B E RS KEARG0,750,0007T (18
& 1 #768,096,0007% 7T ) U & 78 ) 835 18%
BEHE - Z X 5 ER20165FE12 A6 H T °
ALHETERPRENUAELH]RERLSE
FEEHEREEELRS -

ERELHERBR/)ENMBERRE

pelow: BIWT -
[l BR/M
2016 2016
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FE T
Current assets MEEE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Current liabilities mBE R
Revenue W &=
(Loss) profit for the year FE (EE) &
BEERERAT ZZT—AREER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B ER R Y R (AR)

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F12H31H ILFE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the

19. REEE N T 2 R @)

P BERME RN S QAR

carrying amount of the interest in associate
consolidated financial statements:

recognised in the

REMBRRERZEAEEZHE

i BR/E
2016 2016
HK$’000 HK$°000
FExT FH T
Net assets of the associates BERNRZEEFE
Proportion of the Group’s direct ownership REBEBRBESNaZ2HE
interests in the associates HEREERIMN
Net assets of interest in associate attributable to 7~ £= B fiE (5 B & A Bl 25 2
the Group EEFE
Goodwill 5k
Effect of fair value adjustments at acquisition WEER 2 AL ERFAEREE
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in REBRBMENTIERZ
the associate BRE A
20. GOODWILL 20. &
HK$’'000
FE T
At 1 January 2015 and 31 December 2015 RK2015%F1 818 k2015412 A31H —
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries (note 42) UK B B A R B E A (P 52 42) 52,901
Exchange adjustment BE 5, 58 B (1,202
At 31 December 2016 MR2016F 12 A31H 51,699

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are disclosed in

note 22.
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21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e B R Rk M aE (4E)

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

1. B EE

Computer
software Trademark Total
EA - EEes EE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FE T FHET
coSsT B A
At 1 January 2015 and R2015F1 A1H K&

31 December 2015 201512 A31 H — — P
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries 7 U i fff /8 A & & 15

(note 42) (Mt 5E42) 2,262 101,395 103,657
Addition NE 230 — 230
Exchange adjustments bEE 3, 5 B (123) (2,304) (2,427)
At 31 December 2016 H2016412 A31H 2,369 99,091 101,460
AMORTISATION 85
At 1 January 2015 and R2015F1 18 K&

31 December 2015 2015412 A31H — - -
Charge for the year FARXZ 169 — 169
Exchange adjustments BEE b, 3 B (66) — (66)
At 31 December 2016 M®2016%F12 A31H 108 — 103
CARRYING VALUES BRE B
At 31 December 2016 R20164F 12 A31H 2,266 99,091 101,357

At 31 December 2015

H2015%12 831 H

Computer software is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
expected useful life of 5 years.

The trademark has a legal life of 10 years and is renewable every 10
years at minimal cost. The directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the Group would renew the trademark continuously and has the
ability to do so. Various studies including product life cycle studies,
market, competitive and environmental trends and brand extension
opportunities have been performed by management of the Group,
which support that the trademark has no foreseeable limit to the period
over which the trademarked products are expected to generate net
cash flows for the Group.

EREHRBFEAFHFARER
TEEESH -

15 0A TE F B B 104F - 30 AT A BT B 1R
W ABI0OFEE - R -ARAIEER
R AEETHEEERNER URRE
B AWM TTE - AKREEEECETT
ZHEMR BREGRSGARAAHAEL @
5 BERREBILRBERREHS -
ZEMRAXKAEINEAEREERTE
HRAAEBELFHESRENHREIL &
AR R PR ) o
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 #;Z2016F12A31H IEFE

21.

22.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

As a result, the trademark is considered by the management of the
Group as having an indefinite useful life because it is expected to
contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely. The trademark will not be
amortised until its useful life is determined to be finite. Instead it will be
tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that
it may be impaired. Particulars of the impairment testing are disclosed
in note 22.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE USEFUL
LIFE

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill and trademark with
indefinite useful life set out in notes 20 and 21 have been allocated to
individual CGU comprising two subsidiaries in the segment of food and
beverage investment business management. The carrying amounts of
goodwill and trademark as at 31 December 2016 allocated to HHG
Group (as defined in note 39) are as follows:

Goodwill

21.

22.

[k 5

2016
HK$’000
TERx

| EE @

At A"EBEETRERAFTEZEEER

AFEAFH THREBHSEREA
FREME HIZEAABEETE LA
REMaTrie@EE EESETEE
BEANS  REEB TR RHER
EITRER R o BE R A FEEERH
FE22 o

AENAFERIEAFH
B EERRERR

FRERRM S - R E20 %215
EREEERAERFHZHENDER
ZEBREELEMN BREERREE
BE S I E A A o ;R 20164F
12A31H "REMEAEE(EE R
IS M B R EMEREERT

Trademark
[EE
2015 2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FTHET FET

HHG Group MEAEH

During the year ended 31 December 2016, management of the Group
determines that there are no impairment of the CGU containing
goodwill and trademark with indefinite useful life.

116 BEST FOOD HOLDING COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2016

H E2016F12A31B IEFE . REE
EREEET PSABERAERFH
MEEEREENREEEEMY T ER
'fﬁo



22.

23.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B R R M R ()

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE USEFUL
LIFE (CONTINUED)

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined based on a
value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-
year period, and pre-tax discount rate of 18.7%. HHG Group’s cash
flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using a steady 3%
growth rate. This growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth
forecasts and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for
the relevant industry.

Cash flow projections during the forecast period for the CGU are based
on the expected gross margins during the forecast period. Forecasted
gross margins were determined based on past performance and the
management’s expectations for the market development. Management
believes that any reasonably possible change in any of these
assumptions would not cause the carrying amount of the CGU to
exceed the recoverable amount of the CGU.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2. &
i

BENEEERUFERAFEH
¥ & = 8 R E R & i

B EE BN AU E SRR T RIEE R
BEFEMEE KA ENDREEEE
#oOfE R E D F BRI BE KB AT
FRE/I87% KAREREARE
T-MEREBEBALFHEZHERE
T5 LA 8% HY 15 7€ 48 £ K el - ;2B R X T)
ERHBATEERBASH  AX T
HEBTEN TP RAEREK -

ReEABUNEIRENRERER
RTDERBEAMEORPEMNKEFH -
BHAEMNETLDERTLEERNBER
AREREEHERBHNGEH -EEEM
B BIEEMZERREREMNSER]
EED HBE TS8R ELEUN
FHEBELRSELAEMNTRE S
B o

3. EhE Z R EAMRIE

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHxT T T

Trade receivables EUE 5 RN 58,803
Bills receivables & U 2= % 20,997
79,800

Prepayments and deposits T RIE Rk E 12,628
Other receivables H b JE YT FN I8 6,774
Total trade and other receivables FEUE 5 Rk EH M RIEE & 99,202
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B ER R Y R (AR)

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F12H31H ILFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 23. EWE S R HEMFHE @

The aged analysis of trade and bills receivables based on the invoice BUREZERREEBENRERRILER
date at the end of the reporting period is as follows: AZEREBRDMLT :

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FE T FAT

Not exceeding 30 days THBA30K 57,150

31-60 days 31 260K 18,585

61-90 days 61 290K 8,942

Over 90 days 90K M E 123

79,800

The following amounts of trade receivables, bills receivables and other A TREKE SRR ERER R E i fE

receivables are denominated in currencies other than the functional WHRIBHARBEEZE R E

currency of the relevant group entities. INE) B EE AR o

2016 2015

HK$°000 HK$’'000

FET FAT

RMB AR 379

HK dollars BT 208
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B R R M R ()

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the potential
customer’s credit quality by investigating its historical credit record and
then defines its credit limit. The Group generally allows its trade
customers an average credit period ranging from 7 to 90 days. Trade
receivables of an aggregate carrying amount of HK$38,316,000 (2015:
HK$54,475,000) that are neither past due nor impaired have good
credit quality with reference to the track record of these customers
under internal assessment by the Group. As of 31 December 2016 and
2015, no allowance for doubtful debts has provided for receivables
aged over 90 days. Included in the Group’s trade receivable are
debtors with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$8,092,000 (2015:
HK$4,328,000) which were past due at the reporting date but for which
the Group has not provided for impairment loss. There has not been a
significant change in credit quality of the relevant customers and the
Group believes that the amounts are still recoverable as there are
continuing subsequent settlement. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired:

23.

EWE S K H X8 @)

REMTAFEEAN  AEEBEBASE
BERFPZRTEERLAGFHEEER
EEMATECGEEE - A58 — %
KTHESRFPZIFHRESNT7E
WK - ER2EZERFERAEBE /A
=T 1 8 1F &2 8% - BR M 42 {8 #£38,316,000
7 7T (20154 : 54,475,000/ 7T ) B K #1
HAAREEKESEREERITEE
& 2 R2016F K2015F 128318 -
B BR B B BO0K 2 B IR B 5 BR XAt
RAEBB ASEZREKBESERE
¥ 42 BR T B 8,092,000/ 7T (20154 :
4,328,000/ 70) 2 FEWBR 3K - R W &
BHIE & ma HEANSE B & 5Lt et iR
BEBE HHEEFPFZ2EEEETESE
AEH BHREBRFELEE WASE
ERAEZERENA U E - 2 5% B I &
MR EEBRT AR -

B H T ARORUE B B Y B 5 kI 2 AR e 10
T

2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FAT

Overdue: A
Not exceeding 30 days T8 iE30K 2,233
31-60 days 31E60K 1,331
61-90 days 61 290K 708
Over 90 days 90 A E 56
Total Sl 4,328

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, all bills receivables
are not past due.

R2016F 12 A31 B & 2015412 831H -
BRI EES EaH -
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 #;Z2016F12A31H IEFE

24. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS/OTHER

24, TEESWMIE HheMEE

FINANCIAL ASSETS
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FAT
Derivative financial asset TESRMEE
Put option on issuance of convertible bonds T A AR B 5 R OL B
(Note i) — Non-current (B 5%i) — FEBD HA =
Other financial assets HtEmEE
Unlisted investments in wealth management REBFERNIELTERE
products (Note i) — current (B %ii) — BPEA —
Derivative financial liability TTEEmAE
Foreign currency forward contracts (Note iii) SN 3= BR A 49 (B 5% i)
— Current — B0 EH 1,284
Notes: B -
(i) Put option on issuance of convertible bonds (i) BOUBRBRESRILHE
On 18 September 2016 and 10 October 2016, the Company and the R2016F9 188 K&2016F10 A 108 -
immediate holding company entered into an agreement and a KRR EEEERRARG M ER
supplementary agreement pursuant to which the Company agreed to HWaHE Bl AR2AREETR
issue and the immediate holding company agreed to subscribe for the BEEERAARERBEAC BT E
convertible bonds in the aggregate principal amount up to 1,500,000,0007 7T 2 Al # IR & 55 - 481K
HK$1,500,000,000 for a total consideration equal to the principal amount BRENRZEATRRESZACTE I
of such convertible bonds. The interest is 3% per annum. The conversion LA R 3% 5 - IR ESH 2 Eik
price of the convertible bonds shall be HK$1.18 per conversion share, B EESREBRRM1.18B T @ ARIE
subject to adjustment pursuant to the terms and conditions of the AMRES 2GR REGET AR -F
convertible bonds. The availability period is a fixed term of two years WHI B 201610 108 # 51 E £ F H
commencing from 10 October 2016 and neither party will have the right ME - BEM—FHEETERE RS-
to extend. As at 31 December 2016, no convertible bonds were issued R2016%F 12 A31H » A X Al JF £ % 17
but it constitutes a put option for the Company. The amount represents B RGN AIRRES - Z®
the fair value of the put option on issuance of convertible bonds by the HEARARAEELER AR ZEITHR
Company to the immediate holding company. fREH 2 RGEE L A TFE -
(i)  Unlisted investments in wealth management products (i) REMERNFELETRE

Other financial assets represented the Group’s investment in unlisted
wealth management products issued by commercial banks in the PRC
which is carried at fair value through profit or loss. The repayment of
principals of certain investments are not guaranteed and all the
investments have expected rates of return. The investments are
denominated in RMB and redeemable within one year. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of these
assets. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair values of
these investments at 31 December 2016 approximated their principal
amounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B R R M R ()

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

24. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS/OTHER 24. T4 4RI E Bt e mEE
FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) (%)
Notes: (Continued) Mt s - (48)
(i)  Foreign currency forward contracts (i) IERBEYD
The amount represents the fair value of foreign currency forward contracts ZRIBREAEEREA ZINERBEA -
held by the Group with terms stated as follows: HEAERHEOT :
Maturity Exchange rate
Notional amount EELH ZH A BE =
As at 31 December 2015 M2015%12H31H
Sell USD771,426 JHTT1,4263% 7T 13.1.2016 USD1: RMB6.4815
17T ARY6.48157T
Sell USD1,495,806 3t 1,495,806 < 7T 19.1.2016 USD1: RMB6.4848
157 ARY6.4848 7T
Sell USD3,050,647 313,050,647 3= 7T 25.1.2016 USD1: RMB6.4883
157 ARY6.4883 7T
Sell USD1,276,295 81,276,295 7T 28.2.2016 USD1: RMB6.5032
17T ARY6.50327T
Sell USD2,457,445 42,457,445 TT 25.2.2016 USD1: RMB6.5108
17T ARY%6.5108 7T
25. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 25. RITEBRKERE

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and short
term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.
The deposits carry prevailing market interest rates which range from
0.01% to 0.35% (2015: 0.01% to 0.35%) per annum.

The following amounts of bank and cash are denominated in the foreign
currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant group

RTERRBASBEAKRERAZRS
NRA =18 A 3 PA T 2 8 2 58 B8R 17
TR ZEFRREAMTHFMNENF
0.01% % 0.35%(2015%F : 0.01% £0.35%)
TR

UTRITEBRECERIAEREEER
I RE E W AN B AL AR ©

entities.
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FB T
Euro & 7T 221
RMB AR 1,324
HK dollars BT 257,038

BEZRABRLE —B-A FFH
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F12H31H ILFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26. ENEZRHEMRE
Trade and other payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for ENESREMFTBEBITESREESES
trade purchases and ongoing costs. The average credit period obtained EEERIKAZANEE BHBEE
for trade purchases is 7 to 60 days. ZFHREREB AT 260K ©
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Trade and bills payable aged: ENESEREREER 2RI :
Not exceeding 30 days T HEiE30K 23,946
31-60 days 31 260K 6,840
61-90 days 61ZE 90K 4,145
Over 90 days 90K A E 1,382
36,313
Other payables At FE 1 58 4,842
Accrued salaries EstH € 17,587
Accrued bonus JEETIEAL 4,481
Other accrued expenses Hi gt & A 6,731
Consideration payable for acquisition of W B Bt BB A =) FE (AR (B (P 5E42)
subsidiaries (note 42) —
69,954
The following amounts of trade and other payables are denominated in ATENES REMRIBHUEBSE
currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant group ERENNEEEUINNE LR -
entities.
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
TE T FAT
Euro B _
RMB ARHE 165
HK dollars BT 2,561
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27.

28.

20.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B R R M R ()

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED COMPANY

The amount represented a trade balance due to Capital Nation
Investments Limited (“Capital Nation”).

Capital Nation is beneficially owned and controlled by Ms. Lee Rosanna
Man Lai who is the daughter of Mr. Lee Wan Keung (“Mr. Lee”), the
controlling shareholder of Full Gold Trading Limited (“Full Gold”). Full
Gold has ceased to be the ultimate holding company of the Company
since 3 June 2016.

The amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing, repayable on demand
and aged within 60 days.

AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE

The amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing, repayable on demand
and expected to be recovered within twelve months from the end of
the reporting period.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group received
government grants amounting to HK$2,075,000, mainly for the
establishment of restaurants and purchase of manufacturing
machineries. Such government grants were recorded as deferred
government grants and would be credited to the statement of
comprehensive income over the useful life of the corresponding
machineries using straight-line method.

27.

28.

29.

EfTEﬁE’\jﬁA

A B8 738 J5 & { Capital Nation Investments
Limited ([ Capital Nation |) 2 & 5 #4358 -

Capital Nation B Full Gold Trading Limited
([Full Gold ]) Z #2 HXHX%?@?@?‘EEU?
FENZEREXNBALTERER RIE
#l ° Full Gold 5§ 20166 A3 H # ™ B &
AR A Z YRR 7

EHAREREERM 22
Z RERER BBOKA o

CARBRE

FE W B & 2 B KA

ZRBAREER BER - AREXRE

B O UVHEHSEEREHRET @A
RIEE -

BT 18 B
HE2016F12A31BILEE  AEER
HY B i 48 Bh 32,075,000 7T I E A
ERR BERRBEEKSE - BB

WL AREHHE L ERE
SR IE R IS 0 T (R R A
BREMEE -
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 #;Z2016F12A31H IEFE

30. DEFERRED TAXATION 30. EELEBIE

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised
and movement thereon during the current and prior reporting periods.

Accelerated
Payroll and (accounting)

BRI RBARSHEECHAZEIRERL
MEREEE) REZEFHMT -

accrued tax
expenses depreciation Trademark Others Total
I8k EE(Es)
EstE A HEFE [5E H b &t
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET FABT FET FET
At 1 January 2015 m201561A18 = (2,120 — — (2,120)
Credit to profit or loss AR — (801) = — (801)
At 31 December 2015 MR2015F12 A31H — (2,921) — — (2,921)
(Credit) charge to profit or (5+ A#828) R B2
loss IR (497) (1,120) — 41 (1,576)
Acquisition of subsidiaries U4 i fft & 2 =]
(note 42) (P 5E42) (9,387) (3,141) 25,349 (397) 12,424
Exchange difference bEE o, =58 218 72 (576) 9 (277)
At 31 December 2016 #K20164F 12 831 H (9,666) (7,110) 24,773 (347) 7,650

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unutilised tax losses
of HK$16,250,000 (2015: HK$10,466,000) available to offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset had been recognised in respect of
the tax losses due to the unpredictability of future taxable profit
streams. The unrecognised tax losses at 31 December 2016 were
reduced by HK$22,984,000 due to the disposal of subsidiaries. Tax
losses of HK$6,938,000 (2015: HK$8,892,000) may be carried forward
indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries from 1
January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided for in
the consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary
attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting
to HK$5,750,000 (2015: HK$8,135,000) as the Group is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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RBEHAR AEEERANEBKEE
16,250,000 78 7T (20154 : 10,466,000 7
TT) DA 5 R 2R g5 Al o B PR R SR E AR B i
FI 7 /&8 A AT TE ORI - e A B R S B 18 R
RELEFRIEEE - W20165F12 H31H 2
iw R e R TR 75 5 18 B R 422,984,000 78
JC JyER R E KB A B BT B - FAE e
18 6,938,000/ 7t (20154 : 8,892,000
7S J0) S ] IR HA A5 8 o

RIEP B FEEHE - #2008 1 A1
Bt - BB A A AT R EUR A S R
ZRENEHMERNE - AERAEE
BRI B O E R EEEAER &R
A REREAT TSR C T =5
MEREWERETERPERBARZR
5T m A FE A5 2 B B 1 &= %832 5,750,0007%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

31. AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED PARTY/LOAN 31. ERNBELRE HMELEX
FROM A RELATED PARTY
The Group’s loan from Ms. Wai of HK$260,000,000 bears interest at 2.5% 7 55 B 5k B 1 &2 & 2. 260,000,000 7T &
per annum and is unsecured. As at 31 December 2015, the loan I AFEF FE2.6% 51 2 - WA -
should be repayable in October 2017 and during the year ended 31 M2015F 12 431 H + ZEEBEHER2017
December 2016, the repayment date of loan was extended to FI10R EE - M N & £2016F12 A 31
September 2018, HEFE ZERZEEAHBEEES

201849 H -

At 31 December 2016, the Group’s amount due to Ms. Wai of R2016F 12318 &~ & B E &
HK$1,083,000 (2015: HK$1,371,000) represents the interest payable % + Z X I81,083,000% JT (20154 :
for the loan from her. The amount is interest-free, unsecured and 1,371,000 70) B 2K B # 2 B R 2 T
repayable within twelve months from the end of the reporting period. FME -ZHRBEARE - EMEBRARSE

EHREF T ZEARNER-

Ms. Wai resigned as director of the Company on 9 August 2016. Bt R2016F8H9H B E A X A] &=
=o
Both amounts are denominated in HK$. ZERBEH A TTEHE ©
32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. A
Number of
ordinary shares Amount
ZTEREE o]
HK$’000
FAT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each: FREECIOE T E@mL
Authorised: JETE ¢
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 and R2015%F1H18 » 20154
31 December 2016 12 A31H X 2016412 A31H 5,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BEBITRHER :
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 and R2015F1 818 * 20154
31 December 2016 12 A31 H & 20165412 A31H 825,000,000 82,500
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 #;Z2016F12A31H IEFE

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 33. BRESTE

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed on 18 May 2011 for the purpose of
providing incentives to directors and eligible persons. The Scheme will
remain in force for a period of 10 years from adoption of such scheme
and will expire on 17 May 2021.

Under the Scheme, the board of directors of the Company could at
their discretion grant options to (i) any director, employee or consultant
of the Company or a company in which the Company holds an equity
interest or a subsidiary of such company (“Affiliate”); or (i) any
discretionary trust whose discretionary objects include any director,
employee or consultant of the Company or an Affiliate; or (i) a company
beneficially owned by any director, employee or consultant of the
Company or an Affiliate; or (iv) any customer, supplier or adviser as may
be determined by the directors of the Company from time to time to
subscribe for the shares of the Company.

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the date of grant.
The maximum number of shares of the Company in respect of which
options might be granted under the Scheme shall not exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company any point in time. The
maximum number of the shares of the Company in respect of which
options might be granted to any individual in any 12-month period shall
not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue on the last date
of such 12-month period unless approval of the shareholders of the
Company was obtained in accordance with the Listing Rules on the
Stock Exchange.

Options may be exercised during such period (including the minimum
period, if any, for which an option must be held before it could be
exercised) as may be determined by the directors of the Company (which
shall be less than ten years from the date of issue of the relevant
option). Options may be granted without initial payment. The exercise
price was equal to the highest of (i) nominal value of the shares of the
Company; (i) the closing price per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date of the grant of the
options; and (jii) the average closing price per share as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of the grant of the options.

No share options were granted since the adoption.
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

34. OPERATING LEASES

4. REHED

The Group as lessee AEBARAAEAA
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx T T
Minimum lease payments paid under operating FRABHAEZWER T EEH
leases in respect of office premises and retail a2 xEEERNR
shops during the year 24,446

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows:

RBERR REERTAIEHLEE
)2 KRR AR & Rz A HE 5| 5
I

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FHT

Within one year —FE R 27,644
In the second to fifth years inclusive REZEZEFAFRN(BEER

&) 19,970

More than five years 38 —

47,614

Operating lease payments represent rentals for the Group’s office, retall REHENREAERRAE - TEF

shops and restaurants. Leases are negotiated for an average term HEhkEBzH KiEEE HEZT

ranging from one to ten years. Monthly rental was fixed for certain HARBANF—ZE2+F - ETHEZEA

leases.

The above lease commitments represent basic rents only and do not
include contingent rents payable in respect of certain retail shops and
restaurants leased by the Group. In general, these contingent rents are
calculated with reference to the relevant retail shop’s and restaurants’
turnover using predetermined formulae. It is not possible to estimate in
advance the amount of such contingent rents payable. During the year
ended 31 December 2016, the amount of contingent rental recognised
as expenses were approximately HK$979,000 (2015: nil).

FHAEAREEEEAHAERTEER
SEAENETSEEHREE 2K
ABNGHES - E—RBRLT ZFEXR
He2REETEEHRERIE%E
HIRELEEHNANGE - ZFEMNR
ABEMESBEUL T EEESAIMHET - HE
2016F12ABIBLLFE BRAEAX
Z AT & & % % A979,000% jT (2015
FiE)o

BEZRABRLE —B-A FFH
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R B ER R Y R (AR)

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 #;Z2016F12A31H IEFE

35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 35. EARKIE

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET

Capital expenditure contracted for but not MEEME BEREEEEFTH

provided in the consolidated financial BARGEVERRANEEZ

statements in respect of the acquisition of BEARML N

property, plant and equipment 13,084

36.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Defined benefit scheme

The Group is a member of a defined benefit scheme which was open
to qualified employees of the Group’s subsidiaries. In December 2000,
all the then existing members of the defined benefit scheme were
enrolled into the MPF Scheme and their accrued benefits for the past
services under the defined benefit scheme were frozen as at 30
November 2000. The defined benefit scheme was closed to new
employees from December 2000 onwards.

Under the defined benefit scheme, employees are entitled to retirement
benefits varying between 0% and 100% of their salaries as at 30
November 2000 multiplied by the pensionable service up to 30
November 2000 on attainment of a retirement age of 55. No other
post-retirement benefits are provided.

The plan exposes the Group to actuarial risks such as investment risk

36. RIRTEFIGHE

R E R & 51 &

AEBE—BREMSTEZKE %
ENAAEECHBRARZE B
& 8 &% ° 200012 B + F & F &= 57T
BER2IMEXEEERMARE S
J-ﬁwﬁmﬂ<%%Tﬂ&%%z§
& 2% B 72000 11 A 30 H R 45 -

7E Al ﬁ%ﬁﬁmwimﬂt?ﬁ%’
FEBMA -

BEFRE M= 8 EE R FE555%
EWZ@M’TWHZﬁWmﬂEﬁ#
R E 7 2000F 11 308 2 ¥ B 2 0% &=
100% 1~ % + I 2 LA # 220004 11 A 30
Atz EAERREZRBEE - A&
B30 R4 g E At R KR AR I

EZE$§IJT§$E@EEWFM R R E

and interest rate risk. g N2 FI) 3= & g o
Investment risk ®E Rk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using AEFNRAEEBZHAENRREBHR

a discount rate determined by reference to the yields of the Hong Kong
Government Exchange Fund Notes; if the return on plan asset is below
this rate, it will create a plan deficit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B R R M R ()

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

36. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

Defined benefit scheme (Continued)

Interest rate risk

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability;
however, this will be partially offset by an increase in the return on the
plan’s debt investments.

The risk relating to benefits to be paid to the dependents of plan
members (widow and orphan benefits) is re-insured by an external
insurance company.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present
value of the defined benefit obligation was carried out as at 31
December 2016 by Towers Watson Hong Kong Limited. The present
value of the defined benefit obligation, the related current service cost
and past service cost were measured using the projected unit credit
method.

The main actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

36. RIKE R & @)

RERN =58 ;)

= & b
EHEAMEEEESHBMITEEE R
i ZBHEERHTEEGERED RS

R AR o

BRMAEKERECEREMR) XN
18 A B LB B S B AR B R R R R AR o

STEIEERA T mAERE Y &I
BEFHNABSEHBBERAARN
20164912 431 A {EH 511l » F & Fll & %
ﬁ’—‘iﬁfﬁ*aﬁazmﬁ&i‘%ﬁz}»i&ﬂﬁﬁ&
BRA T RAEGEMEEER

PERAZEIEBERRET :

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’000

FE T T T

Discount rate per annum FEHIF/E 0.8%

The actuarial valuation shows that the market value of plan assets at 31
December 2016 was HK$8,955,000 (2015: HK$8,529,000) and that
the actuarial value of these assets represented 235% (2015: 223%) of
the benefits that were accrued to members. The surplus at 31
December 2016 of HK$5,138,000 (2015: HK$4,697,000) is to be
cleared over the estimated remaining service period of the current
membership of 2 years (2015: 3 years).

BENEE T E & ER20165F12 A
318 Z ™ {& 48,955,000/ Jt (2015 :
8,529,000 L) Mz EFEEZfREE
BEHEE RS K B ST & 2235%
(20154 : 223%) ° 201612 A31H 2
& #3 #%5,138,0007% 7T (20154F : 4,697,000
YETL) BRI B 2 E M2 (20154 : 34F)
HERISREFHRNEE -

BEZRABRLE —B-A FFH
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R B ER R Y R (AR)

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F12H31H ILFE

36. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

Defined benefit scheme (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Amounts recognised in comprehensive income in respect of these
defined benefit plans are as follows.

36.

EARBAFTE @

RENZE @)

A = &k ()
REEREPER 2B
AHEIFRIEMT -

N
Rl
il
=
Bl

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHExT FHET
Net interest income = AE A 52
Component of defined benefit assets recognised R IB2E MR 2 A EA & E
in profit or loss 48 B B 10 52
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit AENSEEFHELILEHE
assets:
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts FEIEERK(TEEETA
included in net interest expense) R B FEENIE) 329
Actuarial gains (losses) fEE W (BE) (49)
Components of defined benefit assets recognised 7 H it & E W 28 h # R 2 7 F 7
in other comprehensive income = & EMARKEMD 280
Total ki 332

130 BEST FOOD HOLDING COMPANY LIMITED ~Annual Report 2016



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B R R M R ()

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

36. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

Defined benefit scheme (Continued)

The amount included in the consolidated statement of financial position
arising from the Group’s obligation in respect of its defined benefit
retirement benefit plan is as follows:

36. RIKE R & @)

RENZE @)

BRIAGAMERREDAEER AT
P B RER B RIEFEEY BB
-

2016 2015

HK$°000 HK$’'000

FET T T

Present value of funded defined benefit obligations 57 5 Fl| %5 & #& 2 IR & 3,832
Fair value of plan assets SrEEECZATFE (8,529)
Defined benefit asset AEMN=EE (4,697)

Movements in the present value of the funded defined benefit
obligations in the current year were as follows:

FARENSZAEREZEHUT :

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FAT

Opening balance B W) 45 o4 3,895
Interest cost FILB K AR 28

Benefit paid 21 Fl &= (140)
Actuarial (gains) losses BE () EiE 49
Closing balance HA K 4% 84 3,832
BRERERLAE —ZE—RFFER
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R B ER R Y R (AR)

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F12H31H ILFE

36. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (CONTINUED) 36. EIKERI 2 @)

Defined benefit scheme (Continued)

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current year were

RERN =58 ;)
ERHBEEATFEZEHNOT :

as follows:

2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$’'000
T FHET
Opening balance HA ¥ 45 £ 8,260
Interest income MEKA 80
Benefit paid EENRIES (140)

Remeasurement gain: B ERE
Return on plan assets &1 &1 & E B 3R 329
Closing balance HASR 45 8% 8,529

The major categories of plan assets at the end of the reporting period
are as follows:

FEIEERBERRZEEDHEMT

Fair value of plan assets

TEEEZATE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
Debt instruments EH5TH 8,529

The plan assets do not include any equity shares in the Company or
property held by the Group.

The fair value of the above debt instruments is determined based on
quoted market price in active markets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B R R M R ()

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

36. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (CONTINUED) 36. BIKREBER S @)
Defined benefit scheme (Continued) REFZ & m)
The history of experience adjustments is as follows: BEFAEETRWOT :
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#ET F& T F& T FE T FH T
Present value of defined 5 57E Fl &5 A& ¥E IR B
benefit obligations 3,832 3,895 6,300 6,428
Fair value of plan assets stEl&&E 2 A FE (8,529) (8,260) (10,186) (9,699)
Surplus Bk (4,697) (4,365) (3,886) (8,271)
Actuarial gains (losses) st & &R E W=
on plan liabilities (E#8) (49) 56 135 =
Actuarial gains on plan  t 2| & E B E W
assets — — — (185)
Defined contribution scheme AEMKEE

The Group also operates the MPF Scheme for all qualifying employees.

The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group,

in funds under the control of trustees. The Group contributes monthly
the lower of HK$1,500 or 5% of the relevant monthly payroll costs to
the MPF Scheme, which contribution is matched by employees. The
employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are members of a
state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the government

of the PRC. The Group is required to contribute certain percentage of
payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit

scheme is to make the specified contributions.

AEBERAMERERNERRY —HR
B2 -ZABZEERAEEZE
EDRFHE LHRIFEAES  AEE
[5R7E € 5t 8 3K1,6008 T FREE
FHR AR 25% (ABREERE) MER
ZHFLEER - AEBZ2HENBER
AZREVBPEBRMNEEZBEE R
BAET & 2B B o AL B AL H A <
ZETED L RERNKEMETEHERK - K
SEHAREKRBANFEHZEERIEN
HREZHERK -

BEZRABRLE —B-A FFH
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R B ER R Y R (AR)

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 #;Z2016F12A31H IEFE

37. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY

DISCLOSURES

37. HERBELSIRZEE

(i) During the year, the Group had transactions with related parties, ()
certain of which are also deemed to be connected parties
pursuant to the Listing Rules. Save as the interest expense and
arrangement for the issuance of convertible bonds as disclosed
in notes 8 and 24 respectively, the Group had transactions with

REBRFNEIEFBAFETRS
HPHEZREEMBAITHE A
B AL o BRI ES R 24D B4 &
FMEXHRAEBETARKRES
ZEPEN AEERFRNEZES

these parties during the year are as follows: FRETZRX ST :
Nature of
Name of party Relationship transactions
BHER 22RES REME 2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FHET
Related party
BEAL
Lee & Man (International) A company beneficially owned  Management fee 687
Investment Limited and controlled by Mr. Lee income received
BY(BER)REERAAF BELLEREAREZEGN 2z BREBEZERA
NG]
Capital Nation A company beneficially owned  Corrugated 1,126
and controlled by Ms. Lee cardboard and
Rosanna Man Lai, carton boxes
a daughter of Mr. Lee purchased
MEEEZZRENBLT BERHERRK
g T & | PA/NC] i)
Lee & Man Realty A company beneficially owned  Licence fee paid 2,537

Investment Limited
BYEXEBRAR

Note: The above companies ceased to be related companies of the

and controlled by Mr. Lee
MEEEERER RIES 2

NG

ENERER

Company when Full Gold ceased to be the ultimate holding
company of the Company since 3 June 2016.

(ii) Related and connected party balances

(ii)

Details of the Group’s outstanding balances with related parties
who are also the connected parties are set out in the
consolidated statement of financial position and notes 27, 28 and

31.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B R R M R ()

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

37. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY

DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(iii) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key

37. HERBEIRZIRE@

(i) TEEEEHS
EERAMTSEREHENE

management during the year was as follows: AZB&SWT :
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$’'000
TERT FAT
Short-term employee benefits HEBETEF 8,132
Post-employment benefits R RAE 108
8,240

38. OTHER RECEIVABLE FROM A FORMER

SUBSIDIARY

The balance represents the other receivable due from a former
subsidiary, which was disposed of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2016 (note 43). The amount is interest-free, unsecured and
expected to be recovered by the end of 2020 based on the sale and
purchase agreement for the Disposal as defined in note 43. The
discount rate in measuring the fair value of the other receivable is 10%
per annum. The recoverability of the other receivables is reviewed and
monitored by the Group closely. The directors of the Company consider
that the other receivable is recoverable. Subsequent to the reporting
date, the repayment date is changed to the end of 2017 based on a
supplementary agreement entered into by the Group and the new
owner of the former subsidiary.

38. RERKEA R zHEAMmEY

IE

ZERIERE RN EB AR 2 H b e
H AEEBAAEEBERE E20165F12A
STAIEFELE (MsF43) c Z RN BEAR
B SR - I 78 8 5 72 2020 F F K AY
RERHESHE(EERWF4HR) Z2EE
HEEE -FTEHMBERKEBELATFEZ
WK AT FE10% o EAth 8 KB 2 7]
WEMHEEAEBMEH L ZFER - K
ARAIEERE HMEKKEAA T I
Bl AREBHRE  EXRBHRBRERSE
EEAHB AR ZH#EE AT LA
WEE W A2017 FFE o
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R B ER R Y R (AR)

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 #;Z2016F12A31H IEFE

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

OF THE COMPANY

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December

2016 and 2015 are as follows:

39. KRTFZETEMMBARFERE

ARA7EZEBHBE R AR20164F £2015

F12A31B Z2=#BWOT ¢

Place and date of Issued and fully paid Attributable equity
incorporation/ share capital/ interest held by the Principal
Name of company establishment registered capital Group activities
o ERITRHAZRE rEBERAEZ
DE BB B i B % B S ER EaRAE R FEEK
2016 2015
Dongguan Deluxe Handbag The PRC Paid-in capital 100% 100% Manufacture and
Manufacturing Limited* (Note i) 11 January 2012 HK$1,000,000 sale of handbags
RELRFREBAT (MFH) [ FIRE AR SERHEFR
201241 A 118 1,000,000 7T
Dongguan Jia Xin Handbag The PRC Registered and paid-in 100% 100% Manufacture of
Company Limited* (Note i) 25 February 2014 capital HK$10,000,000 handbags
REREFRERAF (M) H B A RERE R SEFR
201452 A25H 10,000,000 7T
Dongguan Lee Wai Handbag The PRC Registered and paid-in 100% 100% Manufacture and
Co. Ltd* (Note i) 25 September 2009 capital HK$6,000,000 sale of handbags
RENBFRERRAR (Ki&) A B FE R B E AR HERHEFR
2009F 9 A 25H 6,000,000/ 7T
Dongguan Wei Hua Handbag The PRC Registered and paid-in 100% 100% Manufacture of
Company Limited* (Note i) 28 January 2014 capital HK$10,000,000 handbags
REBEFRERAR (M) H Y SR EWKE R Bl F X
201441 H28H 10,000,000% 7T
Harvey Handbags Company Limited Myanmar Registered and paid-in 100% 100% Manufacture of
19 August 2015 capital USD1,500,000 handbags
) s R E & AR HEFR
201548 A19H 1,500,000 7T
Lee & Man Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000,000 100% 100% Manufacture and
21 November 1978 sale of handbags
BXFITRRAA BB L 3 % 1,000,000 7T SEREEFR
197811 218
Non-voting deferred
HK$1,000,000
EREREERS
1,000,000 7T
Lee & Man Handbag (Thailand) Thailand Ordinary Baht 30,000,000 100% 100% Property holding in
Company Limited 11 November 1997 Thailand
Zx B - 38 1% 30,000,000 Z= $k REBEREYE
1997411 A11H
Lee & Man Handbag Manufacturing Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100% Manufacture and

Company Limited
BYFRBEERAA

20 August 1976
)
1976 8 A20H
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R B R R M R ()

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Place and date of
incorporation/

(%)

Issued and fully paid
share capital/

Attributable equity

39. KRB ZETEWMBATFERE

interest held by the Principal

Name of company establishment registered capital Group activities
AL ERTRARZKRE rEBEREZ
AREE MR B R B = i & A< BiE R A gD FTEXK
2016 2015
Lee & Man Management Company Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100% Provision of
Limited 24 November 1992 management and
administration
services
BXEBEBERAQA BB L@k T REEERITER
1992 11 A 24 H %
Pernelle Development Company Limited  The British Virgin Ordinary USD90 N/A 100% Sale of handbags
(Note iii) Islands
29 August 2013
Pernelle Development Company Limited 2 /& fz Z B & 3@ AR 903 T i A HEFH
(Pt =) 201348 A29H
Beijing HHG Restaurant Management The PRC Registered and paid-in 60% N/A  Chinese fast food
Co. Ltd. (“Beijing HHG") (Note ii) 2 December 2003 capital RMB10,000,000 restaurants chain
ERFMEAEREEGRAR ( [Em $H A REKERARE TER PBREHEHREE
Maal ) (HEk) 200312 A2 H 10,000,000 7T
Tianjin HHG Restaurant Management The PRC Registered and paid-in 60% N/A  Chinese fast food

Co. Ltd. (Note ii

REMaAEREREGR DA (5N

11 September 2013
B
20139 H11H

*  English name for identification purposes only.

Notes:

capital RMB500,000
A REKERARE
500,000 7T

*

NEm +F

X BB E MR o

B & -

(i) The companies are registered in the form of wholly-owned foreign (0]

investment enterprises.

(ii) These companies are newly acquired during the year ended 31 December (ii)

2016.

(i) The entire equity interest of Pernelle Development Company Limited was (iii
disposed to an independent third party on 1 December 2016. Details are

set out in note 43.

restaurants chain
Bl EHIRE S

ZERAASNEEE ©EH A -

ZERRABREE20166F12A8318 1t

FEHMBERG -

Pernelle Development Company Limited 2
2 EHREN2016F12A1BEHE T —
BEUE=TF o FEHRMI 43 -

BREEZRARAE

ZE-REFR
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R B ER R Y R (AR)

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 #;Z2016F12A31H IEFE

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 39. KRARZEENMBARIFE

OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affect the results or assets and
liabilities of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

The deferred shares of the above entities practically carry no rights to
participate in profits or surplus assets or to receive notice of or to
attend or vote at any general meeting of the respective companies or to
participate in any distribution on winding up.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the end

()

EEZRE ERMAIZARAIKNERA]
BAEBZEXEREERBBEERER
FE - EFRL RUEEMNEARZ
HREEXRERNBRITE -

A LB ZIEER M ER LI EKMSE
M2EYKENREBHREEREREH
AAREMRRASZAEHHEAS
INELREXZEBRZEMDIK

BB R AR F R F AT ERS

of the year, or at any time during the year. BEREREBITEINZEBES -
Details of a non-wholly owned subsidiary that has BEEEREEREGZHZE
material non-controlling interest LG

The Group’s non-wholly-owned subsidiaries that have material non- AREEBRREHRER E A IEFERHE R
controlling interests at the end of the reporting period include Beijing ZIEERNBARIBEIERNEARE
HHG and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “HHG Group”). MiE AR (T X %&;fﬂl EAEE] TR

The table below shows details of the HHG Group that have material
non-controlling interests:

Place of incorporation/ Proportion of ownership

establishment and
principal place of

held by non- controlling

interest and voting rights

BRMa
2B

AEREREE 2ERIFIZRE

Profit allocated to Accumulated

Name of subsidiary business interest non-controlling interests  non-controlling interests
AL B B R EEEERLOR

MEAR AR TEERME FEREEMEREE IREFERESZET Rt FERER
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TR FHET THERT FTET
Beijing HHG The PRC N/A N/A N/A
ERAER i TERA TERA TER
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e B R Rk M aE (4E)

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 39. KRARZEENMBARIFE

OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) (1®)

Details of a non-wholly owned subsidiary that has BEEARFEREZZIFETE
material non-controlling interest (Continued) M= NG AC )

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s subsidiary BRAAEEERESE KIEERESHEA
that has material non-controlling interest is set out below. The B2 BEERBMEE N T X o N5 6%
summarised financial information below represents amounts before BRI EEERANHEAI 2S5 -

intra-group eliminations.

HHG Group MeERKHE
2016
HK$°000
FET
Current assets mENE E
Non-current assets ERBE E
Current liabilities mEEE
Non-current liabilities ERBAGE
Equity attributable to owners of Beiing HHG tEME A AEEERS
Non-controlling interests FE 12 AR =
Revenue U z§
Profit for the year F 5% A
Profit attributable to owners of the Company AABHEE AL R F
Profit for the year attributable to the non-controlling  FF 42 A% 42 25 F& 15 F /€ )i 7
interests
Profit for the year F[E % A
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R B ER R Y R (AR)

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F12H31H ILFE

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

39.

Details of a non-wholly owned subsidiary that has
material non-controlling interest (Continued)

HHG Group

RRFZEEMBLAFR
(/0

BREEARFEREZZHEEZE
B BB A B FEE ()
AARER
2016
HK$°000
FHT

Other comprehensive expense for the year
attributable to the owner of the Company

Other comprehensive expense for the year
attributable to the non-controlling interests

ARARFEBEABREFEEMEEFAX

FERESEEFEEMEEMAX

FREEMEMERMNX

Other comprehensive expense for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable
to the owners of the Company

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable
to the non-controlling interests

ARARHEEARGEFEE2HNSAHE

FERESEEFEEHERGSAE

Total comprehensive income 2H W =B
Net cash inflow from operating activities CEEFEERSRANFRE

Net cash outflow from investing activities
Net cash outflow from financing activities

BRERBHELER M HFRE
RERBELRS R FHE

Net cash inflow BemAFRE

140 BEST FOOD HOLDING COMPANY LIMITED ~Annual Report 2016



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B R R M R ()

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

40. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 40. EXE s EE
The Group manages its capital to ensure the entities in the Group will AREBHETEARAER  UBRRAEEE
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to TEERBREAHERLSEE  REEG
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. BEBHBLEIRANEE  AREFEZEA
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year. Bl e REBAEEREE EFE K
REFTE -
The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which includes AREENEAEEBEREFAEGE(BIER
the loan from and amount due to a related party disclosed in note 31, BERERNEMNBERFZRB(RE
net of bank balances and cash, and equity attributable to owners of the RMsE31) B RITEB LIRS KA
Company, comprising issued share capital and various reserves. REFEEAELEZ(BEEETRA
REIEFE)
The directors of the Company review the capital structure periodically. KRB EEFrHRTNEARE - EAR
As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and the BRI — 8D EFEZEELRAKAKN R
risks associated with each class of capital. Based on recommendations ZSEEARNNEBER - R TF EEHNE
of the directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure FOAEEBEBRMNKE  BITHRK
through the payment of dividends, new share issues as well as issue of K2 B 1T 5 15 DA - 1y L R é $ RiE o
new debts.
41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 41. €T A
41a. Categories of financial instruments Ma. BT EZER
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
TE R FAT
Financial assets TEREE
Loans and receivables (including cash and ERMERFE(BERE R
cash equivalents) HEZEEY) 388,833
FVTPL KRB E A FER
— Derivative financial instrument —fTESmT ,E: =
— Other financial assets —HemEE —
Financial liabilities EEEE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REHEREAANSREE 331,536
FVTPL RIERBRAFEHE
— Derivative financial instruments —fTESmITA 1,284
BAEERERAE =—F—REFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B ER R Y R (AR)

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 #;Z2016F12A31H IEFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

41b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include other receivable
from a former subsidiary, trade and other receivables, amount
due from an associate, other financial assets, bank balances and
cash, trade and other payables, derivative financial instruments,
amount due to a related company, amount due to a related party
and loan from a related party. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Market risk

(i) Currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and the PRC
and the exposure in exchange rate risks mainly arises from
fluctuations of foreign currencies, including Euro, HK
dollars and RMB against the functional currency of the
relevant group entities. Material transactions and balances
that are not denominated in the functional currency of the
relevant entities give rise to foreign currency exposure as
follows:

(i) Euro — in terms of revenue and bank balances

(i) HK dollars and RMB — in terms of revenue,
expenses, bank balances and cash and capital
expenditure

Exchange rate fluctuations and market trend have always
been the concern of the Group. As HK dollars are linked
with US dollars, the Group does not have material
exchange risk on this currency pair.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B R R M R ()

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

41b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(i)

41. €@ I A

Mb.BEEREEEEREE

(%)
Market risk (Continued) m i51—1. B ()
Currency risk (Continued) () E%EE &)
Non-derivative foreign currency monetary assets and FEPTE SN B BT MR E R B
monetary liabilities B &
At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amount of RIEEAR  NE B HEE
the Group’s monetary assets and monetary liabilities SEERBIEEEAINE
(excluding those in HK dollars for entities with US dollars ZEBEENEEAB(A
as functional currency) denominated in currencies other EEIEMENEER BE
than the functional currency of the relevant group entities TTZEEKRIN)  EEEEMN
are as follows: T e
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THET FAT
Monetary assets E¥EE
Euro BX T 201
HK dollars BT 257,245
RMB AR 1,703
Monetary liabilities E¥EE
Euro X 7T 65
HK dollars T 264,011
RVB AR 165
BAEERERAE =—F—REFR
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R B ER R Y R (AR)

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 #;Z2016F12A31H IEFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

41b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

Non-derivative foreign currency monetary assets and
monetary liabilities (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
(2015: 5%) increase and decrease in the functional
currency of the relevant group entities against the above
foreign currencies. 5% (2015: 5%) is the sensitivity rate
used when reporting foreign currency risk and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates.

The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items other than those
denominated in HK dollars held by entities whose
functional currency is US dollars because HK dollars are
linked to US dollars. A strengthening of the above foreign

£/ T B
Mb.BEEAREEEEREE

(%)

m%ﬂ%@)

(i)

B ¥ E kR (&)

FITEINEEREEEREK
BE (%)

HREE D

TRFLASEEEEBEE
ERZIEEBE EaNg
B £ F & T B&5% (20154 :
5%) BB =X & © 5% (2015 4F :
5%) 7% BB R AN R B BT A A9
BRE URRKEEETMH
HNEBTERM S IR REE B o

BREDMEBRE W RFE
RHONETIEZEH¥IRE -
HNREEBRETZERM

A NKEBTIMEE I
REZBTIIEEXTHE -

currencies against the functional currency of the relevant A 1 Y == Sl oS el
group entities would give rise to the following impact to ZheeEE g Al e
post-tax profit for the year and vice versa. HF E B & 5 R & B LA T
TE RZIA
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FAT
Monetary assets and liabilities: EMEERARE:
(Decrease) increase on post-tax profit FREBRHERF O L) 15 m
for the year
— Euro — BT 7
— HK dollars — BT (282)
— RMB — AR 64
Derivative financial instruments TEZFTA

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group had
entered into foreign currency forward contracts with banks
to reduce its exposure to currency fluctuations risk of RMB
against USD. These derivatives were not accounted for
under hedge accounting. The Group was required to
estimate the fair value of these derivative financial
instruments at the end of the reporting period, which
therefore exposed the Group to foreign currency risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B R R M R ()

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

41b. Financial risk management objectives and

(i)

(ii)

41. €@ I A

Mb.BEEREEEEREE

policies (Continued) (%)
Market risk (Continued) ™% & (&)
Currency risk (Continued) () E%EEEE)
Derivative financial instruments (Continued) tTEL R TA(E)
Sensitivity analysis BRRE DT
If the forward exchange rate of RMB against USD had 15 A B H 22 T # iR H B &
been 5% higher/lower while all other input variables of the EFA 5% - i1 (B 48 A
valuation models were held constant, the Group’s post-tax ZETE EMb A By A B %
profit for the year would increase (decrease) as follows: BAE AANEBR2FER
i 1% % A1 5 = 38 o0 Ok 2>) @A
T
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
THxT FHET
Higher by 5% EF5%
Derivative financial instruments MESMTIA 1,779
Lower by 5% T 5%
Derivative financial instruments MEemMIA (1,610)
Interest rate risk (i) FE =B
The Group’s fair value and cash flow interest rate risks REEZ AFERR SR
mainly relate to its fixed rate loan from a related party (see XRBREIEENEESBE
note 31 for details of the loan). The Group’s bank balances TERERFBHRHE
also have exposure to cash flow interest rate risk due to 31) e REE Z RITHE BRI
the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate on FESRIT & 88 2 & A T 35 A K
bank balances. the directors consider the Group’s B B T H B3R R E A R E
exposure to fair value interest rate risk in relation to its R BERRAEEFERE
short term fixed-rate bank deposits is not significant as HESRITERMEBRZ A
interest bearing bank balances are within short maturity FEMNEXRBRIYTEKR R
periods. EZEBRITEHHERN
REINE o
The Group currently does not have any interest rate AEBEMYETRNEBAR
hedging policy in relation to fair value interest rate risks. FAE A X 59 ) X S R
The directors monitor the Group’s exposure on an ongoing K- BERBEEAKEERB
basis and will consider hedging interest rate risk should the RzER YEAFTERZE
need arise. R = @ o
The directors consider the cash flow interest rate risk is EEZRn BAEaRENEE
insignificant and therefore no sensitivity analysis is BRI NEA B ERRESR
prepared. RRE DT o
BRERERLAE —ZE—RFFER
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R B ER R Y R (AR)

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 #;Z2016F12A31H IEFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) £@ T A @

Mb.BEEAREEEEREE

41b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties provided
by the Group is arising from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The Group is also exposed to
concentration of credit risk as a substantial portion of its sales is
generated from a limited number of customers. At 31 December
2016, the top five customers of the Group accounted for about
29% (2015: 42%) of the Group’s trade receivables.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at the end of reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on bank deposits and other financial assets is
limited because the counterparties are banks with good
reputation.

The Group is also exposed to concentration on credit risk on
other receivable from a former subsidiary. Exposure to credit risk
is managed through regular analysis of the ability of the former
subsidiary to meet repayment obligation. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the credlit risk in relation
to other receivable from a former subsidiary is monitored on a
revolving basis and subject to a quarterly or more frequent
review.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B R R M R ()

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

41b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuation in cash flows. The Group also
has available banking facilities to meet its short-term working
capital requirements. The management monitors the utilisation of
bank borrowings and ensure compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The maturity dates for other non-
derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment
dates. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent the interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from interest rate at the end of the reporting
period.

In addition, the following table details the Group’s liquidity
analysis for its derivative financial instruments. The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual net cash
(inflows) and outflows on derivative instruments that settle on a
net basis. The liquidity analysis for the Group’s derivative financial
instruments are prepared based on the contractual maturities as
the management consider that the contractual maturities are
essential for an understanding of the timing of the cash flows of
derivatives.

41. €@ T B u@m)
Mb.MBEREEEERKE

(%)

REBESRER
EEERDESRARE AEEE
ERGEFRAEIBASFEMRE
BEREBRRANKF  UBEXAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B ER R Y R (AR)

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F12H31H ILFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 41. €/ T A @)

Mo HEREBEEREE

41b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

(%)

Liquidity risk (Continued) EE SRR @
Weighted
average Total
effective  On demand 31-60 61-90 91-365 Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate or 0-30 days days days days 365days  cash flows amount
g
mELY  EBERF ReRE
BERFE 0Z30Kk 31Z60X 61Z90K 91Z365%k RiBWSK @t REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TEL TET TET
As at 31 December 2016 12016512 431 A
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ 4 £REaE
Non-interest bearing )
Consideration payable for acquisition U8 i B A &l 2
of subsidiary ERRE
Fixed interest rate instruments EEIA
Weighted
average Total
effective  On demand 31-60 61-90 91-365 Over  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate  or 0-30 days days days days 365 days cash flows amount
i)
MEFY  EERY Reng
ERFE  0E0X BZE60K 61Z0X 91Z366R BB 5t RafE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TAT TAT TET TAT TEL TEL
As at 31 December 2015 2015612 4318
Non-derivative financial liabilites ~ #fT£ &M EE
Non-interest bearing Rt 8 = 69,165 1,000 - 1,371 - 71,536 71,536
Fixed interest rate instruments EEIA 2.5 = = = = 271,629 271,629 260,000
69,165 1,000 - 1,371 271,629 343,165 331,636
Derivative financial liability fTESREE
— net settiement - FERK
Foreign exchange forward contracts ~ SMNEZEEA 4 - il 543 - - - 1,284 1,284
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e B R Rk M aE (4E)

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 41. €@ I A
41c. Fair value measurements of financial Mc.ERITEZAFEFE
instruments

This note provides information about how the Group determines AT IRETAEERENAEE S

fair values of various financial assets and financial liabilities. HemEERESREBBEZATE

BYER -

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial 0] AEFERFBERANFEFEN
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring CRHEENSRAEENAT
basis (=]

Some of the Company’s financial assets and financial REREHR FMHAR A
liabilites are measured at fair value at the end of each tRMEENEREBENERA
reporting period. The following table gives information FEGE . TRIREWOEE
about how the fair values of these financial assets and TZEsREERSRAR
financial liabilities are determined (in particular, the valuation ZATFEHER (FRIZME
technique(s) and inputs used). B R E RN &8 A B -
Fair value Valuation technique(s) Significant unobservable
Financial assets/financial liabilities Fair value as at hierarchy and key input(s) input(s)
SREE/LRER AYER AYERA HEATRIZEBAZE EATURERAZE
31/12/2016 31/12/2015

1) Foreign currency forward contracts Nil Liabilities Level 2 Discounted cash flows. Future N/A

classified as derivative financial — HK$1,284,000 cash flows are estimated based

instruments on forward exchange rates (from

observable forward exchange

rates at the end of the reporting
period) and contracted forward
rates, discounted at a rate that
reflects the credit risk of various

counterparties.
AEARITESRIANNERBE z B Fofh HRBRERE -BREERPEX TEA
) 128400057 (ARBEARTBEN R
HEXGH) RETONE
B EREHARR SR
B URAREEAHFLEE
Bl S dis
2 Investment in unlisted wealth Assets Nil Level 3 Discounted cash flows. Future Expected rate of retum of financial
management products classified as — HK$17,045,000 cash flows are estimated based asset (Note 1).
other financial assets on unobservable expected
rates of retum of financial
asset.
RABREMEREEMELTE BE z F3R FREERE-RECREEZ SRAEZRAERE
VERRE 17,045,000/ 7 TABRERARRE - fh EDE
AREERE -
3)  Put option on issuance of convertible Assets Nil Level 3 Binomial option pricing model Expected volatility of the underlying
bonds — HK$7,020,000 based on expected volatility of convertible bonds and
the underlying convertible expected volatility of the market
bonds and expected volatility price of the Company’s share
of the market price of the (Note 2).
Company’s share.
BMBRRES 2R HE BE Z F3R ERARAROTELRAR ARARGTEZEERD
~7,020,000% 70 B ARARDZTERD (Mi3E2)
RERRTIE —EAHE
EERA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B ER R Y R (AR)

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 #;Z2016F12A31H IEFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

41c. Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

(i) (Continued)

There were no transfers amongst Level 1, Level 2 and
Level 3 for both years.

Note 1: An increase in expected rate of return of financial asset
used in isolation would result in an increase in the fair
value measurement of the investment in unlisted wealth
management products, and vice versa.

Note 2: An increase in expected volatility of the market prices of
the Company’s share would result in an increase in the
fair value measurement of the put option on issuance of
convertible bonds, and vice versa.

(i) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are
not measured at fair value on a recurring basis (but fair
value disclosures are required)

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities (excluding derivative
instruments) recognised in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the fair value measurements
of derivative financial instruments of the Group are categorised
into Level 3 and Level 2 respectively. The fair values of the
financial liabilities included in the Level 2 category above have
been determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on a discounted cash flow analysis, with the most
significant inputs being the discount rate that reflects the credit
risk of counterparties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B R R M R ()

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

41d. Financial assets and financial liabilities subject
to offsetting, enforceable master netting

arrangements and similar agreements

The disclosures set out in the tables below include financial
assets and financial liabilities that are subject to an enforceable
master netting arrangement or similar agreement that covers

similar financial instruments, irrespective of whether they are
offset in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position.

Financial assets subject to offsetting, enforceable
master netting arrangements and similar

agreements

1. @@ I Auwm)

MNd B RIEEH - ATHATHRESE
ZHERBEUHEZEME
ERTEBMAE
TRARZBELE S RTNT
BEBTHRABERUSBTA
ZHELUBRZEMAERSBEA
& MTHREERAEEZEAM
BRARAIEE -

BREE THTREHER
ERELUMEZEREE

Related amounts not set off in

Gross amounts of Net amounts of  the consolidated statement of
recognised financial financial assets financial position
liabilities setoffin ~ presentedinthe ~ ¥ EREZAHBRIER
Gross amounts the consolidated consolidated BEz2HBEE
of recognised statement of statement of Financial Cash collateral
financial assets financial position financial position instruments received  Net amount
GRUBRARA KEUBRARRA
ERALH HEHICEALH 2ilzeR 2 KB
BELE aEEE BERE E$HMIAE HeHAR RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT THT THT THT THEL
As at 31 December 2015 R2015%F12A31H
Bank balances BITEH 17,021 - 17,021 (1,284) - 15,737

Financial liabilities subject to offsetting, enforceable
master netting arrangements and similar

agreements

BREHE THATHREHER
ERBEOHBEZERAE

Related amounts not set off in

Gross amounts of Net amounts of the consolidated statement of
recognised financial ~ financial liabilities financial position
Gross amounts  assetssetoffinthe  presentedinthe Y ERGSHBEHRRER
of recognised consolidated consolidated BEHEzAALE
financial statement of statement of Financial Cash collateral
liabilities financial position  financial position instruments received  Net amount
GEMBERARA HKEHBRRERA
ERALH HBHZCEALH 2hzeRm B
AEEE BEAE AEFE E¢RMIE BeEAm RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR A7 FA TR FAT  TER
As at 31 December 2015 R2015612 A31 A
Derivatives fTETR (1,284) - (1,284) 1,284 - -
BAEERERAE =—F—REFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B ER R Y R (AR)

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 #;Z2016F12A31H IEFE

42. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 42. WEKB QA

On 15 September 2016, Delightful Year Holdings Limited (“Delightful
Year”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with Ms. Chen Ying (“the Seller”), an
independent third party, pursuant to which Delightful Year conditionally
agreed to purchase and the Seller conditionally agreed to sell 60%
equity interest in HHG Group for a cash consideration of
RMB93,120,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$108,683,000) and a
deferred cash consideration of RMB24,290,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$27,827,000) with an interest rate of 3.3% per
annum, which is payable before 25 October 2017 (the “Acquisition”).
The present value of deferred cash consideration at the date of
acquisition amounted to HK$26,930,000. The Acquisition was
completed on 31 October 2016 (the “Completion Date”). HHG Group is
principally engaged in the business of Chinese fast food restaurants
chain business under “Hehegu” brand in the PRC.

MR2016FQA15H A R ZEK B A
AEFERERAR(EF])HBBLF
=FBRELZE((ERFDIZEE HH
Bt  EFHEKHREBEME S B IK
HRABELENEASEE 260%&#E « &
£ REA ARBI3,120,0007T (H8E R4
108,683,000 7T) RIEEIR £ K E R/ A
R #24,290,0007T (48 & P #927,827,000
BT ) W LA F E33%Et B A A
MR2017E10H258 A X ([ W B =
B REBRERAZELCHRSNRERES
26,930,000/ 7T © U B = 18 E 1201645
10A31B(ZKBDTK - MEAEE
FEERBUATME A RS EE
HIRBEET -

Consideration transferred EEBRE
HK$’'000
FHT
Cash o 4 108,683
Deferred considerations payable JEIEERE 26,930
135,613

Acquisition-related costs amounting to HK$714,000 have been
excluded from the consideration transferred and have been recognised
as an expense in the current year, within the general and administrative
expenses line item in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B R R M R ()

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

42. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 42. WEE BB A B @)
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition are RWEBBHEEAZEWEBEEREEMN
as follows: ™
HK$’'000
T T
Property, plant and equipment (note 15) Y B B (MHEE15) 37,510
Rental and utility deposits HERKERS 12,862
Prepayment for equity investments & 75 3% & 8 {5 ;UIE 4,116
Intangible assets (note 21) A E (fsEa1) 108,657
Deferred tax assets (note 30) IR E 75 & = (M a£30) 12,925
Trade and other receivables FEUNE 5 & B b 5k 32,545
Inventories FE 8,635
Other financial assets HEmtEemiEE 17,442
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRIES 28,529
Trade and other payables BB 5 Rk H 518 (83,736)
Tax payable FER IR (4,014)
Deferred tax liabilities BEHBEE (25,349
Amount due to a shareholder FE S AR R 3R IR (7,268)
Net assets acquired BB EEFE 137,854
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B ER R Y R (AR)

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F12H31H ILFE

42. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 42. WEEKI B A 7 @)

The fair value of trade and other receivables at the date of acquisition
amounted to HK$32,545,000. The gross contractual amounts of those
trade and other receivables acquired amounted to HK$32,545,000 at
the date of acquisition. The contractual cash flows are expected to be
collected under the best estimate at acquisition date.

RERAZEKRE S REMRIBZRAF
8 432,545,000/8 70 c R B - Z 5 E
WESRHEMHRBZERBSREENERE
#32,545,0008 T - RUWHE B @ RIB&E
et EHBAKEAENBEERE -

Goodwill arising on acquisition WEBFEEZEE
HK$’000
T
Consideration transferred EEERE 135,613
Plus: non-controlling interests N SRR S
(40% in HHG Group) (FEAEEZ40%) 55,142
Less: net assets acquired W BB EEFE (137,854)
52,901

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition

WEFEE Z2RER HFHE

HK$’000

T T

Consideration paid in cash I A ] 108,683
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired J& : B BSR4 RIR & ZE &L (28,529)
80,154

The non-controlling interest in HHG Group recognised at the acquisition
date was measured with reference to the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the fair value of the net assets of HHG Group at
that date.

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of HHG Group because the cost of
the combination effectively included amounts in relation to the benefit
of expected revenue growth, future market development and the
assembled workforce of HHG Group. These benefits are not
recognised separately from goodwill because they do not meet the
recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets.
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42.

43.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B R R M R ()

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Included in the profit for year ended 31 December 2016 were revenue
of HK$63,377,000 and profit of HK$3,398,000 attributable to the
business generated by HHG Group.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2016, total group
revenue for the year would have been HK$898 million, and profit for the
year would have been HK$27 million. The pro forma information is for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue
and results of operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2016, nor
is it intended to be a projection of future results.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND CERTAIN
ASSETS OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 1 December 2016, the Group and an independent third party
entered into a sale and purchase agreement so that the Group agreed
to dispose its entire equity interest in Pernelle Development Company
Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “Pernelle Group”)
and certain assets of subsidiaries for a total consideration of
HK$30,000,000 (the “Disposal”’). The Pernelle Group is principally
engaged in sale of handbags.

42.

43.

U B8 B B A B ()

ST AEZE2016F 12 A31 H IEFE 2 % F
7 U 2563,377,00078 7 ¢ M EME A A A
& B ¥ 7% BT E 4 /9 : £ B A& 3,398,00078

JG °

iU BB =B E R2016F1 A1H MK @ &
EEEEWZG A88AEE BT ME
EEMAB2TEEE L ZtEEERHE
HEHAAS RO RERANEERRZR
BBER2016F1 A1 XN BRTNE
BBl aREEEE  TTHRIEA
RIREEMNTER -

HEHNBLARRKELRSE
TEE

R20165F 1210 - A& B H — £ 5
VEZRHIVLEEHHE Bt A&
[ & i & H 7 Pernelle Development
Company Limited & H [ff B & 7 ( & 1§
[Pernelle & [ 1) 2 2 B Ik # X Bff 8 1 7
Z & T EE  # MK ER30,000,000%# T
([HEEME]) - Pernellet: B = Z 1t &= 4
BEFH-

HK$’000

T T

Cash consideration received EWBRBEESKE

30,000

BEZRABRLE —B-A FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B ER R Y R (AR)

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F12H31H ILFE

43. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND CERTAIN 43. HENEB AR EHMBARASE
ASSETS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) FEE @
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control REERGEZEEREBDIT
was lost
1.12.2016
HK$’'000
FHET
Property, plant and equipment (note 15) M - BB R E (MEE15) 6,905
Amount due from former group companies JiE Uk BT &5 B & B3R IB 1,346
Inventories T8 5,738
Trade and other receivables JEUWNE 5 K B fth 5k I8 8,127
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRR S 861
Trade payable to former group companies FENRIEEARE 5 NIE (6,704)
Amount due to former group companies AR I NGIE- @ (17,713)
Trade and other payables FER B 5 K H 518 (1,949
Net liabilities disposed of BEHEFAEE (3,389)
Gain on Disposal HEEE K&
Consideration RE 30,000
Net liabilities disposed of BEHEFEE 3,389
Gain on disposal HE W 33,389

Cash inflow arising on Disposal HESEMELERESRA

Cash consideration received BURER & KRB 30,000
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of B EHERTEREE S (861)
29,139
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B R R M R ()

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

44, KPR B RAAR KR FEE

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FE T FAETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR 2 &’E 18,592
Other receivable from a former subsidiary G ENGIE: X s P4
Derivative financial instrument PTESRITA I
18,592
CURRENT ASSETS mEEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries A ENGIE S 38,270
Prepayment T8 FE 422
Bank balances and cash RITEHRERE 238,274
276,966
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Amount due to a related party FE 1 B & 5 518 1,371
Other payables H b JE 5T 58 156
1,627
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFHE 275,439
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 25 ER GBS E 294,031
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY FREBEE
Loan from a related party fE5 B 260,000
34,031
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B &E
Share capital R 7 82,500
Reserves (Note) e 18 (Bt ) (48,469
TOTAL EQUITY B 34,031
BRERERLAE —ZE—RFFER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B ER R Y R (AR)

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F12H31H ILFE

44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Note:

Reserves

44, KA TMBERMRER R F#E @

1

Accumulated Special

profits reserve Total

RE&ER 45 B # B &t

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FHE T FET T T

At 1 January 2015 #201541 A18 11,452 (49,345) (37,893)

Loss for the year FEEBRA (2,326) = (2,326)

Dividends recognised as distribution BRAED KIS (8,250) — (8,250)

At 31 December 2015 MK2015F 12 A31 H 876 (49,345) (48,469)

Profit for the year FEEIE 6,953 — 6,953
Deemed contribution from the immediate 18 A B R A T H &

holding company — 7,020 7,020

At 31 December 2016 RK20164F 12 A31 H 7,829 (42,325) (34,496)

45. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF REPORTING 45, HERRBREIE

PERIOD

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the following events
took place:

()

On 1 December 2016, the Group entered into a sales and
purchase agreement with non-controlling interests to further
acquire 19% of equity interest in HHG Group with a consideration
of RMB41,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$46,591,000).
The transaction was completed on 9 January 2017. Accordingly,
the equity interest of the Company in HHG Group further
increased from 60% as at 31 December 2016 to 79% as at 9
January 2017. The Group has accounted for the increase in the
Group’s ownership interest in HHG Group as an equity
transaction and recognise any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid in capital reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B R R M R ()

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016F12A31H ILFE

45. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF REPORTING
PERIOD (CONTINUED)

(i)

(i)

On 4 January 2017, the Company issued convertible bonds in
the aggregate principal amount of HK$160,000,000. The
conversion price of the convertible bonds is HK$1.18 per share
and assuming full conversion, the convertible bonds will be
converted into 135,593,220 shares in the Company. The
proceeds from the issue amounted to HK$160,000,000. The
directors of the Company are in the process of assessing the
related financial impacts to the consolidated financial statements.

On 12 January 2017, the Group entered into a capital increase
agreement (the “Agreement”) with non-controlling interests of
HHG Group. Pursuant to the Agreement, the Group would
further contribute a sum of RMB50,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$56,551,000) in cash to HHG Group, a non-
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, of which
RMB2,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$2,262,000) was
contributed to the registered capital of HHG Group and
RMB48,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$54,289,000)
would be contributed to the capital reserve of HHG Group.
Details of which the above were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 6 March 2017 and the transaction was
completed on the same date. Accordingly, the equity interest of
the Company in HHG Group further increased from 79% as at 9
January 2017 to 82.56% as at 6 March 2017. The Group has
accounted for the increase in the Group’s ownership interest in
HHG Group as an equity transaction and recognise any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid
in capital reserve.

WEHREEE @)

(i)

(i)

R2017F1 A48 @ AL B 170
B ES - A< #%58 5160,000,000
BT ARKREFCERERE
f%1.187% It fE““T%ﬁﬁHxL%Z%
THE®R HEBESAR
135,593,220 f% i 17 ° ?é‘ﬂﬁfr?%?ﬁ(
/160,000,000 7T c N A A E = IE
R HEARE MR ERER Y
B o

R2017F1 B12H » /N &£ & E A

AREEFERESI LIRS
19w (1 3% W & 1) o R 3% 3% 1 &

REBERE-—FPTHEAEARKE
50,000,000t (48 & M #956,551,000
BIL)EESEARRARZENE R A
MeRERE - H AKRH2,000,000
T (4 & ® #2,262,000% 7t ) B
HEENEAEBEFMELR M
A B #48,000,0007C ( # & R 4
54,289,000/ L) FHE EM & A
SERAFE @ LAFERE
KA R A Eﬁﬁﬁzowisﬂeaz
NE MEZEXHER Ko A
&t'ﬁAaﬁéﬂa’é%@Mﬁﬁém
201751 A9H M79%# — & & N
Z2017F3A6HH825% - A& E
RFE A& B AT 0 % A R
HEARABRARS  WiERLH
BIEIEREZENBRAREHEE S
REAFEZEOTMERE-

BEZRABRLE —B-A FFH

159



Financial Summary
M E

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLFEE

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FAB T FAETT FBT FE T
(restated)
(= 5)
RESULTS E
Revenue = 932,916 817,344 817,708 658,797
Profit before taxation & B BT Y55 A 120,031 79,156 33,634 15,623
Income tax expenses FriS i % H (10,045) 6,775) (241) (5,510)
Profit for the year & 1A 5 A 109,986 72,381 33,393 10,013
At 31 December
MW12A31H
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F&E T F&E T FAT FA T FExT
(restated)
(&==E=5)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ¥ER A&
Total assets BERTE 414,176 393,818 394,615 618,959
Total liabilities BERE (144,095) (122,152) (110,537) (334,814)
Net assets BEFE 270,081 271,666 284,078 284,145
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Schedule of Property

INVESTMENT PROPERTY wREYE

Group’s
Location Area Use ownership
i Fh HE Rz rEEEEE
No. 189 Chachoengsao- Nakornratchasima Road, 16,194 square wah  Held for capital appreciation 100%

Lad-Takien Sub-district, Kabinburi District,
Prachinburi Province

16194F 7% HEBEAREE

BEZRABRLE —B-A FFH
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R HEREBRE

ABOUT THE REPORT

This is the first Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report (“the
Report”) released by Best Food Holding Company Limited (“the Company” or
“We”). The reporting scope includes the ESG work of Beijing HHG Restaurant
Management Co., Ltd (‘HHG”), Lee & Man Company Limited, and Lee & Man
Handbag Manufacturing Company Limited (the latter two referred to as “Lee
& Man”) in the mainland of People’s Republic of China. The Report covers the
period from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016.

The information disclosed by this Report is guided by the “comply or explain”
provisions set out the “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide” as contained in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities released by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

ESG MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

ESG Philosophy

Harmony. It is the Company’s ESG vision to realize harmonious coexistence
with the environment and the society. We firmly and actively fuffill the
corporate social responsibility (CSR),
relationship between the Company and the environment, employees and the
society through our constant efforts.

and strive to build a harmonious

Team Cooperation. Team cooperation is a clear guideline for the Company to
achieve good ESG performance. As the Company’s businesses include both
the catering industry and the manufacturing industry, it is faced with more
complicated challenges in ESG management. As a result, the Company can
only realize its vision of harmony through team cooperation of all employees.

Scientific management. It is the effective way for the Company to realize good
ESG performance. The company sticks to promoting scientific management
methods to create a more efficient CSR management model.

ESG Management Structure

In order to effectively promote ESG work, the Board of Directors is
responsible for ESG strategy formulation and ESG direction; the management
of HHG and that of the Lee & Man create ESG plans and manage their own
ESG work; at the same time, all departments carry out specific work to
ensure the implementation of ESG work.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Stakeholder Engagement

In order to effectively identify the major stakeholders of the Company’s
businesses and their key expectations, the Company proactively identifies
stakeholders from all walks of life, and established diversified channels to
build a long-term and effective communication mechanism.

Major Stakeholders Key Expectations
FTEFNZEES FEFRK

Nz EEST 2R

R HERERERE ()

RTEMBNECEELMS RO ERNEE

A RHEBERFR
FEITREBER

i % R E E M

A B

Bl o

VNSRS k=R =) 2

WESY ZulbEREE §®
SHEETEYREERHERN

Ways of Communication

BEAR

Government and regulators Compliance operation

B REERE AREL
Compliance with laws
BIESPE

Shareholders and investors Transparent governance

REREEE EREH
Investment returns
#% & O 3
Employees Labour rights
BT LT iR
Career development
BEERE
Suppliers Fair competition
frEn NEHEF
Honest cooperation
HEAE
Clients and customers Product responsibility
5P BEEE EmEE
Service value
fR#EE
Community Community development
e iR
Public warfare activities
N

Official documents

DIIER

Policy implementation

BURTT

Annual reports and announcements

FHREAE

meetings

&2
H R

Employees’ meetings

ET&:3%

The trade unions

Py
T=

Conferences

& 2
=

Telephone calls and Emails

B L EAF

Face-to-face communication
[EEa R
Telephone calls and Emails

B L EAF

visits

)]

Donation and other activities
BREATEHLHE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

R #HEREAHRS (B)

Materiality Assessment

During this reporting period, through constant stakeholder engagement, the
Company identified their major ESG concerns as the focus of the Company’s
ESG work and report.

SEEEM

AEE ARBBHENNERETER &
MEETENGBEIN 2T EAT
ERMENTEANR -

High /=
" @ AEnvironment Aspect 12 15 [8 &
=
ﬁ a A1 Emissions A2 Use of Resources A3 The Environment and Natural Resources
% @ﬁf A1 BERRY) A2 & REF ABIRIFE R RAEIR
X R
=
T N
8 % @ B Social Aspect it & B E
x
2 E B1 Employment B2 Health and Safety B3 Training and Development
§ E B4 Labour Standards  B5 Supply Chain Management =~ B6 Product Responsibility
§ %H\ @ B7 Anti-corruption B8 Community Investment
E® B1 (& 14 BofgREAL S BIFIHEYER
B4 TXA| BoHERER B6EME T
B7 R &S BettEHE
Low & Influence on the Company High &
HARAWNPEIEE
ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECT RiE

As the Company’s businesses involve both the catering industry and the
manufacturing industry, we deeply realize the complicated challenges in
environmental protection during the continuous practice. To actively fulfill CSR
in the environmental aspect, the Company developed the management mode
of “independent management of businesses, and unified performance
standard”. The two business sectors made their own management rules,
taking into consideration of the characteristics of operations, so as to ensure
targeted and effectiveness environmental management.

Compliance operation is the unified performance requirement on
environmental protection for the two business sectors. Both HHG and Lee &
Man proactively identify and abide by laws and regulations in the
environmental aspect, such as the Environmental Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Energy Conservation, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Environmental Impact Assessment and the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid
Waste. In 2016, the Company had no material illegal event in environmental
aspect.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Emissions

According to the requirements of relevant laws and regulations as well as the
environmental impact assessment approval, the Company identifies and
manages the major emissions during production and operation.

The major wastes during HHG’s production and operation are waste oil and
other kitchen waste, and are well managed by the Processing and Distribution
Center and Stores. In order to unify the management of waste oil, HHG hires
a qualified company to recycle waste oil to be disposed of in accordance with
laws and regulations. At the same time, other kitchen waste produced by
stores is also recycled by the third-party company.

Lee & Man made clear environment, health and safety (EHS) policy which
specifies the EHS duties, and established EHS management team. The major
emissions of Lee & Man’s production are waste gas, solid waste and waste
water. The factory strictly follows the local environmental protection bureau’s
requirements set out in the environmental impact assessment document.
Waste gas produced from processes such as painting spraying is absorbed
by activated carbon to reach a standard before discharging; hazardous waste
and waste water from water curtain cabinet are handed over to qualified
company for treatment; and other waste water is properly treated by the
factory for recycling or discharge. In order to reduce waste production, the
factory requires material recycle.

Use of Resources

Energy conservation has always been a principle for the Company’s
production and operation.

HHG applies the concept of effective use of resources in every detail. In early
2011, HHG won the “2010 Beijing Top Ten Brands in Green Innovation
Award”. Since then, HHG has maintained this fine tradition. Now, the
Processing and Distribution Center and the new stores all use LED lights,
which not only double the luminance, but also saves electricity consumption
by 5/6. The Process and Distribution Center replaced boilers with solar
panels, to achieve the goal of energy saving. At all stores, the Operation
Department manages the effective use of water and electricity through cost
control. In addition, HHG also emphasizes technology innovation. By
optimizing the machining process and adjusting order, heat energy is
effectively utilized.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

R #HEREAHRS (B)

Case: A Progress of 2.2 Centimeters

R 22EEKRNES

HHG always strives to realize the goal of energy conservation through
details. The improvement of order receipt is an example.

At a store, an HHG employee found that area of the bank header and foot,
the HHG logo, the store’s phone number and the greeting words on the
receipt is altogether 2.5cm in height, accounting for nearly half of the whole
receipt. After improvement by removing redundant information and adjusting
the layout of necessary information, the length of each receipt is reduced by
2.2.cm.

The seemly tiny length of 2.2 cm actually contributes to substantial
conservation of paper! Assuming the daily sales is about 7,000 orders, each
with two receipts which are 4.4 cm in length, a total of 112,420 meters can
be saved in a year! When this is applied to all stores, the achievement is
more significant.

Lee & Man has included energy conservation as an important work in its EHS
management.

In order to save electricity, the manufacturing factories replaced T8 tubes with
T5 energy-saving tubes. The factories also require that air conditioning
temperature should be set no lower than 26 T in summer, and no higher than
20T in winter. Notices are posted in factories to remind employees to close
the door to reduce heat exchange. Employees are also told to turn off all
electric appliances to prevent standby power consumption. The security staff
also check and turn off all lights at workshops and offices after work.

For water conservation, Lee & Man purchased a set of air heat pump for 24-
hour supply of hot water. The automatic control of water supply through
intelligent card contributes to power and water conservation and effectively
controls the total quantity of water.

In order to save raw materials, the factories encourage recycling packages,
and also reduce waste of materials through optimizing processes and staff
training.

Environment and Natural Resources

The Company has been committed to energy conservation and emission
reduction, green production and green operation, so as to minimize the
influence of it businesses on the environment and natural resources.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Social Aspect

The company aims to build a harmonious interest community, so it attaches
great importance to the relationship with investors, employees, clients,
suppliers, community, the public and government, so as to achieve
comprehensive social benefits.

Employment

The Company firmly believes that excellent talents are important asset for the
company, and also the foundation for its sustainable development. Through
strictly observing relevant laws and regulations such as the Labor Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic
of China, and the Minimum Wage Standards, the Company formulated
management rules such as “Employees’ Handbook”, “HR Manual”, and
“Management Handbook”. Accordingly, the Company strictly manages
employee recruitment, provides employees with a variety of benefits, and
creates a good working environment.

Equal Opportunity

The Company adheres to fair and open recruitment irrespective of gender,
age, marriage status, ethnicity, cultural background, disability, and religious
beliefs, and ensures equal pay for equal work.

At the same time, the Company provides a good platform for employees’
development by offering equal promotion channel for all based on employees’
competency.

Various Benefits

To better attract talents and retain talents to work for the Company, we
provide employees with various benefits, so that employees can enjoy both
material and spiritual incentives while working hard.

HHG issued “Management Measures on Employees’ Wages”, which
established a long-term mechanism for employees to share corporate
achievements. Each month, through skill and performance assessment, HHG
makes comprehensive evaluation of frontline employees and selects
outstanding employee for rewards and praise in the corporate magazines.
Each year during the Spring Festival, HHG headquarters leaders visit stores in
person and bring gifts to employees. Every autumn, HHG headquarters
organize outing activities. In addition, for employees who have been awarded
outstanding employee for three consecutive years, HHG awards overseas
travels to broaden their horizon.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RE HE8kERBRE (B

Lee & Man also attaches great importance to employee activities. On every B X/ ERE L/ESHNHE  BEZEAEHE -

+

major festival, Lee & Man holds grand celebration and enjoys the occasion — £217 KHI 4R )EE) - AR T —EENE(EE) -
with its staff.

HHG Award for Innovation and Progress HHG Award for Ten Years’ Contribution

A B 25 85 82 Meadt+FEETH

HHG Austumn Outing HHG Overseas Travel

ME BWiE Ma R FINE

Lee & Man Birthday Party
BXERABE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
R 8k ERRET (H)

Work-Life Balance THEEEFSE
In order to relieve employees’ work pressure, we also provide all kinds of A THEBRE I ¥X¥rHITIENEH KRMAET
entertainment activities and venues to enrich their leisure time. NREZERBRETH L TGN 25

BTMRBERE -

HHG HQ Reading Room HHG Reading Sharing Session Lee & Man Reading Room
MERRMER MeRBEENEZS BXHEE

Lee & Man Basketball Match Lee & Man Table Tennis Room
BNERLE BXEEMIEESH

Lee & Man Yoga Lee & Man Chess
I8 305 00E B EXRE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

R #HEREAHRS (B)

Health and Safety

The Company has always put employees’ occupational health and safety first.
On the basis of observing relevant laws and regulations such as the Law of
the People’s Republic of China on Work Safety and Regulations on Work-
Related Injury Insurance, the Company made a series of management rules
on safe production, so as to create a safe working environment and protect
employees’ occupational health and safety.

At HHG, the first class for new employees is about safety which trains staff to
always keep safety in mind and increase safety awareness. At the Food
Processing Center, HHG purchased quality production equipment with high
safety factor, and provides labor protection supplies to employees for free.
Meanwhile, the quality control staff at the production lines inspect and record
equipment operation and employees’ wearing of labor protection supplies
every day to timely discover and eliminate hidden trouble. At stores, HHG
hires safety specialists to manage the safety production issues. Once a work-
related injury accident occurs, HHG requires that the store manager and
supervisor inform the Human Resources Department via telephone call and
take timely and effective treatment measures.

ARBRS ),

HHG Fire Drill
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Lee & Man also regards employees’ safety and health as the top priority in
production. It made policy and procedures on occupational health and safety
management, and makes timely adjust to adapt to the new work environment
change and standard. To gain employees’ support and encourage
participation in this aspect, Lee & Man established Health and Safety
Committee at factories, and offers training to employees on existing and
upcoming policies, procedures and instructions. According to the “Guidance
on Health and Safety”, Lee & Man requires that all workers should wear labor
protection suppliers, and reminders are given at all factory areas. The EHS
team conducts safety check on a regular basis. If there is any work-related
injury, the first-aid kit in the factory and infirmary can provide timely rescue for
the injured employee. For each work-related injury incident, the EHS
management makes investigation and record in accordance with the “Rules
on Incident Reporting, Investigation and Treatment”, make careful analysis
and warn employees to learn from the cases.
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First-aid Kit
SHERE

Labor Protection Supplies
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

R #HEREAHRS (B)

Development and Training

While pursuing corporate development, we also encourage employees’
development. The Company developed a series of training system, and
established and improved the training management system, to support
employees’ career development.

HHG always adheres to the people-oriented policy, and actively implements
the training demands to realize the mutual development of “brand building”
and “talent cultivation. HHG provides targeted training for different employees,
such as the “Eyas Program” and the “Eagle Program”. The “Eyas Program”,
designed for general employees, includes training on work procedures, post
duties and computer operation. Trainees will participate in assessment, after
which they can be promoted to second deputy manager of stores. The “Eagle
Program”, designed for employees who want to be store manager, includes
trainings on corporate culture, store manager’s responsibilities and authority,
business management, leadership and communication, food safety, sales
and data analysis, etc. Also, trainees have to pass examinations to become
candidates of store manager.

HHG Training on Food Safety
Measeme il

Lee & Man also emphasizes employees’ development and training. Given the
characteristics of the manufacturing factory, its major training is new staff
training. The “Rule on New Employee Training” stipulates that all new
employees should receive training on the factory’s basic regulations and
production safety. The factory’s basic regulations training includes factory
rules and corporate system, safety, health, computer security, and anti-
terrorism, so as to help new employees to understand the company and its
culture, promote their identity with company, and train their compliance,
pragmatism and enterprise. Production safety is the key in training, including
chemicals, machine operation, fire safety, etc., to improve employees’ skills
and safety consciousness, so as to prevent casualty accidents and reduce
occupational harm.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

R HERERERE ()

Lee & Man Training on Chemicals

BB RERE

Lee & Man First Aid Training
B 2oRE

Labour standards

The company strictly follows laws and regulations such as the Labor Law of
the People’s Republic of China and Provisions on the Prohibition of Using
Child Labor, and formulated and implemented related management rules to
forbid using child labor and forced labor. During recruitment, the Human
Resource Department strictly reviews candidates’ identity cards and
education degree certificates to verify their age so as to avoid child labor. In
2016, the Company did not have any use of child labor or forced labor.

The Company made rational working hours in accordance with laws and
regulations. In particular, due to the characteristics of the manufacturing
industry, working overtime at Lee & Man factory is common. However, the
factory limits overtime, and strictly prohibits forced overtime. Employees have
to apply and get prior approval for working overtime, which is also recorded
for corresponding overtime wages in accordance with national provisions.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

R #HEREAHRS (B)

Supply Chain Management

With constant division of labour market, supplier quality has become an
important part of a Company’s quality management. Only by managing the
quality of the source, can the product quality be assured. Therefore, the
Company adopted a series of management measures to strengthen the
management of suppliers.

On the choice of food suppliers, HHG prefers first-class enterprises within the
industry, and conducts inspection before establishing cooperation. HHG
assesses suppliers on a regular basis by its Quality Department, Logistics
Department and Procurement Department on suppliers’ product quality and
service. Meanwhile, HHG also carries out regular (quarterly) or irregularly site
visits to suppliers to inspect the processing environment, raw material quality
and number of quality inspection personnel according to its “Suppliers
Management Rules”. If any problem related to suppliers’ product quality is
found during the inspection, production or sales, HHG would promptly notify
the supplier for improvement and suspend cooperation until it is qualified
again. HHG also pays special attention to safety management of suppliers of
store decoration. These suppliers shall sign contracts containing regulations
on safety management and pay security deposit to ensure safety
construction.

In 2016, in order to strengthen supply chain management, HHG sent a Letter
of “Key of Supplier Management” to its suppliers, which specifies HHG’s
requirements on supplier access and management capacity.

To strengthen the management on supplier selection, evaluation and product
quality, Lee & Man article formulated and strictly implemented provisions on
“Business Partner Security” for supplier evaluation and management of raw
material quality. If the quality of a supplier’s goods is unstable, or the supplier
often delays delivery and affects production, Lee & Man will send the supplier
a “Notice of Improvement” to ask it to take actions for improvement and
make report. The Procurement Department is responsible for follow-up and
keeping records.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Product Responsibility

Product Quality is the life for a company and a foundation for corporate
existence and development. To achieve sustainable development, the
Company has always emphasized the importance of product quality. The
Company actively complies with laws and regulations such as the Food
Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests and
the Law of the People’s Republic of China Against Unfair Competition, to
protect consumer rights and interests, to ban false advertising, to respect
intellectual property rights, and to participate in market competition in a fair
manner. The Company has always been committed to gaining good
reputation through high-quality products, and conquering market through
sincere service, and unceasingly enterprising in the fierce market competition.

Keeping in mind the mission of “providing customers with healthy, delicious,
convenient and affordable dining service with conscientiousness”, HHG gives
top priority to food safety. It successively obtained certificates of the ISO9001
Quality Management System and the 1SO22000 Food Safety Management
System. As a “Famous Trademark of Beijing” and one of “China’s Top Ten
Fast Food Brands”, HHG is a “Model of National Nutritious and Healthy Food”
and was involved in drafting the “Nutritional Catering Requirements for
Restaurant Industry” (SB/T 10474-2008), and the “Food Safety Management
System — Requirements for Catering Services” (GB/T 27306-2008). It is
committed to developing public catering and improving the quality of life.

HHG formulated strict management system to strengthen product quality
management. The “Management Manual on Quality and Food Safety” is a
guiding principle and code of conduct of quality and food safety, and the
“Standard for Raw Material” strictly controls all links from suppliers to
customers. Meanwhile, HHG adopted internal and external audit to conduct
comprehensive risk-oriented quality and safety management, to eliminate the
“blind zone” in management. In April 2016, HHG invited experts from China
Certification & Inspection for external audit to further improve its quality and
security system management system.

In practice, HHG has adopted a dual-kitchen mode for standardized
operation since its first store. During product processing at the central kitchen
and the terminal (store) kitchens, HHG increases automation and reduces
artificial factors by using mechanized equipment. Advanced cold-chain
logistics distribution system is adopted for timely delivery of the most fresh
and delicious products to stores every day. On-board GPRS system is
equipped for real-time monitoring, to ensure that products are transported at
low temperature for food safety. The store kitchens use three-dimensional
and intelligent equipment for six functions including pan-frying, deep-frying,
sauting, steaming, boiling, and roasting, so that the final cooking procedure is
finished at stores to provide customers with fresh and delicious food.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

R #HEREAHRS (B)

Case: Self-Discipline for Quality

=P ROmE - HBEA#E

“Even when 99.99% of the products are safe, it is still unsafe if the rest 0.01%
is sold to customers.”

HHG’s soya-bean milk is genuine soya-bean milk that is originally made
from traditional grinding process, and is then boiled and sterilized, resulting
in good smell and delicious taste.

With the huge increase of new stores and customers’ increasing recognition
of HHG soya-bean milk, the order of soya-bean milk was almost doubled.
Due to the limited production venue and equipment, the production capacity
was unable to meet the demand by a large margin. Excessive production of
soybean milk would not ensure quality and taste. As a result, HHG decided
to reduce soya-bean milk production, as HHG firmly believes that food
safety is the top priority, and production has to yield to quality.

In addition to ensuring food safety and taste, HHG also attaches great
importance to customer feedback. Through the formulation and
implementation of the “Crisis Handbook”, HHG standardized the solution of
customer complaints and other problems, to ensure that timely and effective
response and to protect customers’ interests. Moreover, HHG also set up
customer service center to answer customers’ questions and deal with
complaints in a timely manner. For online orders, the IT Department
strengthens the maintenance of the computer system, to ensure the safety of
customer information.

Adhering to the principle of “quality first, and customer-oriented”, Lee & Man
produces products that meet legal requirements and customer requirements.
To this end, Lee & Man formulated the “Quality Manual” which provides
guidance for the whole process of quality inspection and control from raw
materials to finished product shipments.

Lee & Man attaches great importance to the protection of intellectual property
rights. It actively complies with laws and regulations such as the Patent Law
of the People’s Republic of China. To protect its own intellectual property
rights, Lee & Man hired professional consultants on patent application. As for
materials and finished products with clients’ brand, Lee & Man uses the ERP
system to monitor and keep records.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Anti-Corruption

Clean and transparent corporate management is an objective requirement for
a company’s sustainable development. While abiding by relevant laws and
regulations, the Company pays great attention to development and
management of the integrity culture.

HHG always adheres to honest operation. In 2016, HHG was rewarded
“Enterprise Model of Honest Operation” by China Association of International
Trade. At the same time, HHG also emphasizes strengthening the
management of employees’ professional ethics and code of conduct which
are specified on the “Staff Handbook”. As for corruption incidents, HHG
encourages employees to report through email, telephone and WeChat to the
Human Resources Department, which will handling the cases accordingly.

In order to ensure employees’ honesty, loyalty and ethics, Lee & Man made
specification on business ethics in its management rules to forbid unethical
behaviors and encourage honesty and ethical behaviors. At the same time,
through “Notice to Suppliers”, Lee & Man made rules on honest trade to
prevent corruption in procurement. Lee & Man also formulated the “Anti-
Corruption and Anti-Bribery Procedures” to prevent any bribery and
corruption such as abuse of power in factory management, and to ensure
that employees’ legitimate rights and interests are protected. This
management rule specifically prohibits employees from receiving or offering
kickbacks or commissions from or to customers or suppliers through any
measure, or bribing people involved in business with the Company. The
Company would resort to legal procedures in case of any violation. In
addition, the management rule also stipulates that, all employees have the
right to report unethical behaviors to the Senior Management, and the
management’s telephone numbers and E-mail addresses are available to all
employees. For all reports, the factory is comminuted to prudent treatment
providing personal protection or appropriate incentives.

Community Investment

The Company attaches great importance to community participation, and
actively builds a relationship of harmonious coexistence and mutual benefit
with the community where the Company’s business operates. Through
participating in community activities, we actively serve the community and
give something back to the society.

HHG has maintained good interaction with the West Chang’an Community
where its Headquarters is located over the years. Due to the long-term
engagement, HHG has gained the trust and recodification of the community.
During the community election, HHG was selected as the food supplier. In
2016, HHG was awarded “Model of Employees’ Home at West Chang’an
Community” and “Philanthropic Enterprise” by the General Trade Union of
West Chang’an Community.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

R #HEREAHRS (B)

As a catering enterprise, HHG emphasizes cooperation with colleges and
other companies to give full play to each other’s advantages to achieve a
multi-win results for colleges, students and the enterprise. Since 2013, HHG
has been cooperating with China Agricultural University. On the one hand,
HHG is an internship base for its Food College and provides graduate
students thesis topics relevant to HHG’s food problems during the production
and operation; On the other hand, the laboratories at the University supports
HHG on food testing and experiment. As such, the cooperation promotes the
combination of education and practice, so that students can see the results
of what have learned and researched.
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HHG Employees’ blood donation
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Case: Showyes Project
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To provide a public welfare platform for orphans and school-age students
from poor families for their growth, in 2013, China Social Welfare Foundation
led the launch of the “Showyes Project”. With a full understanding of the
implementation and significance of this project in 2016, HHG became a
participant. It donated 700,000 yuan for targeted poverty alleviation and
scholarships, and provided internships for students to work at HHG.

In July 2016, around 40 students from Liangshan District, a poverty-stricken
area in Sichuan Province, came to Beijing for internship at HHG. To help
them adapt to the internship, HHG arranged training teachers for one-on-
one guidance, and took them to place of scenic spots and historic sites in
Beijing.

After 3 days’ pre-service training, students quickly adapted to the internship.
Seven of them passed the selection of second deputy manager, and
stepped into management positions after 2 months’ training.

HHG believes that its participation of the Showyes Project provides a good
platform to help students’ development and growth.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
R 8k ERRET (H)

HHG Showyes Project
MeEAaB A

Lee & Man is also devoted to social public welfare undertakings, and strives
to give play to its value by actively participating in order maintenance for
competitions, public welfare activities and environmental protection volunteer

activities.
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Lee & Man employees at order maintaining activity during the long-distance running along the Dong River for public welfare
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RE HE8kERBRE (B

Lee & Man employees at the order maintaining activity during the trial operation of Subway Line 2
BXEIZMEmEN2FEESAETHEFED
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Lee & Man employees at a volunteering activity, the Brisk Walking Everyday (K X% Ez7T), to serve the elderly
BYXBIZ2MIRRKEETIRIREREED
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